AGENDA
CITY OF HALF MOON BAY
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR HEARING

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 27, 2018

4:00 PM

Half Moon Bay City Hall Community Development Director: Jill Ekas
501 Main Street

Half Moon Bay, California 94019

This agenda contains a brief description of each item to be considered. Those wishing
to address the Community Development Director on any matter not listed on the Agenda, but
within the jurisdiction of the Community Development to resolve, may come forward during
the Public Comment portion of the Agenda and will have a maximum of three minutes to
discuss their item. Those wishing to speak on a Public Hearing matter will be called forward
at the appropriate time during the Public Hearing consideration.

Please Note: Please Provide a Copy of Prepared Presentations to the Planning Division.

Copies of written documentation relating to each item of business on the Agenda are
on file in the Office of the City Clerk at City Hall where they are available for public inspection.
If requested, the agenda shall be available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with
a disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42
U.S.C. Sec. 12132.) Information may be obtained by calling 650-726-8271.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, special assistance for
participation in this meeting can be obtained by contacting the City Clerk’s Office at 650-726-
8271. A 48-hour notification will enable the City to make reasonable accommodations to
ensure accessibility to this meeting (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II).

I.  CALLTO ORDER

Page 1 of 3 6/24/2018



Il.  PUBLIC COMMENT

lll.  PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS

ITEM 1.
Project: Construction of an outdoor amphitheater, garden education areas, new
fencing, and other associated landscape improvements at the existing Sea
Crest
File Number PDP-17-074
Requested Coastal Development Permit & Architectural Review

Permits/Approvals

Site Location

901 Arnold Way

Applicant/Property Owner

Tom Conroy/ Sea Crest School

Project Planner

Brittney Cozzolino bcozzolino@hmbcity.com (650) 750-2014

Zoning District

R-r-3 Multi-Family Residential

LCP Land Use Plan

Residential High Density

Designation
ITEM 2:
Project: Construction of a new 1,395 square-foot single-family residence on a
2,500 square foot
File Number PDP-17-085

Requested
Permits/Approvals

Coastal Development Permit & Architectural Review

Site Location

417 Chesterfield Ave

Applicant/Property Owner

Greg Ward / Marcos & Esther Hernandez

Project Planner

Brittney Cozzolino bcozzolino@hmbcity.com (650) 750-2014

Zoning District

R-1 B-2 Single Family Residential

LCP Land Use Plan
Designation

Residential Medium Density

Page 2 of 3 6/24/2018



mailto:bcozzolino@hmbcity.com
mailto:bcozzolino@hmbcity.com

ITEM 3:

Permits/Approvals

Project: Construction of a new approximately 3,660 square-foot single-family
residence, to be used as a residential care facility, with an attached
accessory dwelling unit.

File Number PDP-18-007

Requested Coastal Development Permit & Architectural Review

Site Location

636 Metzgar Street

Applicant/Property Owner

Theodore Gladstone

Project Planner

Douglas Garrison; (650) 712-5836; dgarrison@hmbcity.com

Zoning District

R-2 Two Family Residential

LCP Land Use Plan
Designation

Medium Density Residential

IV. ADJOURNMENT

Page3of3 6/24/2018




COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR
OF THE CITY OF HALF MOON BAY

For meeting of: June 27, 2018

STAFF REPORT

TO: Jill Ekas, Community Development Director

FROM: Brittney Cozzolino, Assistant Planner

TITLE: Coastal Development Permit and Architectural Review File No. PDP-17-074 for
901 Arnold Way

RECOMMENDATION

Approve PDP-17-074, an application for a Coastal Development Permit and Architectural Review
to allow the construction of an outdoor amphitheater, garden education areas, new fencing, and
other associated landscape improvements at the existing Sea Crest grade school, based upon the
Findings and Evidence contained in Exhibit A of the Draft Resolution, and subject to the
Conditions of Approval in Exhibit B.

PROJECT BACKGROUND

Summary of Project

File Number

PDP-17-074

Requested Permits/Approvals

Coastal Development Permit
Architectural Review

Site Location

901 Arnold Way/ APN 056-210-280

Applicant/Property Owner

Tom Conroy/Sea Crest School

Project Planner

Brittney Cozzolino; (650) 750-2014; bcozzolino@hmbcity.com

Zoning District

R-3 Multi-Family Residential

LCP Land Use Plan Designation

Residential High Density

Water Service

Existing 5/8” Phase 1 Crystal Springs water connection;
dedicated irrigation meter required for the proposed
landscaping.

Sewer Service (Sewer
Authority Mid-Coast)

Assessed for 10 benefit units

Street Improvements

Existing street improvements; no impact through this project

Environmental Determination

Categorically Exempt pursuant to California Code of
Regulations, Section 15303(e) — construction of small
structures, and Section 15304(b) — minor alterations of land

Heritage Trees

Existing Monterey pine hedge and Cypress trees to remain

Tree protection plan required



mailto:bcozzolino@hmbcity.com

Community Development Director Report PDP-17-074 Page 2 of 8

June 27,2018

Story Poles Not No | Located in a Visual Resource Area?
Required | No | Variance or Exception required?
No | Located in a largely undeveloped area?
Right of Appeal Any aggrieved person may appeal the Director’s decision to

the Planning Commission within ten (10) working days of the
decision.

The project is located within the Coastal Commission Appeals
Jurisdiction; therefore, final City action may be appealed to
the Coastal Commission.




Community Development Director Report PDP-17-074 Page 3 of 8
June 27,2018

Figur 2. Site Photo

Permit History

Sea Crest School was approved for a Coastal Development Permit, Use Permit, and Site and Design
Permit in 1999 to move from Monte Vista Lane to their current location on Arnold Way. The
project was proposed in two phases: first to build the main administrative building, first 12
classrooms, parking facilities, schoolyard, and associated infrastructure (PDP-12-99); and second
to build a gymnasium (PDP-65-00). Under the approved Use Permit, an additional Site and Design
and Coastal Development Permit allowed construction of a six-classroom addition in 2003 (PDP-
98-02). A temporary two-classroom modular unit was approved under a temporary use permit in
2011 (PDP-26-11).

Site and Surrounding Properties

The project site is located on the north side of Arnold Way between S. Colonel Way and Arroyo
Leon Creek in an existing residential neighborhood. The site is currently developed with a private
school that serves Kindergarten through 8™ grade. The site is zoned R-3 Multi-Family Residential,
a zoning designation that allows private schools with an approved use permit. Land use and
zoning for properties surrounding the subject site are as follows:

North Bloom Lane Senior Housing R-3 Multi-Family Residential
South Colonel Way Condos R-3 Multi-Family Residential
East One-story Single-Family R-3 Multi-Family Residential
Residence; Arroyo Leon Creek
and City limits
West Half Moon Village Condos R-3 Multi-Family Residential




Community Development Director Report PDP-17-074 Page 4 of 8
June 27,2018

Project Description

The project consists of the construction of an outdoor amphitheater, garden education areas,
new fencing, and other associated landscape improvements. The proposed landscape
improvements are intended to enhance the school yard and provide additional recreational
and educational opportunities for the students. The proposed amphitheater will serve as an
outdoor classroom and gathering area, and the garden education areas will provide
opportunities for informal seating, quiet reflection, and native plant education. The existing
open wire fence is proposed to be removed and replaced at the top of the bank of the
adjacent Arroyo Leon creek, and will be modified to incorporate an opening along the bottom
to allow wildlife-friendly passage. Other project components include modifications to the
basketball court, a new 17,000 square-foot turf field, a new walkway and ADA-accessible
concrete ramp to access the schoolyard, and a relocated play structure on new safety bark.
All improvements will occur within the interior of the schoolyard and will not increase the
intensity of use of the school or impact the surrounding development.

[ 4
4
Kikuchi + Kankel
Design Group

KOHRS FAMILY
CENTER

LANDSCAPE
IMPROVEMENTS

SEA CREST
SCHOOL

i

CREATIVE PLAY INATIVE
GaRoen

501 ARNOLD Wiy
HALF MOON BAY, CA

2PN 055210280

LANDSCAPE PLAN NOTES

(-
| !
. e
1, | == o -
SEA CREST SCHOOL } i
1 | 1
|
|
|
|
|
|
|

D |

[n LANDSCAPE AREA CALCULATIONS

|| remimoon _senco.

LANDSCAPE PLAN

;
5

] (2.1

Figure 3. Proposed Landscape Plan



Community Development Director Report PDP-17-074 Page 5 of 8
June 27,2018

ANALYSIS

The key issues for this project are conformance with the General Plan/Local Coastal Land Use
Plan, conformance with the Zoning Code/LCP Implementation Plan,* and conformance with
the California Environmental Quality Act.

Conformance with the General Plan/Local Coastal Program Land Use Plan

The proposed landscape improvements at the existing private school are consistent with the
Residential High Density General Plan/Local Coastal Land Use Plan designation. The Land Use
Plan requires establishment of buffer zones from riparian corridors, as implemented in the
City’s Zoning Code and discussed further below.

Conformance with the Zoning Code

As this project proposes development within 100 feet of a riparian corridor (Arroyo Leon), a
Coastal Development Permit is required (Municipal Code Section 18.20.025(A)). In addition,
as the project consists of site improvements to an existing nonresidential structure requiring
a use permit, Architectural Review of the project is also required (Municipal Code Section
14.37.020(B)).

Table 1 identifies key Zoning Code/LCP Implementation Plan topics and their applicability to
the subject site.

Table 1. Key Zoning Code/LCP Implementation Plan Topics

Topic Applicability/Explanation

Located adjacent to an Environmentally]
Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Area| Yes| Sensitive Habitat Area.

Visual Resource Area No | Not located in a Visual Resource Area.
Public Access No | Project will have no effect on coastal access.
Archaeologically Resource Area No [ Not in area of mapped or known resources.
Historic Resources No | No historic resources exist on the site.

As indicated in the table, the primary concern is the proposed development’s proximity to
the adjacent Arroyo Leon Creek. A Biological Resource Evaluation (BRE) was prepared for this
project as development is proposed within 100 feet of the riparian corridor.

The BRE determined that Arroyo Leon is a perennial stream, which requires a 50-foot buffer
zone extending from the limit of riparian vegetation per the Municipal Code. Although this
determination is contrary to the intermittent stream designation given to Arroyo Leon on the

! The Zoning Code is the LCP Implementation Plan.



Community Development Director Report PDP-17-074 Page 6 of 8
June 27,2018

City’s adopted Habitat Areas & Water Resources Overlay Map, the analysis provided by the
BRE is the most up-to-date, site-specific study available and recommends a more resource-
conservative approach than the 30-foot buffer required for intermittent streams would
provide.

The original application included a portion of the proposed amphitheater within the riparian
buffer zone as it was designed to meet a 30-foot buffer requirement. The plans have since
been revised to pull the structural portions of the amphitheater out of the 50-foot buffer per
the determination that Arroyo Leon is a perennial stream and such structures are not
allowed uses within the buffer zone. However, a portion of the amphitheater berm is
proposed within the 50-foot buffer and would require grading and altering of natural
landforms. As the Coastal Resource Conservation Standards requires development within
riparian buffer zones to conform to natural topography and minimize erosion potential
(Municipal Code Section 18.38.075(G)(2)), conditions of approval require revised plans that
completely relocate the amphitheater feature, including all structural components and berm
area, out of the 50-foot buffer zone.

NEN FERMEABLE GRAVEL FATH:

EXFANDED AREAS ALONG THE FATH CREATE
CONTANED CUTDC Mo O AMPHTHEATER/BERM (56000 5G. FT)
= ASSEMBLY § OUTDOOR CLASSROOM AREA
E s=T

|
CREATIVE FLAY ¢ NATURAL GARDEN AREA
NATIVE FLANTINGS AND NFORMAL MULCHED:

FATHS SURROUND CREERK OVERLOOKS AND
SMALL CLEARINGS FOR OUTDOOR.
CLASSROOM AND FLAY OFFORTUNITES

Figure 4. Site Plan Showing 50-ft. Buffer from Limit of Riparian Vegetation

&

Improvements proposed within the 50-foot buffer zone includes gravel pathways, two
“natural garden” areas with informal seating, and a new open wire fence along the top of the
bank. The fencing will incorporate a wildlife-friendly opening at the footing to allow for
wildlife passage, while providing the necessary security for the students and preservation of
the sensitive habitat area. As proposed, the fencing will be located along the top of the bank;
however, there is a small area of riparian vegetation that extends beyond the top bank.



Community Development Director Report PDP-17-074 Page 7 of 8
June 27,2018

Thus, conditions of approval include a requirement to revise the location of the fencing such
that it is located at the top of bank or limit of riparian vegetation, whichever is greater. All
improvements proposed within the buffer zone can therefore be considered low-impact
educational uses that will not impact sensitive resources and are permitted uses within the
riparian buffer zone per the Zoning Code.

The BRE determined that the proposed improvements would impact an area of annual
brome grass within the buffer zone, which is not a protected habitat type, and would have
no adverse impact on the adjacent riparian vegetation. The proposed improvements meet
the City’s coastal resource conservation development standards by utilizing native and non-
invasive plant species, implementing erosion and runoff controls and construction best
management practices, and protecting the extent of the riparian vegetation.

The BRE also determined that, although none were observed during the study, there is
potential for several protected wildlife species to occur within the project area due to the
habitat type and documented sightings within three miles. These species include the San
Francisco Garter Snake (federally endangered and state threatened), the California Red
Legged Frog (federally threatened and state species of special concern), and nesting birds
and roosting bats (protected by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife Code 3503).
The BRE thus recommends pre-construction surveys as a preventative measure to ensure
any impacts to these species are avoided, which are included herein as a Condition of
Approval. With the proposed best management practices and pre-construction surveys,
there will be no adverse impacts to the adjacent sensitive habitat area.

Architectural Design Compatibility

The proposed development conforms to the applicable design approval criteria required by
Sections 14.37.035 and 18.20.070(F) of the Municipal Code. The project includes
harmoniously designed landscaping that supports the main functions of the site and is
appropriate to the setting and the surrounding neighborhood. The design concept creates a
desirable and functional environment and includes plants materials that are suitable and
capable of being properly maintained.

Although the subject property contains a nonresidential use, the project also conforms to
the applicable sections of the Single-Family Residential Design Guidelines. Per Chapter 4 of
the Guidelines, the project incorporates a cohesive aesthetic and clustered landscaping to
create a natural appearance. The proposed plant list contains native and drought-tolerant
vegetation that is compatible with the adjacent sensitive habitat area, and runoff will be
directed from hardscaping to vegetated areas.

Environmental Review

The project is Categorically Exempt pursuant to California Code of Regulations Section
Sections 15303(e) and 15304(b) in that the project consists of the construction of small
structures and minor alterations of land. The project proposes to incorporate erosion and
runoff controls and construction best management practices, will direct runoff into



Community Development Director Report PDP-17-074 Page 8 of 8
June 27,2018

vegetated areas, and will provide wildlife-friendly passage at the foot of the proposed
fencing. As mentioned above, the project is also conditioned herein to conduct pre-
construction surveys to ensure any impacts to sensitive species are avoided, as
recommended by the BRE. Thus, there will be no significant effect on the adjacent riparian
corridor, nor any anticipated unusual circumstances that may cause a significant effect.

Conclusion

Based on the above analysis, staff concludes that the proposed residence is consistent with
the General Plan/Local Coastal Land Use Plan and the Zoning Code/LCP Implementation Plan;
is compatible with surrounding development; and conforms to the requirements of the
California Environmental Quality Act. Staff recommends approval of the project based on
the findings and conditions of approval (Exhibits A and B of the attached Draft Resolution).

ATTACHMENTS
1. Draft Resolution with Findings and Evidence, Exhibit A and Conditions of Approval,
Exhibit B.

2. Project Plans (Revised May 30, 2018)
3. Biological Resource Evaluation (Final March 16, 2018)



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR RESOLUTION CDR-18-
RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL
PDP-17-074

A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR OF THE CITY OF HALF MOON
BAY APPROVING A COASTAL DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AND ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW TO ALLOW
THE CONSTRUCTION OF AN OUTDOOR AMPHITHEATER, GARDEN EDUCATION AREAS, NEW
FENCING, AND OTHER ASSOCIATED LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS AT 901 ARNOLD WAY IN THE
R-3 RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICT AND THE RESIDENTIAL MEDIUM DENSITY GENERAL PLAN
DESIGNATION (APN 056-210-280)

WHEREAS, an application was submitted requesting approval of Coastal Development
Permit and Architectural Review to allow the construction of an outdoor amphitheater, garden
education areas, new fencing, and other associated landscape improvements at the existing Sea
Crest grade school at 901 Arnold Way in the R-3 Residential Zoning District and the Residential
Medium Density General Plan designation (APN 056-210-280); and

WHEREAS, the procedures for processing the application have been followed as required
by law; and

WHEREAS, the Community Development Director conducted a duly noticed public
hearing on June 27, 2018, at which time all those desiring to be heard on the matter were given
an opportunity to be heard; and

WHEREAS, the Community Development Director considered all written and oral
testimony presented for consideration; and

WHEREAS, the Community Development Director has determined that the requested
Coastal Development Permit for the construction of a new landscape improvements and fencing
is exempt from CEQA pursuant to California Code of Regulations Sections 15303(e) and 15304 (b),
which exempt the construction of small structures and minor alterations of land; and

WHEREAS, the Community Development Director has made the required findings for
approval of the project, set forth in Exhibit A to this resolution;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that, based upon the Findings in Exhibit A and subject
to the Conditions of Approval contained in Exhibit B, the Community Development Director
approves PDP-17-074.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City of Half Moon Bay Community Development Director
at a duly noticed public hearing held June 27, 2018.

APPROVED:

Jill Ekas, Community Development Director



EXHIBIT A
FINDINGS AND EVIDENCE
Community Development Director Resolution CDR-18-____
PDP-17-074

Coastal Development Permit — Findings for Approval

The required Coastal Development Permit for this project may be approved or conditionally
approved only after the approving authority has made the following findings per Municipal Code
Section 18.20.070:

1. Local Coastal Program — The development as proposed or as modified by conditions, conforms
to the Local Coastal Program.

Evidence: The project consists of the construction of landscape improvements to an existing
grade school in an existing neighborhood where public services and infrastructure are
currently available. The project conforms to all City requirements, will not impact coastal
resources and is consistent with the policies of the City’s Land Use Plan (LUP).

Coastal Act 30240(b) and Policy 3-3 (b): Development in areas adjacent to environmentally
sensitive habitat areas shall be sited and designed to prevent impacts which would
significantly degrade such areas, and shall be compatible with the continuance of such
habitat areas.

Compliance: The subject site is adjacent to Arroyo Leon, a mapped riparian corridor. The
project has been sited and designed to prevent impacts to the adjacent habitat area by
proposing only low-impact educational uses and native landscaping improvements in the 50-
foot buffer zone and incorporating construction best management practices. A biological
resource evaluation (BRE) was conducted for this project and determined that there are no
adverse impacts anticipated to the riparian vegetation from this project. The BRE
recommends pre-construction surveys to ensure that any impacts to sensitive species within
the riparian corridor are avoided, which are included herein as a Condition of Approval.
Conditions of approval also include requirements to avoid grading within the buffer zone by
retreating the amphitheater feature, and revising the proposed fence location such that it is
entirely protective of the extent of riparian vegetation.

Policy 7-1: The City will establish regulations to protect the scenic corridor of Highway 1,
including setbacks for new development, screening of commercial parking and landscaping
associated with new development. The minimum standards shall include all areas within 200
yards of State Highway 1 which are visible from the road.

Compliance: The subject site is not located within 200 yards of State Highway 1 and
will not impact any scenic resources.

Resolution CDR 18-



Policy 7-5: All new development, including additions and remodeling, shall be subject to
design review.

Compliance: The proposed residence has been subject to design review by the Community
Development Director.

Policy 7-11: New development along primary access routes from Highway 1 to the beach, as
designated on the Land Use Map, shall be designed and sited so as to maintain and enhance
the scenic quality of such routes, including building setbacks, maintenance of low height of
structures, and landscaping which establishes a scenic gateway and corridor.

Compliance: The proposed development will occur within the interior of an existing grade
school, which is not located along a primary access route from Highway 1 and will not affect
coastal access.

Coastal Act 30244: Where development would adversely impact archaeological or
paleontological resources as identified by the State Historic Preservation Officer,
reasonable mitigation measures shall be required.

Compliance: The proposed landscape improvements are not located at or near identified
archaeological or paleontological resources. If cultural resources or paleontological resources
are unexpectedly encountered during subsurface excavation, the permit has been
conditioned to require that construction halt until the find can be evaluated and appropriate
mitigation identified.

2. Growth Management System — The development is consistent with the annual population
limitation system established in the Land Use Plan and Zoning Ordinance.

Evidence: The proposed site is developed with a nonresidential use and is thus not
subject to the City’s annual population limitation system.

3. Zoning Provisions — The development is consistent with the use limitations and property
development standards of the base district as well as the other requirements of the Zoning
Ordinance.

Evidence: The proposed development conforms to the requirements of the R-3 Residential
Zoning District, which allows private schools with an approved use permit. The proposed
landscaping improvements meet the requirements of the R-3 Zoning District and other
relevant provisions of the Zoning Code.

4. Adequate Services — The proposed development will be provided with adequate services and
infrastructure in @ manner that is consistent with the Local Coastal Program.

Resolution CDR 18-



Evidence: The site is located in an existing developed neighborhood where utilities and
services are generally available. As the proposed project includes over 5,000 square feet of
irrigated landscaping, the Coastside County Water District requires a dedicated irrigation
meter.

5. California Coastal Act — Any development to be located between the sea and the first public
road parallel to the sea conforms to the public access and public recreation policies of Chapter
3 of the California Coastal Act.

Evidence: The proposed development is not located between the sea and the first public
road parallel to the sea and will not impact coastal access.

6. Design Review Criteria — The community development director, planning commission, or city
council has reviewed and considered each specific case and any and all of the following criteria
in determining that the architectural and site design standards identified in Municipal Code
Sections 14.37.035 and 18.20.070 (F) have been satisfactorily addressed.

Evidence: The Community Development Director has reviewed the design of the proposed
project and has determined that the design review criteria of Municipal Code Sections
14.37.035 and 18.20.070(F) have been satisfactorily addressed. The proposed landscaping
design (including softscaping and hardscaping) conform to all requirements of the Zoning
Code.

Architectural Site and Design Review — Findings

The required Architectural and/or Site and Design Review for this project may be approved or
conditionally approved only after the approving authority has made the findings per Municipal
Code Section 14.37.040. In making these findings, the Community Development Director has
considered the design approval criteria set forth in Municipal Code Section 14.37.035.

1. That such buildings, structures, planting, paving and other improvements shall be so
designed and constructed that they will not be of unsightly or obnoxious appearance to the
extent that they will hinder the orderly and harmonious development of the city;

Evidence: The Director has reviewed the design of proposed project and concluded that the
proposal is in compliance with the City’s architectural and site design standards and is
compatible with surrounding development. The project proposes landscaping improvements
within the interior of an existing grade school that will only be visible to the school’s
immediate neighbors to the north and south. The proposed project will also significantly
improve the recreational and educational value of the schoolyard for the school’s students.

2. That such buildings, structures, planting, paving and other improvements will not impair the
desirability or opportunity to attain the optimum use and the value of the land and the
improvements, or otherwise impair the desirability of living or working conditions in the
same or adjacent areas; and

Resolution CDR 18-



Evidence: The project consists of landscape improvements that conform to the
requirements of the Zoning Code, are consistent with the applicable Single-Family
Residential Design Guidelines, and are compatible with the scale and character of
development in the surrounding area. The proposed development will contribute to the
economic value of the land and the surrounding area and will not have any impact on the
area’s frontage improvements, parking supply, or living or working conditions.

3. The project has been designed in conformance and consistency with the Single-Family
Residential Design Guidelines (where applicable).

Evidence: Although the subject property contains a nonresidential use, the project
conforms to the applicable sections of the Single-Family Residential Design Guidelines.
Per Chapter 4 of the Guidelines, the project incorporates a cohesive aesthetic and
clustered landscaping to create a natural appearance. The proposed plant list contains
native, non-invasive and drought-tolerant vegetation that is compatible with the
adjacent sensitive habitat area, and runoff will be directed from hardscaping to
vegetated areas.

Environmental Review — Finding

CEQA — The project will not have a significant effect on the environment.

Evidence: The project is Categorically Exempt pursuant to California Code of Regulations
Sections 15303(e) and 15304(b) in that the project consists of the construction of small
structures and minor alterations of land. The project proposes to incorporate construction
best management practices, will direct runoff into vegetated areas, and will provide wildlife-
friendly passage at the foot of the proposed fencing. With the proposed best management
practices and the pre-construction surveys recommended by the project’s Biological
Resource Evaluation and included in the Conditions of Approval herein, there will be no
significant effect on the adjacent riparian corridor nor any anticipated unusual circumstances
that may cause a significant effect.

Resolution CDR 18-



EXHIBIT B
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
Community Development Director Resolution CDR-18-____
PDP-17-074

A. The following Conditions shall apply to the subject site to the satisfaction of
the Community Development Director:

1. CONFORMANCE WITH APPROVED PLANS. Development of the site shall conform to the
approved plans entitled “Sea Crest School Landscape Improvements” with a City date
stamp of May 30, 2018, except for any revisions required by this permit. The Community
Development Director shall review and may approve any deviation from the approved
plans that is determined minor in nature. Any other change shall require the submittal of
a major modification application and fees and shall be subject to a public hearing as

required by Title 18. (Planning)

2. CONFORMANCE WITH CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL. The Community Development
Director shall review and may approve any deviation from the Conditions of Approval that

is determined minor in nature. Any other change shall require the submittal of a major
modification application and fees and shall be subject to a public hearing as required by
Title 18. (Planning)

3. PRIOR CONDITIONS REMAIN IN EFFECT. The approval of this Coastal Development Permit
and Architectural Review to allow landscape improvements at Sea Crest School does not

waive or alter any of the Conditions of Approval adopted by the Planning Commission for
PDP-012-99, PDP-065-00, and PDP-098-02.

4. CONFORMANCE WITH THE MUNICIPAL CODE. No part of this approval shall be construed
to permit a violation of any part of the Half Moon Bay Municipal Code. (Planning)

5. LIGHTING. All exterior lighting shall be fully shielded so that no light source is visible from
outside the property, except as otherwise expressly approved. (Planning)

6. FRONTAGE MAINTANENCE AND LIABILITY. It shall be the duty of the Property Owner(s)
whose property is adjacent to any portion of a public street or place to maintain any

frontage improvements in a safe and non-dangerous condition. Maintenance shall include
removal and replacement of concrete to eliminate tripping hazards; and pruning and
trimming of trees, shrubs, ground cover and other landscaping within the public right-of-
way. The Property Owner has the primary and exclusive duty to fund and perform such
maintenance and repair, whether or not the City has notified the property owner of the
need for such maintenance or repairs or has performed similar maintenance or repairs in

Resolution CDR 18-



the past, pursuant to §12.18.020 and §12.18.030 of the Half Moon Bay Municipal Code.
(Engineering)

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE. The applicant/owner shall ensure that all landscaped areas
and/or fences are continuously maintained, and all plant material is maintained free of

refuse and weeds and in a healthy growing condition. (Planning)

B. The following Conditions shall be fulfilled to the satisfaction of the

Community Development Director prior to the issuance of building permits:

1.

SIGNED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL. The applicant/owner shall submit a signed copy of the
conditions of approval to the Planning Division prior to issuance of a building permit.

(Planning)

REQUIRED PLAN REVISIONS. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit
revised plans providing the following:

a) Relocation of the entire amphitheater feature, including all structural
components and berm areas, out of the 50-foot riparian buffer zone.

b) Revision of the fence location such that it will be placed at the top of bank or
edge of riparian vegetation, whichever is greater.

CONSTRUCTION PLANS. File Number PDP-17-074 and the Conditions of Approval for this
project shall be provided on the cover page of the building permit application plan

submittal. All plans, specifications, engineering calculations, diagrams, reports, and other
data for construction of the building and required improvements shall be submitted with
the appropriate permit application to the City’s Building and Engineering Divisions for
review and approval. Computations and back-up data will be considered a part of the
required plans. Structural calculations and engineering calculations shall be prepared, wet-
stamped and signed by an engineer or architect licensed by the State of California. The plans
must show the location of the sewer connection and property line sewer cleanout.
(Planning)

WATER CONSERVATION IN LANDSCAPING. If the project includes 500 square feet or more
of irrigated landscaping (new or rehabilitated) the permittee shall submit landscape and

irrigation plans and an Outdoor Water Efficiency Checklist that demonstrate compliance
with the City’s Water Conservation in Landscaping Ordinance (Chapter 13.04 of the
Municipal Code) prior to issuance of building permits to the satisfaction of the Community
Development Director. (Planning)

PROJECT BIOLOGIST. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit to the
Director the name, company affiliation, and contact information of the project biologist

who will oversee the construction. The project biologist shall be selected from the City’s List

Resolution CDR 18-



10.

11.

of Pre-approved Biological Consultants to the satisfaction of the Community Development
Director. The applicant shall notify the Community Development Director in writing within
24 hours of any change in the project biologist. (Planning)

SURVEY REQUIRED. A detailed topographic/site boundary survey prepared by a certified
licensed surveyor shall be submitted with building application plans. The survey shall

include a baseline elevation datum point on, or close to the construction site, indicating
existing grade of the datum. This datum point shall be permanent, marked, shall remain
fixed in the field, and shall not be disturbed throughout the building process. Examples of
datum points include: fire hydrants, manhole covers, survey markers, and street curbs. This
datum point shall be shown on all site plans including revised/resubmitted plans. The survey
must show the footprint and roof plan of the proposed residence and identify the existing
grade elevations at the corners and roof ridgeline of the residence. (Building)

CONSTRUCTION PLANS. Construction plans submitted for building permit(s) shall include a
plan sheet showing utility connections, trench restoration details, driveway apron (driveway
apron width, spacing between driveways, slopes, etc.), and other improvements in the
public right-of-way meeting City standards. (Engineering)

ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS. The proposed project shall comply with State of California
and federal (ADA) accessibility standards and with the line of sight requirements of Half
Moon Bay Zoning Code Section 18.06.040(B).

LOT GRADING, MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLE STORAGE. No lot site grading,
preparation, storage, or placement of construction materials, equipment, or vehicles shall

take place prior to issuance of a building permit. Lot Grading includes, but is not limited to,
any leveling, scraping, clearing, or removal of lot surface area. Based on the listed volume of
grading of 110 cubic yards, a grading permit will be required in advance of issuance of a
building permit. Materials, Equipment, and Vehicles include, but are not limited to:

a. All masonry, wood, and steel construction materials;
b. All construction-related equipment and storage containers; and
c. All construction-related vehicles, including temporary trailers. (Engineering)

EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL. An erosion and sediment control plan shall be
submitted that shows effective Best Management Practices (BMP) and erosion and

sediment control measures for the site. Construction plans shall also include the
“construction best management practices” plan sheet. (Engineering)

LOT DRAINAGE PLAN AND ON-SITE DETENTION Construction plans submitted for building
permits shall include a Lot Drainage Plan showing how the surface runoff is retained on the

site and the remainder is drained to the public right-of-way. Plans shall include design

Resolution CDR 18-



12.

details and supporting calculations for storm water detention on-site for the additional run-
off from a ten-year frequency storm of two-hour duration. Plans shall show how the rear
and side yards will properly drain to an approved BMP facility, and how the finished grades
on the property relate to the existing grades on adjacent property. The Plan shall include
pad elevation, finished floor elevation, site high and low points, drainage swales, area
drains, and existing grade at adjacent property. The permittee shall provide appropriate
measures to discharge the flood waters from any unfinished floor areas. (Engineering)

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT-TREATMENT (FOR NON-REGULATED PROJECTS). Non-
regulated projects consist of single-family residences and other small projects that create
and/or replace less than 5,000 square feet of impervious surface. Construction plans
submitted for building permits shall include a storm water management-treatment plan

showing implementation of at least one of the six Low Impact Development (LID) measures
listed below:

a. Direct runoff into cisterns or rain barrels and use rainwater for irrigation or other
non-potable use;

b. Direct roof runoff into vegetated areas;

c. Direct runoff from sidewalks, walkways, and/or patios into vegetated areas;

d. Direct runoff from driveways and /or uncovered parking lots into vegetated areas;
e. Construct sidewalks, walkways, and/or patios with permeable surfaces; or

f.  Construct bike lanes, driveways, and/or uncovered parking lots with permeable
surfaces. (Engineering)

Permittee shall also submit the ‘stormwater checklist for small projects’ with the building
plan submittal.

C. The following conditions shall be implemented to the satisfaction of the

Community Development Director prior to and during construction:

ARCHAEOQOLOGY-DISCOVERY OF HUMAN REMAINS. Pursuant to Section 7050.5 of the
Health and Safety Code, and Section 5097.94 of the Public Resources Code of the State of
California, in the event of the discovery of human remains during construction, there shall

be no further excavation or disturbance of the site or any nearby area reasonably suspected
to overlie adjacent remains. The County Coroner shall be notified and shall make a
determination as to whether the remains are Native American. If the Coroner determines
that the remains are not subject to his authority, he shall notify the California Native
American Heritage Commission who shall attempt to identify descendants of the deceased

Resolution CDR 18-



Native American(s). If no satisfactory agreement can be reached as to the disposition of the
remains pursuant to this State law, then the permittee shall re-inter the human remains and
items associated with Native American burials on the property in a location not subject to
further subsurface disturbance. (Planning)

2. ARCHAEOLOGY-DISCOVERY OF RESOURCES. If subsurface historic or archaeological
resources are uncovered during construction, all work shall stop, the applicant shall

notify the Community Development Director and retain a qualified archaeologist to
perform an archaeological reconnaissance and identify any mitigation measures
required to protect archaeological resources. Subsurface excavation shall not resume
until expressly authorized by the Director. (Building)

3. CONSTRUCTION TRAILERS. Temporary construction trailers are permitted as accessory uses

in conjunction with the development of this site, subject to the following conditions:

The construction trailer shall be used as a temporary construction office only.
Neither sanitation facilities nor plumbed water is permitted within the trailer.
No overnight inhabitance of the construction trailer is permitted.

No construction trailers are permitted on site prior to building permit issuance.

JENN S

The construction trailer shall be removed prior to issuance of a certificate of
occupancy. (Planning)

4. AIR QUALITY BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES. The project shall implement the following
standard BAAQMD dust control measures during all phases of construction on the project

site:

a. All active construction areas shall be watered twice daily or more often if necessary.
Increased watering frequency shall be required whenever wind speeds exceed 15
miles-per-hour.

b. Pave, apply water three times daily, or apply non-toxic soil stabilizers on all unpaved
access roads and parking and staging areas at construction sites.

c. Cover stockpiles of debris, soil, sand, and any other materials that can be
windblown. Trucks transporting these materials shall be covered.

d. All visible mud or dirt track-out onto adjacent public roads shall be removed using
wet power vacuum street sweepers at least once per day or as often as necessary to
keep them free of dust and debris associated with site construction. The use of dry
power sweeping is prohibited.

e. Subsequent to clearing, grading, or excavating, exposed portions of the site shall be
watered, landscaped, treated with soil stabilizers, or covered as soon as possible.
Hydroseed or apply (non-toxic) soil stabilizers to inactive construction areas and
previously graded areas inactive for 10 days or more.

f. Installation of sandbags or other erosion control measures to prevent silt runoff to
public roadways.

Resolution CDR 18-



g.

Replanting of vegetation in disturbed areas as soon as possible after completion of
construction.

Idling times shall be minimized either by shutting equipment off when not in use or
reducing the maximum idling time to five minutes. Clear signage shall be provided
for construction workers at all access points.

All construction equipment shall be maintained and properly tuned in accordance
with manufacturer’s specifications. All equipment shall be checked by a certified
mechanic and determined to be running in proper condition prior to operation.

Post a publicly visible sign with the telephone number and person to contact at the
City of Half Moon Bay regarding dust complaints. This person shall respond and take
corrective action within 48 hours. The BAAQMD’s phone number shall also be visible
to ensure compliance with applicable regulations.

5. TREE PROTECTION REQUIREMENTS. The following tree protection measures shall be

implemented during construction:

a.

Prior to commencement of construction, construction fencing shall be placed
around the drip line of all trees proposed for preservation.

No grading or other construction shall occur within the drip line of any tree
proposed for preservation except in conformance with a Tree Protection Plan
approved by the Community Development Director.

No vehicle, equipment or materials shall be parked or stored within the drip line of
any tree proposed for preservation. (Planning/Building)

6. PRE-CONSTRUCTION SURVEYS.

a.

Immediately prior to any ground disturbance or vegetation removal, a pre-
construction survey for the presence of the San Francisco Garter Snake or the
California Red-Legged Frog shall be conducted by a qualified biologist.

i.  If the survey observes any San Francisco Garter Snakes or California Red-
Legged Frogs, the work start shall be postponed, and the on-site biologist
shall immediately consult with USFW and CDFW. All recommendations by
USFW and CDFW shall be adhered to.

ii.  Upon completion of the survey and any follow-up construction avoidance
management, a report shall be prepared and submitted to the Community
Development Director.

If project construction is conducted within the nesting bird season (February 1 —
August 31), a pre-construction survey for nesting birds and roosting bats shall be
conducted within the project area (i.e. within the project footprint and a 200-foot
buffer around the project site) by a qualified biologist within one week prior to any
ground disturbance or vegetation removal.

Resolution CDR 18-



7.

8.

9.

iii.  If the survey identifies any active nests, an exclusion buffer shall be
established for protection of the nest and young. The on-site biologist shall
determine the buffer distance, setting a minimum of no less than 500 ft. for
raptors and 300 ft. for all other bird species, and the buffer shall be
maintained until all young have fledged as determined by the biologist.

iv.  If the survey identifies any active bat or monarch roosts, the on-site
biologists shall immediately consult with CDFW.

v.  Upon completion of the survey and any follow-up construction avoidance
management, a report shall be prepared and submitted to the Community
Development Director.

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. Any materials deemed hazardous by the San Mateo County

Department of Health that are uncovered or discovered during the course of work under
this permit shall be disposed in accordance with regulations of the San Mateo County of
Health. (Building)

COMPLIANCE WITH CBC. All structures shall be constructed in compliance with the

standards of the 2016 California Codes of Regulations Title 24, including Building Code,
Residential Code, Administrative Code, Mechanical Code, Plumbing Code, Electrical Code,
Energy Code, Fire Code and Green Building Code to the satisfaction of the Building Official.
(Building)

COMPLETION OF UTILITIES. Any public utilities requiring relocation as a result of the
construction of the building(s) or improvements under this permit shall be relocated at the

owner’s expense. (Building)

10. CONSTRUCTION HOURS. Construction work shall be limited to the hours of 7:00 a.m. to

6:00 p.m. Monday through Friday; 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Saturdays; and 10:00 a.m. to 6:00
p.m. Sundays and holidays, except as expressly authorized by the City Engineer in
conformance with Section 14.40.020 of the Half Moon Bay Municipal Code. (Engineering)

11. NOTICE OF DISRUPTION. The permittee shall provide written notice to affected property

12.

and business owners and a copy of such notice to the City Engineer a minimum of two
business days prior to any planned disruption of pedestrian or vehicular traffic, parking, or
public service facilities. (Engineering)

CONSTRUCTION MATERIAL STORAGE. Construction material shall not be stored in the
street right-of-way without issuance of a Temporary Encroachment Permit. (Engineering)

Resolution CDR 18-



D. Validity and Expiration of Permits

=

EFFECTIVE DATE. The site is not located within the Coastal Commission Appeal Zone. This
approval shall take effect after expiration of all City appeal periods. (Planning)

ACCURACY OF APPLICATION MATERIALS. The permittee shall be responsible for the
completeness and accuracy of all forms and material submitted for this application. Any

errors or discrepancies found therein may be grounds for the revocation or modification of
this permit and/or any other City approvals. (Planning)

PERMIT EXPIRATION. The Coastal Development Permit (CDP) and Architectural Review shall
expire one year from its date of final approval if the use/development has not commenced

in conformance with this permit or the applicant has not obtained an extension of the
permit.

PERMIT EXTENSION. The Community Development Director may, at the Director’s
discretion, approve a Minor Amendment for a single one-year extension of this permit

based on a written request and fee submitted to the Director prior to expiration of the
permit. Submittal of a Building Permit application with development plans prior to
expiration of the permit shall constitute an extension of this permit until the building permit
is issued or until the Building Official determines the applicant is no longer diligently
pursuing the required building permit. Any other extension shall require approval of a
Major Permit Amendment prior to expiration of the permit. Any Major Permit Amendment
Application to extend the permit shall be filed a minimum of ninety (90) days prior to permit
expiration to ensure adequate processing time. (Planning)

PERMIT RUNS WITH THE LAND. The approval runs with the land and the rights and
obligations thereunder, including the responsibility to comply with conditions of approval,

shall be binding upon successors in interest in the real property unless or until such permits
are expressly abandoned or revoked. (Planning)

HOLD HARMLESS. The permittee agrees as a condition of approval of this application to

indemnify, protect, defend with counsel selected by the City, and hold harmless, the City,
and any agency or instrumentality thereof, and its elected and appointed officials, officers,
employees and agents, from and against an and all liabilities, claims, actions, causes of
action, proceedings, suits, damages, judgments, liens, levies, costs and expenses of
whatever nature, including reasonable attorney’s fees and disbursements (collectively,
“Claims”) arising out of or in any way relating to the approval of this application, any actions
taken by the City related to this entitlement, any review by the California Coastal
Commission conducted under the California Coastal Act Public Resources Code Section
30000 et seq., or any environmental review conducted under the California Environmental
Quality Act, Public Resources Code Section 210000 et seq., for this entitlement and related

Resolution CDR 18-



actions. The indemnification shall include any Claims that may be asserted by any person
or entity, including the permittee, arising out of or in connection with the approval of this
application, whether or not there is concurrent, passive or active negligence on the part of
the City, and any agency or instrumentality thereof, and its elected and appointed officials,
officers, employees and agents. The permittee’s duty to defend the City shall not apply in
those instances when the permittee has asserted the Claims, although the permittee shall
still have a duty to indemnify, protect and hold harmless the City. (City Attorney).

OWNER’S/PERMITTEE’S CERTIFICATION:

| have read and understand and hereby accept and agree to implement the foregoing conditions
of approval of the Coastal Development Permit.

APPLICANT:

(Signature) (Date)

Resolution CDR 18-



RE-USE, REPRODUCTION OR PUBLICATION OF THESE PLANS IS PROHIBITED WITHOUT WRITTEN CONSENT OF KIKUCHI & ASSOCIATES.

SEA CREST SCHOOL

901 ARNOLD WAY, HALF MOON BAY, CA
LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS

LOCATION MAP PROJECT DIRECTORY

PROPERTY ONNER: SEA CREST SCHOOL

PROJECT LOCATION: a401 ARNOLD NAY
HALF MOON BAY, CA 94019
(650) 126-8265

LANDSCAPE

ARCHITECT: KIKUCHI + KANKEL DESIGN GROUP
T30 MILL STREET
HALF MOON BAY, CA 94019
(650) 7126-1100

SHEET INDEX

PROJECT o - COVER SHEET, MAPS, PROJECT DATA & NOTES

SITE

Pacific
Ocean

1.0 - EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN
1.1 -  EROSION CONTROL DETAILS
1.2 - EXISTING CONDITIONS IMAGES
20 - SITE PLAN
21 - LANDSCAPE PLAN

@ 22 - CONCEPT IMAGES
23 - CONCEPT IMAGES

e 30 - CONCEPTUAL GRADING PLAN

GENERAL NOTES

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK INVOLVES LANDSCAPE
IMPROVEMENTS TO THE INTERIOR PLAY AND ASSEMBLY AREAS OF THE SCHOOLYARD. NEW
PAVED TERRACES WILL EXPAND THE LEVEL AREA ADJACENT TO THE SCHOOL BUILDING AND
WILL SERVE DUAL FUNCTIONS AS OUTDOOR CLASSROOMS AND/OR LUNCH AREAS. NEW
TERRACES WILL BE SEPARATED FROM EACH OTHER BY BROAD STEFPS THAT LEAD TO THE
EXISTING ASPHALT PLAY YARD. RAISED PLANTERS AND SMALL TREES WILL PROVIDE
SEPARATION FROM THE NEN TERRACES AND PLAY AREAS.

THE EXISTING ASPHALT PLAY YARD WILL UNDERGO A MINOR REORGANIZATION, WITH THE
EXISTING BASKETBALL COURT MOVED ADJACENT TO THE EXISTING GYM, AND ADDITIONAL
PLANTING AREAS ADDED IN ITS PLACE. THE EXISTING TURF FIELD WILL BE REPLACED AND
REDUCED IN SIZE, AND WILL UNDERGO A SIGNIFICANT RESHAPING.

THE EXISTING PLAY STRUCTURES AWILL ALSO BE MOVED ADJACENT TO THE GYM, JUST NORTH l

OF THE RELOCATED BASKETBALL COURT. IN ITS PLACE A SMALL AMPHITHEATER WILL BE

INSTALLED, NITH CONCRETE BENCH SEATING STEPPING BACK INTO AN ARTIFICIAL TURF ‘
BERM, TO PROVIDE ASSEMBLY AND ADDITIONAL OUTDOOR LEARNING ENVIRONMENTS.

A NEW GRAVEL PATH WILL SURROUND THE NEN LAWN AND AMPHITHEATER, IMPROVING SITE

CIRCULATION AND UNIVERSAL ACCESS. NEN PLANTING AREAS AND NEW IRRIGATION NILL BE p

INSTALLED THROUGHOUT THE SCOPE OF NWORK AREA.

NO CHANGES TO EXISTING SITE STRUCTURES ARE PROPOSED. NO CHANGES TO VEHICULAR
CIRCULATION, PARKING, PEDESTRIAN ACCESS, OR THE ARNOLD WAY FRONTAGE ARE

PROPOSED. NO CHANGES TO THE INTENSITY OF SITE USE OR SCHOOL ENROLLMENT ARE . :
oo Kikuchi + Kankel
[ ]
ADDITIONAL NOTES: De Slgn Group
- HOURS OF CONSTRUCTION: THE HOURS OF CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE LIMITED
TO T:00 AM. TO 5:00 P.M. MONDAY THROUGH FRIDAY; WITH SPECIAL REQUEST, _
£:00 AM. TO 6:00 P.M. SATURDAY. ALL INTERNAL COMBUSTION ENGINE-DRIVEN Landscape Architecture
EQUIPMENT SHALL BE FITTED WITH MUFFLERS THAT ARE IN GOOD CONDITION. Environmental Design
- SPILL CLEANUP: ANY TOXIC MATERIAL SPILL WITHIN THE CONSTRUCTION AREA Site Planning
NOTE: THIS PLAN IS ILLUSTRATIVE
ONLT AND SHOULD NOT BE USED SHALL BE PROPERTY CLEANED, REMOVED AND DISPOSED OF PER CITY
STANDARDS.
FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES. 730 Mill Street
DISCOVERY OF ARCHAEOLOGICAL RESOURCES: IF HISTORIC OR Half Moon Bay, CA 94019
ARCHAEOLOGICAL RESOURCES ARE UNCOVERED DURING GRADING ACTIVITIES,
ALL WORK SHALL IMMEDIATELY STOP AND THE CONTRACTOR SHALL (650) 726-7100
IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE CITY TO RETAIN A QUALIFIED ARCHAEOLOGIST. AT Fax (650) 726-7677
SITE DATA SCOPE OF WORK AREA CALCULATIONS CUT/FILL CALCULATIONS THE 'S EXCENSE, THE GUALIFED ARGHAEOLOSIST ALL FERFORM AX (050
ARCHAEOLOGICAL SURVEY AND DEVELOP MITIGATION MEASURES TO PROTECT www.kkdesigngroup.com
ARCHAEOLOGICAL MATERIALS.
APN: O56- 210-260 EXISTING  EXISTING EXISTING TO NEW OR NEW ESTIMATED MATERIAL REQUIRED:
TOTAL TO REMAIN BE REMOVED REPLACED TOTAL DIFFERENCE . ALL NWORK SHALL CONFORM TO LOCAL BUILDING CODES ¢ ORDINANCES. ALL
ZONING: R-3 (MULTIPLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL) AMPHITHEATER/BERM: 500 YARDS FILL REQUIRED PERMITS AND NOTIFICATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE
LAND-USE DESIGNATION: RESIDENTIAL - MEDIUM DENSITY HARDSCAPE (DRAIN ROCK ONLY -- NO SOIL MATERIAL) OBTAINED FROM THE CITY OF HALF MOON BAY PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF
ASHPALT 13,389 8,406 4 983 A 4 19 13 -1 ANY NORK. ALL WORK SHALL BE INSPECTED BY RESPECTIVE AGENCIES AS
GROSS LOT AREA: 164,344 SQ. FT. (3.77ac) CONCRETE 2,266 o 2,266 4,934 4,934 +2,668 TERRACES: 104 YARDS FILL REQUIRED BY CONSTRUCTION PERMITS.
STRUCTURES: 41,417 5Q. FT. (25.2%) STRUCTURES (SHEDS) 204 o 204 o -20 (BASE MATERIAL BELOW PAVING)
HARDSCAPE: 50911 Q. FT.  (31.0%) 50 YARDS SOIL . SEE GENERAL REQUIREMENTS, GENERAL CONDITIONS & SPECIFICATIONS FOR - = 50/5015
SOFTSCAPE: 12,016 5Q. FT.* (43.86%) HARDSCAPE TOTAL 15,854 8,406 7,455 a,7249 18,135 +2,276 (RAISED PLANTERS) OTHER REQUIREMENTS. Revisions: AGENCY COMMENTS
* SOFTSCAPE AREAS INCLUDE PLANTING AREAS AND OTHER SOFTSCAPE ALL OTHER SITE IMPROVEMENTS ARE TO APPROXIMATELY MATCH Date- 1/14/2017 PLAN CHECK.
UNMAINTAINED, PERMEABLE AREAS (MULCH, GRAVEL, CREEK, ETC.) LAAN 29,81 A Q 4,047 17,000 A” < 1223 EXISTING GRADES. '
PLANTING AREAS 8,852 1,397 1,505 18,464 19,811 +10,954
SCOPE OF WORK AREA: 68552 SQ. FT. (SEE CALCS AT RIGHT) MULCH/OTHER PERMEABLE 13,944 © 13,944 13606 13,606 -550 Sheef No.
SOFTSCAPE TOTAL 52,693 1,397 51,346 49,070 0
SCOPE OF WORK TOTAL 66,552
1 Of g




RE-USE, REPRODUCTION OR PUBLICATION OF THESE PLANS IS PROHIBITED WITHOUT WRITTEN CONSENT OF KIKUCHI + KANKEL DESIGN GROUP.

EXISTING SMALL MONTEREY CYPRESS TREE HEDGE

(<12"®P) TO REMAIN ALONG ENTIRE PROPERTY LINE.
PRUNE FOR FORM AND HEALTH.

EXISTING TEMPORARY
STORAGE SHEDS TO

REMAIN

INDICATES APPROXIMATE LIMITS OF

N&5°45'00"E

PROPOSED SITE RENOVATIONS

EXISTING 7' TALL
WOOD FENCE TO
REMAIN

EXISTING t&6' CHAIN LINK

FENCE TO BE

REMOVED

APPROXIMATE LIMITS OF
EXISTING VEGETATION ALONG
CREEK BANK AS MAPPED IN
THE PROJECT'S BIOLOGICAL /
RESOURCES EVALUATION

o 0 o o o o

EXISTING CONCRETE

PAVING TO REMAIN

INDICATES ORIGIN OF
EXISTING CONDITIONS
IMAGE, TYP. SEE SHEET L1.2.

KOHRS FAMILY
CENTER

(EXISTING -- NO CHANGE)

NEB°45'00'E _ 578.19

—

— e o—

Y Y
H v R, ~ N Vv N - Y ~ Y, N &N v N ~ ¥V
| , EXISTING (1 Of 4) BASKETBALL ~ v - v S v
H POLE ¢ BACKBOARD TO BE v Yoy N N v Yoy
& N
L REMOVED ¢ REL~OCAJED Y Yo EXISTING PORTABLE SHEDS ¥ Yoy Vo
v N X ¥ TO BE REMOVED v Yg Yooy
H I- ~ Yy YA\ Yoy ;\ Y Yoy Yy Y
N R, Vv W,
EXISTING STORM SENER = = N\ — — T e
s 11 MANHOLE TO REMAIN—— T e N DI A N
H EXISTING CONCRETE o el T e XN A N
PAVING TO REMAIN S N TN SV AT e
7 \ R e . z - \n)(\‘ _1\-\\/ /\ ! /—‘\/'tj
H r L | X . . - \/_’;<\\ > \"
¢ g, |
— B %@ : @ -
"\ s R ) e e =
EXISTING TRASH EXISTING 16'-O" WIDE FIRE X e s N A 0200E | 19634
ENCLOSURE . Nt .
ACCESS TO REMAIN OPEN - R -
TO REMAIN — % I B s | [
ef < L EXISTING SMALL PITTOSPORUM
> N B 1S GROVE (<12'®) TO BE REMOVED
I EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT N—— ‘—/ gl N ' S
TO REMAIN q :
i
| — - s §
)
H o w CCE S M" —.
|
H \r\&
L - ] | | | EXISTING SMALL
| SHRUBS TO BE
I REMOVED
[
I CUT LINE TO FOLLOW EXISTING EXPANSION | |
! AND/OR SCORE JOINTS. VERIFY EXACT —  EXISTING +T TALL
LIMITS OF DEMOLITION IN THE FILED.
[ EXISTING PARKING LOT _ CONCRETE AALL W/
’ TO REMAIN [ LATTICE TOP TO REMAIN
|
J N 2 | EXISTING 6' TALL CHAIN LINK
FENCE TO REMAIN
b | ] I ¢ EXISTING SHRUBS/SCREENING
H TO BE REMOVED/REPLACED
|
H SEA CREST SCHOOL
|
f H oA (EXISTING -- NO CHANGE) EXISTING CONDITIONS
H " PLAN LEGEND
[ EXISTING SIDENALK
f TO REMAIN
n CONCRETE STEPS AND/OR PAVING TO
> | | - BE REMOVED. BASEROCK CAN REMAIN
WHERE NOT IN CONFLICT WITH PROPOSED
H IMPROVEMENTS. VERIFY IN FIELD.
| (APPROX. 2,266 SQ. FT.)
j | |
[ ﬁéggzﬁTFTanREMAIN | | in EXISTING ASPHALT PAVING & BASE TO BE
¢ ! REMOVED. (APPROX. 4,983 SQ. FT.
8 ———EXISTING WATER rg EMOVED. ( ' )
@ I | | | | METERS TO REMAIN Jf o —
o 20| EXISTING BARK MULCH GROUNDCOVER TO
ol BE REMOVED (APPROX. 8,409 SQ. FT.)
al . Wl J L A | I
: 4 o ui EXISTING WALKNAY Q Y
3 ® | ¥ 0 M EXISTING TURF TO BE REMOVED
in ~ o 5 (APPROX. 24,891 5Q. FT.)
Sh— — - @ 5 > N o —=
R _ 7 - = ] e 0 = = 2 OO0 —o—o—o—o o —a— 0  Cewol z —_o"
S == = == == = | SILT FENCING: 2'-O" MIN. HT. /)
-~ ~arranans FILTER FABRIC STAPLED TO 2x2
h WOOD STAKES @ 4'-0" O.C. MAX. w
EXISTING $6' TALL CHAIN LINK FENCE N&5°45'00"E  340.00' x EXISTING STORM DRAIN INLET 295
§ ROLLING GATES TO REMAIN EXISTING PLANTINGS PROTECTION PER w
TO REMAN EXISTING CITY SIDEAALK
EXISTING CITY SIDENALK, CURB. GUTTER 10 REMAN

- — — — CURB, GUTTER TO REMAIN

NOTE: NO CHANGES PROPOSED
TO ARNOLD WAY FRONTAGE

EXISTING PLANTINGS
TO REMAIN

NOTE: SEE COVER SHEET, LO,
FOR COMPLETE SITE DATA
AND AREA CALCULATIONS.

N

P“ .
Z
/ [ a
v A
z ! P
’m fi
5 Q
0 %
- o
Na4°O2'C0"E 198.74" ﬁ
&
| v
Q
X

EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN NOTES

PROPOSED SITE IMPROVEMENTS ARE SHOWN IN A SHADED LINE BEHIND EXISTING
CONDITIONS. SEE OTHER DRANINGS FOR SPECIFICS.

ALL EXISTING ITEMS (PAVING, STRUCTURES, OTHER DEVELOPMENT) SHONWN SHALL
REMAIN UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

ALL MATERIAL TO BE REMOVED, AND ALL WNASTE GENERATED DURING REMOVAL
ACTIVITIES, SHALL BE DEPOSITED AT AN APPROVED DISPOSAL FACILITY UNLESS
OTHERWISE APPROVED. ALL MATERIALS CAFPABLE OF BEING RECYCLED SHALL BE
DIVERTED FROM THE LANDFILL PER SAN MATEO COUNTY RECYCLE NORKS
STANDARDS. IF ANY HAZARDOUS WASTE 1S GENERATED OR DISCOVERED DURING
REMOVAL ACTIVITIES, IT SHALL BE DISPOSED OF AT A SUITABLE LICENSED DISPOSAL
FACILITY.

THINNERS, SOLVENTS, FUEL AND OTHER HAZARDOUS MATERIALS SHALL NOT BE
DISCHARGED ANYWHERE ON THE SITE OR ADJACENT PROPERTIES, NOR INTO STORM
OR SANITARY SEWNERS. DISCHARGE OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS INTO RECEIVING
WATERS IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED.

NO DEMOLITION OR CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS, DEBRIS, OR NASTE SHALL BE
PLACED OR STORED WHERE IT MAY ENTER SENSITIVE HABITAT, RECEIVING WATERS
OR A STORM DRAIN, OR BE SUBJECT TO NIND OR RUNOFF EROSION AND DISPERSION.

EROSION &
SEDIMENT CONTROL NOTES

INLET PROTECTION: ALL EXISTING CATCHBASINS AND STORM DRAIN INLETS IN THE VICINITY
OF THE PROJECT AREA SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM SEDIMENT-LADEN RUNOFF. INLET
GRATE SHALL BE COVERED WITH FILTER FABRIC AND SHALL BE HELD IN PLACE BY A
CONTINUOUS ROCK BAG BARRIER. FILTER FABRIC SHALL EXTEND 1'-6" MIN. BEYOND
EDGES OF GRATE OPENING.

SILT FENCING: ALL LOCATIONS LOCATED DOWNHILL OF THE PROJECT AREA SHALL BE
PROTECTED FROM RUN-OFF BY THE USE OF SILT FENCING. IN THE AREAS SHONWN ON THE
PLAN 2x2 WOODEN CONSTRUCTION STAKES SHALL BE INSTALLED AT 4'-O" CENTER. ON
THE SIDE OF THE FENCE EXPECTED TO RECEIVE RUNOFF, A 4'W x 4'D TRENCH SHALL BE
DUG 4" IN FRONT OF THE STAKES. A 4'-0" WIDE STRIP OF EXTRA-STRENGTH FILTER
FABRIC SHALL BE LAID IN THE TRENCH, ACROSS THE GROUND, AND SHALL RISE TO A
MINIMUM OF 32'-0" ABOVE THE GRADE, AND SHALL BE SECURED TO THE WOODEN STAKES
USING A MINIMUM OF 4 HEAVY-DUTY NIRE STAFPLES AT LEAST 1-1/2" LONG. TRENCH SHALL
BE BACKFILLED TO SECURE BOTTOM OF FABRIC.

TEMPORARY SOIL STOCKPILES: IF USED, TEMPORARY SOIL STOCKPILES SHALL BE
COVERED WITH A SHEET OF 10 MIL THICK BLACK PLASTIC OVER ENTIRE PILE. IF
STOCKPILE 1S LARGER THAN AVAILABLE SHEET, MULTIPLE SHEETS MAY BE USED TO
COVER ENTIRE PILE. WHEN USING MULTIPLE SHEETS, UPPER SHEET(S) SHALL OVERLAP
LOWER SHEET(S) BY 3'-0" MINIMUM. PLASTIC SHEETING SHALL BE SECURED WITH
SANDBAGS AT 6'-0" MAX. ACROSS THE ENTIRE PILE, TIED TOGETHER WITH ROPE TO
PREVENT SLIPPAGE. ENTIRE PILE SHALL BE SURROUNDED BY STRAW WATTLE, WEIGHTED
DONN BY ROCK BAGS @ 4'-0" O.C. MAX.,, OR STAKED TO GRADE. SEE DETAIL C/L1.1 FOR
MORE INFORMATION.

GENERAL EROSION CONTROL NOTES: ALL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES

SHALL BE INSPECTED AT THE BEGINNING AND END OF EACH WORKDAY. IF EROSION
CONTROL MEASURES ARE DISTURBED, ALL WORK SHALL STOP UNTIL REPAIRS ARE MADE.

=

Kikuchi + Kankel
Design Group

Landscape Architecture
Environmental Design
Site Planning

730 Mill Street
Half Moon Bay, CA 94019
(650) 726-7100

www.klkdesigngroup.com
]

LANDSCAPE
IMPROVEMENTS

SEA CREST
SCHOOL

901 ARNOLD WAY
HALF MOON BAY, CA

APN: 056-210-280

5/30/2015

Revisions: AGENCY COMMENTS

Dafe: 11/14/2017 PLAN CHECK

Scale:
1/20" = 1'-0"
Drawn By:
TWNC

EXISTING
CONDITIONS PLAN

Sheet No.

L1

Of




RE-USE, REPRODUCTION OR PUBLICATION OF THESE PLANS IS PROHIBITED WITHOUT WRITTEN CONSENT OF KIKUCHI + KANKEL DESIGN GROUP.

ROCK BAG
112" x 24" LONG

FILTER FABRIC
TO COVER INLET

EXISTING GRADE

EXISTING INLET GRATE. FILTER
FABRIC SHALL EXTEND
ACROSS ¢ BELONW GRATE.

FILTER FABRIC TO EXTEND
1'-6" MIN. BEYOND EDGES
OF GRATE OPENING.

@ EXISTING STORM DRAIN INLET PROTECTION DETAIL NO SCALE

2 X 2" WOOD STAKE: STAKES SPACED A MAXIMUM OF
4 O.C. DRIVE SECURELY INTO THE GROUND TO A INSIDE

SECTION

DEPTH OF 12-18". POSITION ON DONNSTREAM SIDE
OF FENCE. (END STAKES TO BE 2 STAKES DRIVEN

)} OUTSIDE

TIGHTLY TOGETHER AND SECURED WITH NIRE AT TOP).

FILTER FABRIC: EXTRA STRENGTH WOVEN
POLYPROPYLENE, PER SPECS. 4'-0O" WIDE STRIP FROM
CONTINUOUS ROLL. FILTER FABRIC SHALL BE LAID IN THE
TRENCH ACROSS THE GROUND AND SHALL RISE TO A
MINIMUM OF 3'-0" ABOVE THE GRADE. SECURELY ATTACH
TO UPSLOPE SIDE OF STAKES USING A MINIMUM OF (4)
HEAVY-DUTY WIRE STAPLES AT LEAST 1-1/2" LONG.

TRENCH: EXCAVATE TO APPROX.
4" WIDE X 4" DEPTH, 4" ANAY
FROM STAKES, UPSLOPE OF
BARRIER. FILL WNITH
COMPACTED BACKFILL.

%ﬂ

%
N

NOTE: ALL LOCATIONS LOCATED DOWNHILL OF THE PROJECT AREA
SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM RUN-OFF BY THE USE OF SILT FENCEING.
TO BE SETBACK FROM TOE OF SLOPE, TRENCHED AND KEYED IN, AND
MAINTAINED DURING AND IMMEDIATELY AFTER RAIN EVENTS. HOLES
FROM STAKES TO BE BACKFILLED AND COMPACTED AT FINAL
COMPLETION. ANY SEDIMENT ACCUMULATION TO BE INCORPORATED
INTO DESIGNATED PLANTING AREAS, DRESSED, PLANTED OR SEEDED.

(B) SILT FENCE SECTION

HEIGHT ABOVE GRADE

FINISH GRADE
(UNDISTURBED SOIL)

12"™MIN. -

f

SANDBAGS: @ 6' O.C. ALL DIRECTIONS OVER ENTIRE
PILE ¢ @ BASE PERIMETER. TIE TOGETHER W/ ROPE
AS REQD TO PREVENT SLIPPING.

SOIL COVER: MIN. 10 MIL. BLACK PLASTIC
OVER ENTIRE PILE. IF PILE IS LARGER
THAN SHEET, OVERLAP UPPER PIECE 2'
MIN. OVER LOWER PIECE.

STOCKIPLED SOIL

AN

frec

NS NS
i) /\\//\\//\\//\\//Q\/\\//\\//\\// //\\/.

A A D
AT R
= |
1=

DN OO

NSNS

SN
NN NN NN e

%

ENTIRE PILE SHALL BE SURROUNDED BY
STRAN NATTLE, WEIGHTED DOWN BY ROCK
BAGS @ 4'-0" O.C. MAX. OR STAKED TO
GRADE W/ 2"'x2"x24" LONG WOODEN STAKES

EXISTING GRADE,
WHERE OCCURS

SCALE: 1" - 1-0"

=

Kikuchi + Kankel
Design Group

Landscape Architecture
Environmental Design
Site Planning

730 Mill Street
Half Moon Bay, CA 94019
(650) 726-7100

www.kkdesigngroup.com
-

LANDSCAPE
IMPROVEMENTS

SEA CREST
SCHOOL

901 ARNOLD WAY
HALF MOON BAY, CA

APN: 056-210-280

Revisions:

Date: 11/14/2017 PLAN CHECK

Scale:
AS NOTED

Drawn By:
TNC

EROSION &
SEDIMENT CONTROL
DETAILS

Sheet No.

L1.1

Of




@ VIEW OF SCHOOLYARD/BUILDING FROM SOUTHEAST CORNER OF GYM @ VIEW OF CREEK AREA FROM CENTER OF EXISTING PLAY AREA

RE-USE, REPRODUCTION OR PUBLICATION OF THESE PLANS IS PROHIBITED WITHOUT WRITTEN CONSENT OF KIKUCHI + KANKEL DESIGN GROUP.

=

Kikuchi + Kankel
Design Group

Landscape Architecture
Environmental Design
Site Planning

730 Mill Street
Half Moon Bay, CA 94019
(650) 726-7100

www.klkdesigngroup.com
]

LANDSCAPE
IMPROVEMENTS

SEA CREST
SCHOOL

901 ARNOLD WAY
HALF MOON BAY, CA

APN: 056-210-280

Revisions:

Date: 11/14/2017 PLAN CHECK

Scale:
NO SCALE

Drawn By:
TNC

EXISTING
CONDITIONS IMAGES

Sheet No.

L1.2

f




RE-USE, REPRODUCTION OR PUBLICATION OF THESE PLANS IS PROHIBITED WITHOUT WRITTEN CONSENT OF KIKUCHI + KANKEL DESIGN GROUP.

EXISTING SMALL MONTEREY CYPRESS TREE HEDGE
(<12"®P) TO REMAIN ALONG ENTIRE PROPERTY LINE.
PRUNE FOR FORM AND HEALTH.

EXISTING TEMPORARY
STORAGE SHEDS TO
REMAIN

N&5°45'00"E $756.704

INDICATES APPROXIMATE LIMITS OF

PROPOSED SITE RENOVATIONS

NEW PERMEABLE GRAVEL PATH

EXPANDED AREAS ALONG THE PATH CREATE
CONTAINED OUTDOOR CLASSROOMS OR
RECESS HANGOUT' SPACES. MOVEABLE
SEATING AND/OR SMALL TABLES ALLON

FOR A VARIETY OF USES.

APPROXIMATE LIMITS OF /
EXISTING VEGETATION ALONG
CREEK BANK AS MAPPED IN

THE PROJECT'S BIOLOGICAL /
RESOURCES EVALUATION

AMPHITHEATER/BERM (6000 SQ. FT.):
ASSEMBLY ¢ OUTDOOR CLASSROOM AREA
WITH STEPPED CONCRETE SEATALLS SET

N

INTO A 26' TALL ARTIFICIAL TURF BERM \

\‘/ z
oo o oo /

2

T

NEN OR EXISTING PLAY STRUCTURE(S)

RELOCATED AND SET ON NEN
SAFETY BARK MULCH SURFACING

EXISTING 5'-O" WIDE CONCRETE
WALKWAY TO REMAIN

KOHRS FAMILY
CENTER

(EXISTING -- NO CHANGE)

v v v

v v
v v v

v

v
v
v

v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v

v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v NEW TURF FlEL v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v
v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v D v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v

v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v +1—, OOO 5@ FT
v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v v - ' . .

v v

e
oq@ /
Y /
«!
PA 4 ) /
/4 /
/ "QUIET" GARDEN: NATIVE
/4 NOODLAND-STYLE PLANTINGS AND
Z / INFORMAL SEATING PROVIDES A
/ SPACE FOR QUIET REFLECTION
O] , l
[
N .
Yz |
o 23 |
[

v v v v v v v v v v v v v v

<

N

CREATIVE PLAY & NATURAL GARDEN AREA:
NATIVE PLANTINGS AND INFORMAL MULCHED

! PATHS SURROUND CREEK OVERLOOKS AND
H SMALL CLEARINGS FOR OUTDOOR
[ CLASSROOM AND PLAY OPPORTUNITIES
H { NEAN OPEN WIRE FENCE ALONG TOP OF
CREEK BANK. BOTTOM t&" OF FENCE TO
& |1 F ' REMAIN OPEN TO ALLOW FOR THE
ATIO PASSAGE OF SMALL ANIMALS.
I SEA CREST SCHOOL LOGO AND WAVE ' l :
PATTERN PAINTED ON PLAY YARD )
I —
H | z [ g
¢ [ =~ S = g ﬁ &
= - A WY ° PA 5 9
H \ = ol ™ _’\%\-« % .
— = J e - — - - i
7 — — — — - = - - 1 o 1 " 1
EXISTING TRASH e m & oA : | N84°0200"E  198.74 n
NCLOSURE EXISTING 16'-0" WIDE FIRE N A OO0 E 19614 K )\ 3
ACCESS TO REMAIN OPEN : J 3
TO REMAN——1) I A
N Q
; AN
(\\r 3 Z
D D T
H 55 I ~~— NEW AD.A-ACCESSIBLE, COLORED
¢ //—\‘ A Y ‘ T < CONCRETE RAMP IMPROVES
o o ﬂ : s 5 ACCESSIBILITY TO SCHOOLYARD.
l ue 4 B&N e S INSTALL HANDRAILS AS REQUIRED. SlTE P LAN LEG E N D
& \ s
f = E I||§ T MIDDLE SCHOOL TERRACE ($1300 SQ. FT.):
H TS 5 =X | l / _j ' z EXPANDED COLORED CONCRETE PAVING w/ , ' INDICATES PROPOSED NEN AND/OR MODIFIED CONCRETE
’ N AT ~ | . % I-23 BROAD STEPS TO ASPHALT PLAY AREA . % PAVING. ALL PAVING NIDTH VARIES BY LOCATION, TYPICALLY
= ~ NEN GUARDRAILS/HANDRAILS AS REQUIRED. RN 9
i z = T e = 5 i
[ 5 Y : EXISTING +T' TALL CONCRETE WALL SCORE JOINT, TYP. (VARIES PER LOCATION)
| | (224 | W/ LATTICE TOP TO REMAIN
w
LIMITS OF NEAN OR RESURFACED EXISTING ASPHALT PAVING PAINTED w/
[ | BALL COURT STRIPING AND DECORATIVE PATTERNS
EXISTING
NALKNAY | |
H TO REMAIN PA| NEN SEATWALL/RETAINING WALL. 18" TYP. HIGH; CONCRETE W/
| Z , | STUCCO FINISH
LONER SCHOOL TERRACES (350 SQ. FT. EA):
I EXISTING PARKING LOT - _ E;ii‘;i"gﬁg'iﬂ;(’pﬁgi EXPANDED COLORED CONCRETE PAVING W/
L]
’ TO REMAIN INTO RAIN BARRELS FOR BUILT-IN BENCH SEATING. RAISED PLANTERS | | SEATWALL: 15" HIGH; CONCRETE w/ STUCCO FINISH
H L ANDSCAPE USE AND SMALL TREES FRAME NEN BROAD STEPS | EXISTING &' TALL CHAIN LINK
¢ TO ASPHALT PLAY AREA. FENCE TO REMAIN
b | [ [ PROPOSED NEN TREE: 24" BOX TYP.; SOME SIZES LARGER. SEE
I LANDSCAPE PLAN, SHEET L2.1, FOR TYPICAL SPECIES.
H H— NEAN COLORED CONCRETE
SEA CREST SCHOOL I WNALKNAY (£8637 SQFT)
It H (EXISTING -- NO CHANGE)
H INDICATES LOCATION OF CONCEPT MODEL IMAGES.
I ! SEE SHEETS L2.2 AND L2.3.
t PA
5 1 ] 1L - PA PLANTING AREA
H RPA RAISED PLANTING AREA
[
’ [
I EXISTING FIRE | | in
: HYDRANT TO REMAIN N
0 :
31 1, —EXISTNG WATER B SITE PLAN NOTES
0 | | | | METERS TO REMAIN jf N
(\$}
11 - j \__ o |L =] tz NO MODIFICATIONS TO EXISTING SITE STRUCTURES ARE PROPOSED. NO
< o N o CHANGES TO VEHICULAR CIRCULATION, PARKING, PEDESTRIAN ACCESS, OR
Q % ou EXISTING WALKNAY | O ARNOLD WNAY FRONTAGE ARE PROPOSED.
) o = _,-;.M |
¢ in o s
N I X SEE SHEET L1 FOR EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS
R 0 o o —07\E — O———0- J ° o o o o %
2 . - - - = - = SEE SHEET L3 FOR CONCEPTUAL GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN
EXISTING &' TALL CHAIN LINK FENCE N85°45'00"E  340.00'
¢ ROLLING GATES TO REMAIN
EXISTING CITY SIDENALK, Eﬁg;'Nguﬂ;;ﬁgEgé‘;:N

CURB, GUTTER TO REMAIN

NOTE: NO CHANGES PROPOSED
TO ARNOLD WAY FRONTAGE

=

Kikuchi + Kankel
Design Group

Landscape Architecture
Environmental Design
Site Planning

730 Mill Street
Half Moon Bay, CA 94019
(650) 726-7100

www.klkdesigngroup.com

LANDSCAPE
IMPROVEMENTS

SEA CREST
SCHOOL

901 ARNOLD WAY
HALF MOON BAY, CA

APN: 056-210-280

5/30/2015

Revisions: AGENCY COMMENTS

Dafe: 11/14/2017 PLAN CHECK

Scale:
1/20" = 1'-0O"

Drawn By:
TNC

SITE PLAN

Sheet No.

L2

Of




N&5°45'00"E

EXISTING SMALL MONTEREY CYPRESS TREE HEDGE
(<12"®P) TO REMAIN ALONG ENTIRE PROPERTY LINE.

PRUNE FOR FORM AND HEALTH.

INDICATES APPROXIMATE LIMITS OF
PROPOSED SITE RENOVATIONS

\

ORNAMENTAL TREES:
(26 TOTAL) LONG ARCS OF SMALL, FLOWERING TREES FOR
SEASONAL COLOR AND INTEREST. 24" BOX MINIMUM SIZE -- e.g.:
ARBUTUS UNEDO (Strawberry Tree)
CERCIS ANADENSIS 'FOREST PANSY' (Eastern Redbud)
CRATAEGUS PHAENOPYRUM (Washington Thorn)
PRUNUS SERRULATA 'PINK STAR' (Flowering Cherry)

ARTIFICIAL TURF BERM ¢
AMPHITHEATER AREA

.
S —

LAWN BORDER PLANTINGS:
DURABLE, ABUSE-TOLERANT PLANTINGS PROVIDE ATTRACTIVE

SEPARATION FROM PROPERTY PATH, €.9.:
CALAMAGROSTIS NUTKAENSIS (Pacific Reed Grass) - 1 GAL
HEBE X 'AUTUMN GLORY" (Hebe) - 5 GAL
HELICTOTRICHON SEMPERVIRENS (Blue Oat Grass) - 1 GAL
SALVIA x CLEVELANDII (Cleveland Sage) - 1 GAL

KOHRS FAMILY
CENTER

RAISED PLANTERS:

DURABLE, ORNAMENTAL PLANTINGS PROVIDE

SEPARATION FROM ACTIVE PLAY ZONES, e.g.:
ANIGOZANTHOS x BIG RED' (Kangaroo Paw) - 1 GAL
ERIGERON GLAUCUS (Seaside Daisy) - 1 GAL
FESTUCA CALIFORNICA (California Fescue) - 1 GAL
SALVIA X CLEVELANDII (Cleveland Sage) - 1 GAL

SOD LAWN

s

DROUGHT TOLERANT '‘BOLERO PLUS'
DNARF FESCUE/BLUEGRASS BLENDz

|

. /‘ 3 = Ve =7
& R L Ty
LT N e
it Aol
|1 // Y 4 3
TR e PR
||‘ “... \. ( (
\ \e |- |‘ ,
! | |ln"\ y “ 4 o 'Y",
l I. e |.‘ s i
| e 7 \.
| : o
L .
l l‘- { \ li i : .
A il / |
I I g % " -
| l .' o \’
bl 1 \
rf . \ ;_!/'/V /' o % ;
\ N R :
S a8 ,/ % "",
RN -

APPROXIMATE LIMITS OF EXISTING
VEGETATION ALONG INTERMITTENT
CREEK BANK

‘..l‘i- . ot A

—

j =7
/O /

85°4500"E _ 578.149

/

/

/
QUIET GARDEN:
NATIVE, WOODLAND-STYLE
PLANTINGS AND INFORMAL SEATING
FOR QUIET REFLECTION, e.g.:
CORNUS STOLONIFERA
(Red Stem Dogwood) - 5 GAL
DIPLACUA AURANTIACUS
(sticky Monkey Flower) - 1 GAL
RIS DOUGLASIANA
(Pacific Coast Iris) - 1 GAL
HEUCHERA MAXIMA
(Island Alum Root) - 1 GAL

|

/

&
A

Kikuchi + Kankel
Design Group

Landscape Architecture
Environmental Design
Site Planning

730 Mill Street
Half Moon Bay, CA 94019
(650) 726-7100

www.klkdesigngroup.com
]

LANDSCAPE
IMPROVEMENTS

| _ : >
WESTRINGIA FLORIBUNDA (Coast RosemaRy) - 5 GAL L : N %3 ; N i C( 4 ] o
N BN ’ 16 %7 s &€ )8 :
I , : PN o
P 2 -
p— “O200"E  198.74' A
N&4°02'00"E  198.74' % S EA C RE ST
n J 2
N Q
| ! : SCHOOL
Q
3 / 4 ‘ —— GATHERING TREE: § CREATIVE PLAY /| NATIVE
//‘\‘ o men § < LARGE, ICONIC, 'FOCAL' TREE SHELTERS INTIMATE, QUIET GARDEN.:
= R GARDEN SPACE WITH INFORMAL SEATING AND PATHAAY NATIVE PLANTINGS AND INFORMAL
V‘V"’ '{‘L NN o BELOW, 60" BOX OR LARGER SIZE -- e.g.: MULCHED PATHS LEAD TO CREEK 901 ARNOLD WAY
: "“ \ i Sy L QUERCUS ILEX (Holly Oak) OVERLOOKS AND SMALL HALF MOON BAY, CA
000‘ Yyl =a AN X ULMUS PARVIFOLIA (Chinese Elm) CLEARINGS, e.g.:
_ VAN s AT AN 2 ZELKOVA SERRATA 'HAIKA' (Sawleaf Zelkova) BACCHARIS 'PIGEON POINT' APN: 056-210-280
V , < N ,( (Dwarf Coyote Bush) - 5 GAL )
- - — L 1 CORNUS STOLONIFERA
| M (Red stem Dogwood) - 5
SAMBUCUS MEXICANA
‘ (Blue Elderberry) - 15 GAL
IRIS DOUGLASIANA
‘ (Pacific Coast Iris) - 1 GAL
RIBES SANGUINEUM
| ‘ (Pink Winter currant) - 5 GAL
PATIO TREES:
(5 TOTAL) SMALL EVERGREEN TREES TO FRAME
Tm - PATIOS AND PROVIDE SOME SHADE OVER OUTDOOR LAN DSC APE PLANN OTES
CLASSROOMS. 24" BOX MINIMUM SIZE - e.g.:
LOPHOSTEMON CONFERTUS (Brisbane Box)
LYONOTHAMNUS FLORIBUNDUS (Catalina Ironwood) SEE OTHER DRANINGS FOR FULL DESCRIPTIONS OF ALL EXISTING AND
l PROPOSED SITE ELEMENTS.
H ALL PROPOSED NEN LANDSCAPE AREAS WILL BE IRRIGATED:
SEA CREST SCHOOL : TURF AREAS WILL RECEVE REGULAR IRRIGATION VIA HIGH-EFFICIENCY
ROTORS.
ORNAMENTAL PLANTING AREAS WILL RECEIVE REGULAR IRRIGATION VIA
DRIP EMITTERS. PLANTING AREAS ADJACENT TO THE SCHOOL BUILDING
H WILL HAVE SUPPLEMENTAL IRRIGATION VIA NEA RAIN BARRELS (SEE SHEETS
L2.0 AND L3.0).
NEAN TREES WILL BE IRRIGATED SEPARATELY FROM THEIR ADJACENT
ln LANDSCAPE AREAS VIA SUBTERRANEAN BUBBLER TUBES.
- NATIVE LANDSCAPE AREAS ALONG THE CREEK BUFFER WILL RECEIVE
IRRIGATED VIA DRIP FOR AN ESTABLISHMENT PERIOD ONLY.
| Revisions. 5/30/2018
| - AGENCY COMMENTS
]
‘ o LANDSCAPE AREA CALCULATIONS Date: 11/14/2017 PLAN CHECK
8 g Scale:
o [ ‘ ‘ ‘ 'S EXISTING  EXISTING EXISTING TO NEWN OR NEW 1/20" = 1-0"
N I TOTAL TOREMAIN BE REMOVED REPLACED TOTAL DIFFERENCE
H LE ﬂ IL ul < S OFTECAPE Drawn By:
< | S = | Q TG
: 9 s A I GEoueA
S | O PLANTING AREAS 8,852 (g1 1505 18464 (19,211 10,954 I
in | %Or MULCH/OTHER PERMEABLE 13,944 13,944 13,606 13,606 -338
n
LANDSCAPE PLAN

RE-USE, REPRODUCTION OR PUBLICATION OF THESE PLANS IS PROHIBITED WITHOUT WRITTEN CONSENT OF KIKUCHI + KANKEL DESIGN GROUP.

NOTE: THE INFORMATION FROM THIS CHART COMES FROM THE SITE DATA CALCULATIONS SHOWN ON SHEET LO
AND |S REPEATED HERE FOR CONVENIENCE.

N&5°45'00"E 340.00'

Sheet No.

L2.1

Of




RE-USE, REPRODUCTION OR PUBLICATION OF THESE PLANS IS PROHIBITED WITHOUT WRITTEN CONSENT OF KIKUCHI + KANKEL DESIGN GROUP.

L—

@ VIEW OF THE NEW LOWER SCHOOL TERRACES FROM THE PLAY YARD

'.'.:('.

. B &
-
e

5 o i Y

Vil . F2@5d o) S oo

e | y ==

&

Ay

L4

-
—

@ ALTERNATE VIEW OF THE NEW LOWER SCHOOL TERRACES

=

Kikuchi + Kankel
Design Group

Landscape Architecture
Environmental Design
Site Planning

730 Mill Street
Half Moon Bay, CA 94019
(650) 726-7100

www.klkdesigngroup.com
]

LANDSCAPE
IMPROVEMENTS

SEA CREST
SCHOOL

901 ARNOLD WAY
HALF MOON BAY, CA

APN: 056-210-280

Revisions:

Date: 11/14/2017 PLAN CHECK

Scale:
NO SCALE

Drawn By:
TNC

CONCEPT IMAGES
(3D MODEL)

Sheet No.

L2.2

f




RE-USE, REPRODUCTION OR PUBLICATION OF THESE PLANS IS PROHIBITED WITHOUT WRITTEN CONSENT OF KIKUCHI + KANKEL DESIGN GROUP.

¥/
¥
i
|
|

@ VIEW FROM THE NEW MIDDLE SCHOOL TERRACE

@ VIEW OF THE NEW BERMED AMPHITHEATER

@
L
v
g N
. e

——
. .' ..
<& RN e TRES g

AN e e

T s T "“"'f'h\ 'kil\,

> 4. ,
|t e g Wl i T W oy

@ ALTERNATE VIEW OF THE NEW BERMED AMPHITHEATER

=

Kikuchi + Kankel
Design Group

Landscape Architecture
Environmental Design
Site Planning

730 Mill Street
Half Moon Bay, CA 94019
(650) 726-7100

www.klkdesigngroup.com
]

LANDSCAPE
IMPROVEMENTS

SEA CREST
SCHOOL

901 ARNOLD WAY
HALF MOON BAY, CA

APN: 056-210-280

Revisions:

Date: 11/14/2017 PLAN CHECK

Scale:
NO SCALE

Drawn By:
TNC

CONCEPT IMAGES
(3D MODEL)

Sheet No.

L2.3

f




RE-USE, REPRODUCTION OR PUBLICATION OF THESE PLANS IS PROHIBITED WITHOUT WRITTEN CONSENT OF KIKUCHI + KANKEL DESIGN GROUP.

APPROXIMATE LIMITS OF
EXISTING VEGETATION ALONG
CREEK BANK AS MAPPED IN
THE PROJECT'S BIOLOGICAL /
RESOURCES EVALUATION

EXISTING CONTOUR TO BE CHANGED

g
/
N85 45_00 E 57é7q _|#£7 ";4‘—_? ghw“h%%&ﬁ=ﬂ%&%ﬁﬁ##ﬂ#ﬁw&%ﬁ~Mﬁ%4 /; T gy —— — / _504-5_00 ”E j— 5—78—qu
. ® ° . ° ° . NG
. . L4 L4 L4 . ° ° ° ° b
. . 3 / ° . . ° . . . °
D / / ) ) / O‘( /
/
) v / FG 1020 /\Oq
;‘% HIGH POINT '/
1 . S P ittt = Q "/ /
95" 7
3 P / 95 > /
B iy N %
$ aq N\
e (RE 92.57) /
N RE 93.00 (NEN) 100 2P
I (IE 90.04) 0
101 \ / |
$ FS 94.4 a4 |
| / I
D
A9
A
| £[¥ ¥ P 2% | i
1.3% 5 %
<\ / | N
¢ |1 N 0
N \ &
0 | v
&
I FS 95,15 ’ | &
0)
i — TN 4
| [ KOHRS FAMILY o yd RE 9550 ) @’\Q’
CENTER IE 93.50 o
u S
FFE 95.27 | 3 | ,
> | '
L] EXISTING WALKWAY SLOPES _ / ES 95,75
2% ANAY FROM BUILDING g P 2o ¢ NO GENERAL GRADING/
y . = ) EXCAVATION PROPOSED |
I o TSNALE. N SHADED AREA |
L R FS 94.3 ¥
” |
|
1.3%
L FS 4.7 /\ \%‘ | | l
o
', I
D
! 0 M | S
X
{ S S l, ! q
I o z | c
b 0
eSSy h :
[ RE 94.70 & Q
> r \ <% 2 Yo ’9— = - - f
b —'— = ¢ z o Q § === — - = — = ] NE4°02'00'E  198.74' n
3 N J N g S N&4°02'00"E 198.74 3}3
i 7
’ | =3 FS 956 FS 95.6 22; o 9
O N—
| T =~ |/ —== | /|,z= ¢ i ABBREVIATION
G . :
2 Yo FS 95.0 |
LT | e o / L iy < . KEY CONCEPTUAL GRADING NOTES
Q
b (] ¥ O
L L X e FFE FINISHED FLOOR ELEV. THIS IS A CONCEPTUAL GRADING PLAN, SUBMITTED TO ILLUSTRATE THE GENERAL INTENT OF
f g ‘ g L 3 | < POST-IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTION STORMWATER FLOWS. COMPLETE GRADING AND DRAINAGE
[ |_ = 3+ 3 FS 98.0 g FS  FINISHED SURFACE ELEV. PLAN, INCLUDING PIPE SIZING AND ADDITIONAL SPOT GRADES, WILL BE INCLUDED FOR REVIEN AS
, &]_ (_’_ PART OF THE BUILDING PERMIT SUBMITTAL.
j A —| - FG  FINISHED GRADE ELEV.
, CH T| ,-_ m| DRAINAGE INTENT: [T IS THE INTENT OF THESE DRANINGS TO PROVIDE POSITIVE DRAINAGE IN ALL
‘/2;} FS a8.0 | I RE/IE RIM/INVERT ELEV. PAVED AND LANDSCAPED AREAS. THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS WILL LARGELY MAINTAIN THE
[ [ ] ‘ | < | | EXISTING DRAINAGE PATTERNS ON SITE, NITH MOST OF THE STORMWATER RUNOFF COLLECTED BY
- ) EXISTING WALKWAY | CTE CONFORM TO EXISTING AN EXISTING CATCH BASIN AT THE NORTH END OF THE EXISTING FIELD. MOST STORMWATER WILL
> SLOPES +2% ANAY | ELEV. CONTINUE TO FLOW FROM PAVED SURFACES AND PERCOLATE INTO THE PLANTED AREAS.
I FROM BUILDING, TYP.
IN ORDER TO ENSURE THAT NO ADDITIONAL STORMWATER FLOWS OVER THE BANK AND INTO THE
H | INTERCEPT ROOF DONNSPOUTS | CONCEPTUAL GRADING LEGEND CREEK, SIWALES AND TIO NEW CATCH BASING SHALL BE INSTALLED TO COLLECT ANY POTENTIAL
| N THESE AREAS AND DIVERT o RUNOFF COMING FROM THE NEWN BERMED AMPHITHEATER. IT SHOULD BE NOTED THAT THE
TO RAN BARRELS FOR SUBGRADE AND ARTIFICIAL TURF SURFACE OF THE AMPHITHEATER WILL BE DESIGNED WITH AN
I FS 100.00 f
| & | L ANDSCAPE USE INFILTRATION RATE GREATER THAN 30"/HOUR, SO NO SIGNIFICANT SURFACE RUNOFF 1S EXPECTED.
! = E \ PROPOSED SPOT ELEVATION (SEE ABBREVIATION KEY)
I (FS 46.00) ALL NEW PLANTING AREAS (EXCEPT UNDER EXISTING TREE CANOPIES) SHALL RECEIVE A 2" LAYER
¢ : OF ORGANIC AMENDMENTS INCORPORATED INTO THE TOP 6" OF SOIL PER SPECS. ALL PLANTING
hd §| EXISTING SPOT ELEVATION (SEE ABBREVIATION KEY) AREAS SHALL RECEIVE A 3" LAYER OF BARK MULCH PER SPECS.
| | - I
& I SOLID PIPE: PVC DR 35, SIZE T.B.D.: MIN SLOPE 1% THE SUBGRADE BELOW ALL PAVED AREAS (EXCEPT UNDER EXISTING TREE CANOPIES) SHALL BE
& BASEROCK COMPACTED TO 95%, DEPTH PER PLAN. SEE DETAILS FOR PAVING AND SUBGRADE
SEA CREST SCHOOL COMPACTION BENEATH EXISTING TREES.
)\ CATCH BASIN: CHRISTY B24 OR EQUAL. ALL NEAN
H FFE 98.00 ] DRAINS SHALL BE MARKED "NO DUMPING! FLONS TO ALL GRADING SHALL CONFORM TO LOCAL CODES AND ORDINANCES.
| H CREEK" OR APPROVED EQUAL.
NO TRENCHES FOR ANY PURPOSE SHALL BE DUG WITHIN 15 FEET OF EXISTING TREE TRUNKS.
3 I EXISTING DRAIN PIPE (PER ORIGINAL CIVIL DINGS) TRENCHES BEYOND 15 FEET AND WITHIN DRIP LINES OF EXISTING VEGETATION AND TREES TO
REMAIN SHALL BE HAND DUG. NO ROOTS GREATER THAN 1" DIAMETER SHALL BE CUT. ALL CUT
L 7 [m ROOTS BETWEEN 1/2" AND 1" DIAMETER SHALL BE CLEANLY CUT AND DRESSED.
s EXISTING DRAINAGE STRUCTURES (SIZE/TYPE VARY)
ALL DRAINAGE PIPES SHALL BE 4" DIAMETER MINIMUM SOLID PIPE PER SPECS, SLOPED AT 1%
il MINIMUM UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON PLAN.
2.0% INDICATES DEGREE AND DIRECTION OF SLOPE ACROSS
> j PAVED SURFACES NO NORK 1S PROPOSED ON THE EXISTING RAINNATER LEADERS.
ot INDICATES DIRECTION OF SLOPE CROSS PLANTED TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS PLAN IS BASED ON THREE
o I SURFACES SOURCES:
P | | .. INFORMATION ORIGINALLY SUBMITTED AS PART OF THE ORIGINAL BUILDING PLANS BY
o 3
IS MICHAEL D. ASHLEY, R.C.E., DATED 49/27/494.
& - j \._ . CENTERLINE AND DIRECTION OF SWALE SURVEY DATA OBTAINED FROM THE ADJACENT 'HALF MOON VILLAGE' PROJIECT BUILT IN
< — 2012.
8 : ) INDICATES CONFORMING ELEVATIONS gg%'r ELEVATION DATA BY RECORDED BY KIKUCHI + KANKEL DESIGN GROUP IN OCTOBER
09 — — ] o NO SIGNIFICANT DISCREPANCIES EXIST BETWEEN ANY OF THESE THREE SOURCES.
0 S s e e e — —o0—o0—o0—o0—o L EXISTING CONTOUR TO REMAIN
pa PROPOSED CONTOUR SEE EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN, SHEET L1, FOR EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL NOTES.

=

Kikuchi + Kankel
Design Group

Landscape Architecture
Environmental Design
Site Planning

730 Mill Street
Half Moon Bay, CA 94019
(650) 726-7100

www.klkdesigngroup.com

LANDSCAPE
IMPROVEMENTS

SEA CREST
SCHOOL

901 ARNOLD WAY
HALF MOON BAY, CA

APN: 056-210-280

. 5/30/2018
Revisions: AGENCY COMMENTS

Dafe: 11/14/2017 PLAN CHECK

Scale:
1/20" = 1'-0"

Drawn By:
TNC

CONCEPTUAL
GRADING PLAN

Sheet No.

L3

Of




BIOLOGICAL RESOURCE ASSESSMENT

SEA CREST SCHOOL
901 ARNOLD WAY, HALF MOON BAY
SAN MATEO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

PREPARED FOR:

Scott Phillips, Associate Planner
City of Half Moon Bay
501 Main Street
Half Moon Bay, CA 94019

PREPARED BY:

Coast Ridge Ecology
1410 31% Avenue
San Francisco, CA 94122

March 16, 2018



TABLE OF CONTENTS

. SUMMARY ettt ettt et e e s he e e b e e e ket e be e saeeanbeeabeeenneen 1
Il. PROJECT LOCATION AND STUDY AREA... ...t 3
1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION. ...ttt 3
IV, METHODS. ...ttt b e s e s e e reeanne e 4
V. EXISTING SETTING ..ottt st b e 4
AT ] | PP PP PR PRPOTRTPR 4
HYDROLOGY ...tttk ettt ettt s et e s ab et shb e e e sbb e e e bt e e e be e e e ne e e e nneas )
V1. PLANT COMMUNITIES AND HABITAT TYPES.......co e 8
AV =lc] =3 7N o N PO UP P UPPTOPPRTPPRI 8
Annual Brome Grassland ...............ccooooiiiiiiiiiiie e 8
ATTOYO WIIOW ThiCKEL .....coiiiiiiiiiecii et et 8
Landscaped/Ornamental.............ooouieiiiiiiiniieieee et 8
WETLANDS/WATER FEATURES .....cttitiitieieieite ettt sttt sttt ssessee e ssesbessessesnesnens 9
WVILDLIFE ...ttt ettt ekttt ekt e ekt e et e et et e s mb et e s mb e e e sn b e e e nnbe e e nnbeeenneean 9
WILDLIFE MOVEMENT CORRIDORS.......cuttitteatttatiesireateesseeesseessseasseessneaseesineaneessesssessseesnns 10
VII. SPECIAL STATUS PLANTS, ANIMALS, AND NATURAL COMMUNITIES... 11
SAN FRANCISCO DUsKY-FOOTED WOODRAT (NEOTOMA FUSCIPES ANNECTENS)................. 13
SALT MARSH COMMON YELLOWTHROAT (GEOTHLYPIS TRICHAS SINUOSA).....coerververierienne 13
CALIFORNIA RED-LEGGED FROG (RANA DRAYTONII) w.ecvvivieieeiecieesieeie st sre e sveesve e snae s 13
SAN FRANCISCO GARTER SNAKE (THAMNOPHIS SIRTALIS TETRATAENIA) ....ooveieieierieneeees 14
STEELHEAD, CENTRAL CALIFORNIA COAST ESU (ONCORHYNCHUS MYKISS) ....ooocvvervennenee. 15
MONARCH BUTTERFLY (DANAUS PLEXIPPUS)......ciutattiuieseeieeestestestesiesiesseeseesessessessessessesseas 16
SPECIAL STATUS PLANTS L.ttt ettt ettt ettt e b e e e e nne e 16
VIII. REGULATORY CONSIDERATIONS .......ooiiiiiiee e 17
A. FEDERAL AND STATE ENDANGERED SPECIES ACTS ....ccutiiitiiiiiesieeaiee e siee e sieesiee e 17
B. SPECIES OF SPECIAL CONCERN ....cutiiiieitieatee sttt aieesiteasiessseeastessseeasbeesseesseessesssseessessnseens 18

C. INESTING BIRDS ...ttt ettt b et et e bt e nbe e e b e e nbe e e nneenneeenes 18
D. CALIFORNIA NATIVE PLANT SOCIETY AND CEQA ...ttt 18

E. HALF MooN BAY MUNICIPAL CODE- COAST RESOURCE CONSERVATION STANDARDS ... 19
IX. RECOMMENDATIONS ...ttt ettt et nnee e 22
A. SAN FRANCISCO GARTER SNAKE AND CALIFORNIA RED-LEGGED FROG ........cccceevvennnnne 22
B. NESTING BIRDS (INCLUDING RAPTORS AND SALT MARSH COMMON YELLOWTHROAT) AND
ROOSTING BATS...eee ettt ettt ettt et e st et et e e sae e e nbeesbneanne e 22

XI. REFERENCES ... s 23



LIST OF TABLES

Table 1. Special status plant and animal species that were considered for their potential to
occur within the study area at 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay, CA................ccccceiviie 26

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1. Project Location Map..........ouiriniiriitiit it e e e e 6

Figure 2. Project Area Habitat Map Including Study Area.............cccovviiiiniiiiieininnnn 7

Figure 3. CNDDB OCCUITENCE MaP. ... .ouiitiiti ittt e e 12

Figure 4. Riparian Zone Buffer ... 21
APPENDICES

Appendix A. Plant and Animal SPeCIes LiSt..........cvevuiiiioiiirieieeeeeeeeeeee e 39

Appendix B. Representative Photos of Sea Crest School Property ..........ccococeeeeevveieneneneenne. 41



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 1

. SUMMARY

This report provides a biological resource assessment for a 3.77 acre property located at 901
Arnold Way in Half Moon Bay, California. The property is developed with an Elementary /
Junior High School (Sea Crest School). The surrounding area is primarily developed with
multifamily homes. The property is bounded by Arnold Way on the south, Main Street on the
west, Bloom Lane and developed residential homes on the north, and Arroyo Leon creek
corridor and open space on the east. The property is a flat, developed parcel of land that
includes school buildings, the Kohrs Family Center, parking lot, recreational field, play
structures and blacktop play area. Approximately 25 feet beyond the eastern fence line, the
slope drops steeply down to Arroyo Leon.

The proposed project consists of landscape improvements and relocation of structures.
Specifically, the existing recreational field, play structures and blacktop play area are to be
relocated and redesigned, and an amphitheater, pathways and outdoor classroom areas are to
be added. The existing cyclone fence on the east end of the property would be removed and
native landscaping would extend twenty-five feet east to the top edge of the slope above
Arroyo Leon. Open wire fencing would be installed at the top of bank of Arroyo Leon. Plant
species to be used on site, including within the 50-foot riparian buffer zone of Arroyo Leon,
include both ornamental and native plant species. Ornamental species include strawberry tree
(Arbutus unedo), eastern redbud (Cercis anadensis 'Forest Pansy'), Washington thorn
(Crataegus phaenopyrum), and flowering cherry (Prunus serrulata 'Pink Star'); and native
species include red stem dogwood (Cornus stolonifera), sticky monkey flower (Diplacus
aurantiacus), Pacific coast iris (Iris douglasiana), and island alum root (Heuchera maxima).

The property, as well as a 200-foot buffer surrounding the property, was surveyed for
biological resources on February 13, 2018 by Coast Ridge Ecology biologists Suk-Ann Yee
and Jennifer Radtkey. A second biological survey was conducted by Suk-Ann Yee on March
5, 2018. The California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) Natural Diversity Database
(CNDDB) was consulted for known occurrences of sensitive plant, animal, and natural plant
communities of concern found within the Half Moon Bay and five surrounding 7.5 USGS
topographic quadrangles (CNDDB, 2018).

The majority of the property is developed/urban land and is unvegetated. Along the north and
south fence lines ornamental vegetation including shrubs and small cypress trees are present,
and within the northeast corner of the site is the recreation field consisting of turf grass. Trees
on site consist of Monterey cypress (Hesperocyparis macrocarpa) and Pittosporum
(Pittosporum sp.) tree/shrubs. There are two plant communities on the property, both of which
are located along the narrow (25-foot wide) eastern edge of the property adjacent to Arroyo
Leon: Annual Brome Grassland (Semi-Natural Herbaceous Stand) and Arroyo Willow
Thicket (Shrubland Alliance) as described in Sawyer, et al. (2009).

Neither of these plant communities is considered rare in California. The Annual brome
grassland would be considered an upland plant community, and the Arroyo willow Thicket,
may or may not qualify as US Army Corps jurisdictional wetlands and a jurisdictional

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY@GMAIL.COM — WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 2

determination would be required to determine this. Arroyo willow (Salix lasiolepis) is a
riparian indicator species per the City of Half Moon Bay Municipal Code Section 18.38.02
(City of Half Moon Bay, 2017).

The property does not provide suitable habitat for most wildlife species in the region due to
the fact that most of the site is developed with impervious surfaces. The ornamental
vegetation on the property provides some potential nesting habitat for common songbirds.
The grassland and arroyo willow thicket to the east of the property provides potential nesting
habitat for grassland and riparian songbirds as well as habitat for various mammals including
brush rabbit (Sylvilagus bachmanii) mule deer (Odocoileus hemionus) and California meadow
vole (Microtus californica). Trees on site provide some potential roosting habitat for bats, but
no maternity roosts are expected due to the lack of tree cavities to support bat maternity
colonies.

Six special status wildlife species with potential to occur on the site include: the San
Francisco dusky-footed woodrat (Neotoma fuscipes annectens), California species of special
concern; salt marsh common yellowthroat (Geothlypis trichas sinuosa), California species of
special concern; San Francisco garter snake (Thamnophis sirtalis tetrataenia), (a federal and
state endangered species and state fully-protected species); California red-legged frog (Rana
draytonii), a federal threatened species and California species of special concern; steelhead,
Central California Coast ESU (Oncorhynchus mykiss), a federally threatened species and
California species of special concern; and Monarch butterfly (Danaus plexippus), a locally
unique species. The following conclusions for each of these species potential to occur on site
are provided below.

San Francisco dusky-footed woodrat

No middens were observed within the property. Woodrat middens are likely present within
the dense vegetation along the banks of Arroyo Leon; however the project would not impact
areas within the riparian vegetation. No impacts to this species are expected.

Salt marsh common yellowthroat:

There is a low potential for salt marsh common yellowthroat to nest within the study area,
however this species has moderate potential for being detected foraging and potentially
nesting in the arroyo willow thicket.

Nesting birds, including raptors:
There is moderate potential for nesting passerines to occur within the project area, and low
potential for raptors to nest within the study area.

San Francisco garter snake:

The site does not provide optimal breeding habitat for San Francisco garter snake (open
grasslands near aquatic habitats) however this species could be detected when moving
between nearby wetland and upland habitats.

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY@GMAIL.COM — WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 3

California red-legged frog:
There is no aquatic breeding habitat for California red-legged frog on site, though the species
could occur on site when moving between nearby wetland habitats.

Steelhead:

Steelhead are present in Pilarcitos Creek watershed, and may utilize Arroyo Leon as
spawning/ rearing habitat. The project would not impact the bed and/or banks of Arroyo
Leon, and no impacts to steelhead are expected.

Monarch butterfly:

The monarch butterfly is unlikely to be found roosting within the study area as there are no
wind protected groves of large eucalyptus, Monterey pine, or Monterey cypress trees present,
although small and mid-sized individual cypress and eucalyptus do exist on the property and
on the opposite hillside east of Arroyo Leon. The study area does not provide suitable habitat
to support a roosting site for Monarch butterflies. No impacts to this species are expected.

Special Status Plants:
Based on habitat types present on site and the biological surveys conducted on site, no special
status plant species are expected to occur within the study area.

II. PROJECT LOCATION AND STUDY AREA

The property is 3.77-acres in size and is located at 901 Arnold Way in Half Moon Bay,
California (Figure 1). The property is developed with an Elementary / junior high School (Sea
Crest School). The property also includes a naturally vegetated area east of the existing school
footprint and ends at the center of the Arroyo Leon creek channel, approximately 85 feet east
of the current school yard eastern fence line. With the exception of the eastern side of the
subject property, the surrounding area is primarily developed multifamily homes. The
property is bounded by Arnold Way and residential homes and agricultural fields to the south,
Main Street and residential homes on the west, Bloom Lane and residential homes on the
north, and Arroyo Leon creek corridor and open space to the east. The property is a flat,
developed parcel of land that includes school buildings, the Kohrs Family Center, parking lot,
recreational field, play structures and blacktop play area. Approximately 25 feet beyond the
eastern fence line, the slope drops steeply down to Arroyo Leon. The study area (i.c. the area
analyzed in this report) includes the area within the school boundaries, and east into the
Arroyo Leon Creek Channel, or approximately 90 feet east of the current eastern fences
location.

I11. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The proposed project consists of landscape improvements and relocation of structures.
Specifically, the existing recreational field, play structures and blacktop play area are to be
relocated and redesigned, and an amphitheater, pathways and outdoor classroom areas are to
be added. The existing cyclone fence on the east end of the property would be removed and
native landscaping would extend twenty-five feet east to the top edge of the slope above
Arroyo Leon. Open wire fencing would be installed at the top of bank of Arroyo Leon. Plant

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY@GMAIL.COM — WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 4

species to be used on site, including within the 50-foot riparian buffer zone of Arroyo Leon,
include both ornamental and native plant species. Ornamental species include strawberry tree
(Arbutus unedo), eastern redbud (Cercis anadensis 'Forest Pansy'), Washington thorn
(Crataegus phaenopyrum), and flowering cherry (Prunus serrulata 'Pink Star'); and native
species include red stem dogwood (Cornus stolonifera), sticky monkey flower (Diplacus
aurantiacus), Pacific coast iris (Iris douglasiana), and island alum root (Heuchera maxima).

V. METHODS

Coast Ridge Ecology biologists Suk-Ann Yee and Jennifer Radtkey surveyed the site and the
surrounding areas for biological resources on February 13, 2018 between 7:00 am and 9:00
am. A brief second visit was conducted to identify specific plant species on site by S. Yee on
March 5, 2018. Weather at the time of the survey was clear and cool in the morning (mid
40° F). All plant and animal species observed were documented and plant communities and
habitats were assessed for their potential to support special status species.

The California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) Natural Diversity Database
(CNDDB) was consulted for known occurrences of sensitive plant, animal, and natural plant
communities of concern found within the Half Moon Bay and five surrounding 7.5> USGS
topographic quadrangles (CNDDB, 2018). Data from CNDDB, California Native Plant
Society (CNPS) On-Line Inventory of Rare, Threatened, and Endangered Plants of California
(CNPS, 2018), knowledge of regional biota, and observations made during the field survey,
were used to evaluate on-site habitat suitability for special status plant and wildlife species
within the study area. In addition other relevant literature and databases were reviewed
including the Sea Crest School Landscape Improvements Plan (Kikuchi and Kankel Design
Group, 2017) and recent Biological Resource Assessments prepared for nearby properties in
the area, such as the BRA for 403 San Benito Street (CRB, 2017).

V. EXISTING SETTING

The school property includes the school building, the Kohrs Family Center building, a parking
lot, a blacktop play area, a recreation field (turf/lawn), a play structure and landscaped
vegetation (Figure 2). The surrounding area is primarily developed single family residential
homes. The property is bounded by Arnold Way on the south, Main Street on the west, Bloom
Lane and developed residential homes on the north, and Arroyo Leon creek corridor and open
space on the east. The property is a flat, developed parcel of land and approximately 25 feet
beyond the eastern fence line of the school, the slope drops steeply for approximately 60 feet
down to Arroyo Leon creek channel. Elevation of the property is approximately 60 feet above
mean sea level.

Soils

There is one known soil type present on the property, Gullied land (NRCS, 2018). Gullied
land is a soil type of variable thickness (0 to 60 inches) that arises from alluvial deposition.
This soil type is found at the top edge of the slope and continues down to Arroyo Leon. The

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY@GMAIL.COM — WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 5

remainder of the site is urban developed land. There are no serpentine or sandy soils present
on the property.

Hydrology

The site is virtually flat and it is designed such that water drains to Arnold Way and to several
on-site drains. The eastern portion of the study area outside of the existing school footprint
drains into Arroyo Leon, a perennial stream. East of the existing school fence line, the
property is flat for approximately 25 feet before dropping approximately 60 feet to the creek
bed.

Arroyo Leon is mapped as a perennial stream by the United States Geological Survey (USGS
2015). At the time of the site visit in mid-February, the stream had a steady water flow with

water depths of approximately six to 12 inches. Arroyo Leon flows north and intersects with
an intermittent stream before flowing into Pilarcitos Creek 3000 feet downstream. Pilarcitos

Creek flows northwest into the Pacific Ocean which lies one mile to the west of the site.

Within the surrounding area, there are two agricultural ponds within a half mile radius of the
site. The closest pond is located approximately 750 feet east of the property, and the other is
located 2500 feet to the southwest. Several other ponds are located within a one mile radius
of the site.

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY@GMAIL.COM — WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 6

\é B o P C 1
2 Y

R:\'ae{~ \‘
—

.—;‘t Mt Diabla
‘\ State Pérk

- N
San Frahc’lst'g i@uand w

o

) }/‘f" %\ Ean Leandro\

/.-_—.-o.-

Half Moon Bay

. St

Main St

. N
’ A
Figure 1: Project Location Map e e \Viles

Sea Crest School 0 0475 0.95 1.9 2.85
901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay, CA

Service Layer Credits: Sources: Esri, HERE, ‘ Prolect LOCGtIOﬂ
DelLorme, USGS, Intermap, INCREMENT P,
NRCan, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong
Kong), Esri Korea, Esri (Thailand),
Mapmylndia, NGCC, © OpenStreetMap
contributors, and the GIS User Community

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY@GMAIL.COM — WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018

Page 7

Flgure 2: PI'OjeCt Area Habitat Map - e Miles

Sea Crest School
901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay, CA

Service Layer Credits: Source: Esri,

DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics,

CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID,
IGN, and the GIS User Community

0.02 0.04

Property Boundary (Approx.)

D Project Area (Approx.)

—
s

j 50-Foot Riparian Buffer
Arroyo Leon (Approx.)

Arroyo Willow Thicket

\
| Landscaped/OmamentaI

\ Annual Brome Grassland

0.08

.12

. <
Monrrorins * ©

1410 31°T AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122

PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY@GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 8

V1. PLANT COMMUNITIES AND HABITAT TYPES

Vegetation

There are three plant communities present within the study area: annual brome grassland,
arroyo willow thicket, and landscaped/ornamental. Vegetation within the existing school
boundaries is located within the northeast portion of the site, and is comprised of
landscaped/ornamental plant species. The other plant communities are located east of the
existing property fence line.

None of the plant communities found within the study area are considered rare (Sawyer, et
al. 2009). A list of all plant and animal species identified on site is provided in Appendix
A.

Annual Brome Grassland

Weedy, nonnative annual brome grassland is found just outside of the fence line above the
drop-off to Arroyo Leon (Photographs B-1 and 2). The dominant species in this plant
community includes ripgut brome (Bromus diandrus), rescue grass (B. catharticus), annual
blue grass (Poa annua), and foxtail barley (Hordeum murinum). The area appears to have
been seeded with annual flowers, such as California poppy (Eschscholzia californica). A
wide variety of common non-native herbaceous species were found interspersed with the
grasses including Bermuda buttercup (Oxalis pes-caprae), calla lily (Zantedeschia
aethiopica), periwinkle (Vinca major), and cutleaf gernanium (Geranium dissectum). A
patch of poison hemlock (Conium maculatum) was observed along the edge of the creek
bank, and cape ivy (Delairea odorata) is also found along this interface. There is a line of
mature Monterey cypress (Hesperocyparis macrocarpa) on the northern edge of the

property.

Arroyo Willow Thicket

Arroyo willow thicket is present east of the annual brome grassland on the slope down to
Arroyo Leon (Photographs B-3 and 4). The dominant species for this plant community is
arroyo willow (Salix lasiolepis). Non-native cape and English ivy (Delairea odorata and
Hedera helix) form a dense understory beneath the willow. Native California blackberry
(Rubus ursinus) was noted underneath and intertwining with the ivy and stinging nettle
(Urtica dioica) was present in high densities near the base of the bank.

Landscaped/Ornamental

Landscaped or ornamental vegetation is present within the existing school boundaries. This
includes a line of maintained Monterey cypress just inside the northern boundary fence line

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 9

(Photograph B-5), and a maintained stand of tall Pittosporum (Pittosporum sp.) shrubs
along the south-eastern edge of the property just inside the fence line (Photograph B-6). A
regularly mowed grass turf field that is dominated by annual bluegrass (Poa annua), along
with many non-native invasive plants including common and English plantain (Plantago
major and P. lanceolata), cheeseweed (Malva parviflora), and white clover (Trifolium
repens) lies between the two lines of landscaped shrubs and trees. There is also a set of
raised garden beds in the north-east corner of the property that contain herbs and common
garden plants.

Wetlands/Water Features

To meet the US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) definition of wetland, an area must
demonstrate three critical characteristics: wetland vegetation, wetland hydrology, and
wetland soils (Federal Interagency Committee for Wetland Delineation, 1989).
Additionally, to fall under jurisdiction of the USACE, a wetland must have some evident
hydrological connection to other wetlands and/or waters of the United States. The US Fish
and Wildlife Service definition of wetland is similar: at least periodically, the land must
support predominantly hydrophytes; the substrate must be predominantly undrained hydric
soil; or the substrate is non-soil that is saturated with water or covered by shallow water at
some time during the growing season of the year (Cowardin, et al., 1979).

The National Wetlands Inventory shows Arroyo Leon mapped as a Freshwater
Forested/Shrub Wetland roughly to the top of bank (USFWS, 2017). The National
Wetland Inventory definition of a wetland is different however than the Half Moon Bay
Municipal Code definition, which differentiates between wetlands (lakes, ponds, and
marshes) and riparian corridors (streams). Arroyo Leon is a stream and does not qualify as
a wetland in accordance with the Half Moon Bay Municipal Code 18.38.080 (D), (City of
Half Moon Bay, 2017). Therefore the riparian corridor requirements would apply to the
project site. Though the study area includes Arroyo Leon and the creek channel, the
proposed project footprint would not extend into the riparian vegetation, banks or channel
of Arroyo Leon, and would not have a substantial adverse effect on riparian habitat or the
Creek channel.

Wildlife

Biological value for wildlife within the existing school boundaries is limited as vegetation
is comprised of ornamental and landscaped species. Within the existing school limits the
landscaped turf and trees provide foraging and nesting habitat for smaller bird species. A
black phoebe (Sayornis nigricans) was observed foraging near the row of small planted
Monterey cypress trees along the north fence line, and California towhee (Melozone
crissalis) was observed foraging on the grass turf. East of the existing school boundaries,
the annual brome grassland and arroyo willow thicket provide good habitat for wildlife
species. Birds observed within these habitats at the time of the field survey include song
sparrow (Melospiza melodia), golden-crowned sparrow (Zonotrichia atricaphilla), Anna’s
hummingbird (Calypte anna), bushit (Psaltriparus minimus), American robin (Turdus

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 10

migratorius), and chestnut-backed chickadee (Poecile rufescens). A pair of red-tailed hawk
(Buteo jamaicensis) was observed perched in the mature Monterey cypress. The project
site could provide foraging habitat for raptors, both within the landscaped and naturally
vegetated areas.

Bats are likely to forage over the property due to its proximity to a water source (Arroyo
Leon), and could potentially roost within the mature Monterey cypress trees on site. These
trees are to be retained on site as part of the project.

The dense understory of the arroyo willow vegetation and the annual brome grassland
could serve as habitat for herbivorous mammals such as brush rabbit (Sylvilagus
bachmani), Botta’s pocket gopher (Thomomys bottae) and meadow vole (Microtus
californicus). Due to the presence of nearby riparian habitat and stream, it is likely that
semi-aquatic species such as the coast garter snake (Thamnophis elegans terrestris), and
various amphibian species such as the California red-legged frog could use the site as they
are moving between aquatic habitats. Predators such as bobcat (Lynx rufus), long-tailed
weasel (Mustela frenata) and gray fox (Urocyon cinereoargenteus) could be observed
moving through the site on occasion. Mule deer (Odocoileus hemionus) scat was observed
within the annual brome grassland on the east side of the property.

Wildlife Movement Corridors

Wildlife corridors are important for conservation of wildlife in the region. Linkages
between habitat types can extend for miles between primary habitat areas and occur on a
large scale throughout California. Habitat linkages facilitate movement between
populations located in discrete areas and populations located within larger habitat areas.
Even where patches of pristine habitat are fragmented, as commonly occurs with riparian
vegetation, wildlife movement between populations is facilitated through habitat linkages,
migration corridors and movement corridors. Wildlife movement includes migration (i.e.,
usually one direction per season), inter-population movement (i.e., long-term genetic
exchange) and small travel pathways (i.e., daily movement within an animal’s home
range).

The area surrounding the property is predominantly developed, with private residences on
three sides. Arroyo Leon and the steep banks on either side of the creek are likely used as a
corridor for wildlife movement. Due to the high fences, landscaped and developed nature
of the existing school property it is unlikely that the currently developed and landscaped
portions of the site are an important wildlife movement corridor.

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 11

VII. SPECIAL STATUS PLANTS, ANIMALS, AND NATURAL
COMMUNITIES

The California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) Natural Diversity Data Base
(CNDDB) maintains records of reported occurrences of sensitive plant, animal and natural
plant communities of concern. CNDDB records provide useful information about what
species have been found in a given project area, and what species may be expected in
similar habitat types. An area that has not been surveyed or visited may support sensitive
species that have not been discovered and reported and in addition, may require site-
specific surveys to rule out special status species occurrences. The U. S. Fish and Wildlife
Service (USFWS), Sacramento, also maintains lists of listed species and other species of
concern that may occur in or be affected by projects in a given USGS topographic
quadrangle. Information on special status plant species was obtained from the CNPS On-
line Inventory of Rare, Threatened, and Endangered Plants of California.

The CNDDB records for the Half Moon Bay 7.5 minute topographic quadrangle and five
surrounding quadrangles were reviewed for sensitive element occurrences at Sea Crest
School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay (CNDDB, 2018). The potential for the presence
of these special status species based on proximity to the site, or similar habitat utilization is
provided in Table 1.

No special status species or natural communities of concern were identified on site during
the field surveys.

Special-status species that have a higher probability for occurrence onsite, based on habitat
types and/or recorded observations within three miles of the study area are discussed in
greater detail in the report. These include six animal species: San Francisco dusky-footed
woodrat (Neotoma fuscipes annectens), saltmarsh common yellow throat (Geothlypis
trichas sinuosa), California red-legged frog (Rana draytonii), San Francisco garter snake
(Thamnophis sirtalis tetrataenia), Steelhead, Central California Coast ESU (Oncorhynchus
mykiss), and Monarch butterfly (Danaus plexippus). No rare plant species are expected to
occur on the site due to the lack of suitable habitat. Figure 3 shows the location of the
recorded occurrences of special status species within a three-mile radius of the study area.

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018

Page 12

0

|
1Y

05 1

Figure 3: CNDDB Occurrence Map
Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay, CA

Source: USGS, CNDDB
Legend

‘ Project Location

[ 3 vile Radius
Bombus occidentalis

- Charadrius alexandrinus nivosus

I:[D] Danaus plexippus

|:| Geothlypis trichas sinuosa

- Horkelia cuneata var. sericea

I:l Lasthenia californica ssp. macrantha
- Oncorhynchus mykiss irideus

- Plagiobothrys chorisianus var. chorisianus

:I Rana draytonii

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122

PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097

EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 13

San Francisco Dusky-Footed Woodrat (Neotoma fuscipes annectens)

The San Francisco dusky-footed woodrat (SFDFW) is a California species of special
concern. It is one of eleven subspecies of the dusky-footed woodrat and is found
throughout the San Francisco Bay area. The SFDFW is a mid-sized rodent with a body
length of 7 3/5 to 9 inches. It is brown or grey in color, with a white/light grey underside
and feet. The tail is hairy and dark brown, with a lighter colored underside.

The SFDFW is found in scrub, woodland and grassland areas. They are good climbers and
can live in both arboreal homes and ground-based middens built of sticks and branches up
to several feet high. Middens are built in areas of dense foliage or under forest canopy.
Woodrats consume a variety of nuts, fruits, foliage, and fungi (CSUS ESRP, 2013).

No SFDFW middens were observed within the project footprint, nor within 200-feet of the
project site. None are expected to occur in the area due to the dense understory of ivy in
the arroyo willow thicket. No mitigation measures are recommended for San Francisco
dusky-footed woodrat.

Salt Marsh Common Yellowthroat (Geothlypis trichas sinuosa)

The salt marsh common yellowthroat (Geothlypis trichas sinuosa) is native warbler that is
a California species of special concern. This bird is a year round resident in San Mateo
County, and utilizes dense vegetation in wetlands, marshes, estuaries, prairies and riparian
areas for nesting and foraging. It requires thick continuous cover down to the water surface
for foraging and nests in willow, tall grasses and tule patches (CNDDB, 2013).

The nearest occurrence is documented is approximately 1.5 miles northwest of the study
area along the riparian corridor of Pilarcitos Creek. It is possible that the salt marsh
common yellowthroat could forage on the property and in the adjacent arroyo willow
thicket. The arroyo willow thicket could serve as nesting habitat, as well. Prior to any
ground disturbance or vegetation removal associated with the Landscape Improvement
project, a pre-construction nesting bird survey is recommended to prevent adverse impacts
to nesting salt marsh common yellowthroats.

California Red-legged Frog (Rana draytonii)

The California red-legged frog (CRF) is a federally listed Threatened species and a
California Species of Special Concern.

Red-legged frogs are known to occur in slow-flowing streams, and marshes with heavily
vegetated shores for breeding as well as grasslands, riparian woodland, oak woodland, and
coniferous forests. These frogs stay near the shore hidden in vegetation rather than in open
water. Seasonal bodies of water are frequently occupied by red-legged frogs, and in some
areas these may be critical for persistence. It is speculated that California red-legged frogs
may lie dormant during dry periods of the year or during drought. California red-legged

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 14

frogs are thought to disperse widely during autumn, winter, and spring rains. Juveniles use
the wet periods to expand outward from their pond of origin and adults may move between
aquatic areas. Frogs disperse through many types of upland vegetation and use a broader
range of habitats outside of breeding season. CRF have been observed to move extensively
and travel up to two miles or more between breeding ponds without apparent regard to
topography, vegetation type, or riparian corridors (Bulger in litt.1998, in USFWS, 2002).

The breeding season for CRF generally begins in January and lasts through March.
Minimum breeding age appears to be two years in males and three years in females
(Jennings and Hayes 1985). Females lay 750-4000 eggs in clusters attached to aquatic
vegetation, two to six inches below the water surface. Eggs hatch in two to three weeks.
Once hatched, the tadpoles generally take between 11 and 20 weeks to metamorphose,
doing so between May and August. Although most tadpoles are expected to transform in
the summer, they can also over-winter, so transformation can take from about 4 to13
months. CRF typically require a permanent water source with a minimum depth of 0.7
meters (2.5 feet) (USFWS, 2004). Successful breeding has been observed in sub-optimal
habitats with little or no emergent vegetation present (USFWS, 2004). In the absence of
vegetation CRF will attach their eggs to rocks, wood, or other debris.

CRF has been extirpated from 70 percent of its former range and now is found primarily in
coastal drainages of central California, from Marin County, California, south to northern
Baja California, Mexico. Potential threats to the species include elimination or degradation
of habitat from land development and land use activities and habitat invasion by non-native
aquatic species (USFWS, 2002).

There is a recorded occurrence of CRF 0.25 mile southwest of the study area on the west
side of State Highway 1. There are also several documented CRF occurrences along
Pilarcitos Creek, to which Arroyo Leon is a tributary. Individuals could move across the
property during upland dispersals and rain events and use Arroyo Leon as habitat. The site
does not lie within the critical habitat for the California red-legged frog (USFWS, 2006a).
To prevent impacts to CRF, a preconstruction survey by a qualified biologist is
recommended prior to installation of silt fencing along the eastern boundary of the site.

San Francisco Garter Snake (Thamnophis sirtalis tetrataenia)

The San Francisco garter snake (SFGS) is a federally Endangered and state Threatened
species. The SFGS is a subspecies of the common garter snake endemic to the San
Francisco Peninsula (USFWS 1985). It is a small black, yellow and/or orange dorsally
striped snake with a greenish-blue belly, and a red head.

The SFGS is a semi-aquatic species that requires both shallow marshlands with emergent
vegetation, as well as open grassy upland habitats with denser shrubby vegetation for
cover. SFGS are most often found near standing water including ponds, lakes, marshes,
and sloughs. In the absence of fresh water marshes, SFGS will use aquatic habitats
surrounded by willows (Salix spp.) and blackberry (Rubus spp.) for cover (USFWS,

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 15

2006b). They are known to bask in grassland habitats with nearby dense vegetation for
escape cover. SFGS also utilize rodent burrows for shelter and winter hibernation. The
primary prey species of the SFGS include California red-legged frog (Rana draytonii),
Sierran tree frog (Pseudacris sierra; formerly Pacific tree frog), newts, young toads, and
small fish species. Individuals exhibit higher levels of movement in later summer months,
likely in pursuit of recently metamorphosed prey (California red-legged frog and Sierran
tree frog). SFGS mate primarily in the first warm days of March. Young are born live in
July and August (USFWS, 1985).

Communication with the CDFW for information regarding suppressed location data for the
SFGS reveals that the nearest recorded occurrence of SFGS to the study area is within 0.75
miles of the study area boundaries, documented between 1980 and 2004 (pers. comm.,
Chang, 2018). Due to the proximity of aquatic habitat (Arroyo Leon), SFGS could use the
site during periods of upland movement, or as a migration corridor. The USFWS has not
designated areas of critical habitat for the SFGS. To prevent impacts to SFGS, a
preconstruction survey by a qualified biologist is recommended prior to installation of silt
fencing along the eastern boundary of the site.

Steelhead, Central California Coast ESU (Oncorhynchus mykiss)

Steelhead within the Central California Coast Evolutionary Significant Unit (ESU) are a
federally Threatened Species. This ESU includes streams in the San Francisco Bay Area
that drain into the Pacifica Ocean or San Francisco Bay from the Russian River south to
Soquel and Aptos Creek, and the drainages of San Francisco and San Pablo Bays,
including the Napa River. Steelhead require freshwater streams with beds of clean gravel
for spawning and pools that last year round for rearing. Often found in streams with dense
riparian canopy and cool oxygenated water, they must have access to the San Francisco
Bay or Pacific Ocean for migration as they spend one to two years in the ocean before
returning to spawn in their natal stream. This species is present in the Pilarcitos Creek
watershed, which includes Arroyo Leon subwatershed, and in larger, perennial creeks in
the region (Pilarcitos Creek Restoration Workgroup, 2008).

Arroyo Leon is within designated Critical Habitat for the species (USFWS, 2017b). The
project area is located to the west of the Arroyo Leon riparian corridor and would not
directly impact the bed and banks of the creek. Proper erosion and sedimentation controls
however would be required to prevent any sediment laden runoff from leaving the site and
entering the creek and potentially impacting steelhead habitat. The Landscape
Improvement Plan for the project includes installation of silt fencing to prevent
sedimentation from leaving the project area and potentially entering Arroyo Leon. No
mitigation measures are recommended for steelhead, as mitigation measures to prevent
impacts to steelhead habitat within Arroyo Leon are incorporated into the project design.

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 16

Monarch Butterfly (Danaus plexippus)

The monarch butterfly is a CDFW ranked S3 (state vulnerable) species. It is a species of
milkweed butterfly with bright orange coloration, black striping and white spots. The
species is well known for its north-south migrations from Canada to Mexico which span
the lives of several generations of the butterfly. Monarch butterfly winter roost sites extend
along the western coast from Mendocino in northern California, south to Baja California,
Mexico. Roost habitat consists of wind-protected tree groves, typically eucalyptus, and
Monterey pine, Monterey Cypress, with nectar and water sources nearby. Along the
California coast, monarch butterflies typically roost between October and February.

There are two recorded occurrences of monarch butterflies; one within half a mile and
another within 1.75 miles of the study area (CNDDB, 2018). The monarch butterfly is
unlikely to be found roosting on the study area as there are no wind protected groves of
large eucalyptus, Monterey pine, or Monterey cypress trees present, although small and
mid-sized individual cypress and eucalyptus do exist on the property and on the opposite
hillside on the other side of Arroyo Leon. The study area does not provide suitable habitat
to support a roosting site for Monarch butterflies, and no mitigation measures are
recommended.

Special Status Plants

Within the Half Moon Bay region, there are several special status plants on the CNPS
Inventory of Rare and Endangered Plant Species. Most of these plants are associated with
distinct or specialized habitat types: coastal prairie, chaparral, closed-cone coniferous
forests, cismontane woodland, coastal wetlands, sandy or serpentine soils, and streams and
lakes. Most of these habitat types, soil associations or elevation requirements do not occur
on the property. In addition, most of the site is developed and landscaped, with the
remainder having been disturbed in the past, causing a proliferation of nonnative weeds to
colonize that area.

Based on the habitat types present and the field surveys conducted on site, no special status
plant species are expected to occur within the study area.

The Landscape Improvement Plan proposed for the site includes native and non-invasive
ornamental plant species and no adverse impacts on the biological resources of Arroyo
Leon are expected.

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 17

VIIl. REGULATORY CONSIDERATIONS

Federal and state-listed species (endangered, threatened, and CA fully-protected) receive
various levels of legal protection under the federal and state endangered species acts and
the California Fish and Wildlife Code. The federal Migratory Bird Treaty Act of 1918 and
Section 3500 of the California Fish and Wildlife Code protect active nests of migratory
and other birds, and provide criminal penalties for take of hawks, owls, and take or
disturbance of all bird nests or eggs. Potential impacts to other special status or otherwise
sensitive species must be disclosed and evaluated pursuant to the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA). Additional protections for species and habitats that are applicable to
the property are designated in chapter 18.38 Coast Resource Conservation Standards of the
Half Moon Bay Municipal Code.

A. Federal and State Endangered Species Acts

The United States Endangered Species Act (ESA) is administered by the United States
Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS). The California Endangered Species Act (CESA), the
Native Plant Protection Act (NPPA), and CEQA afford protection to species of concern
included on State-maintained lists. The California Department of Fish and Wildlife
(CDFW) has statutory responsibility for the protection of State listed species and is a
trustee agency under CEQA.

Both the Federal and State endangered species acts provide protection for listed species. In
particular, the Federal act prohibits “take.” “Take” is defined by the ESA as "to harass,
harm, pursue, hunt, shoot, wound, kill, trap, capture, or collect a federally listed,
endangered species of wildlife, or to attempt to engage in any such conduct." Take not
specifically allowed by Federal permit under Section 10(a)(1)(B) of the ESA is subject to
enforcement through civil or criminal proceedings under Section 9 of the ESA.

While "take™ is easily understood in the sense of deliberately capturing or killing
individual animals, Federal regulations also define take to include the incidental
destruction of animals in the course of an otherwise lawful activity, such as habitat loss
due to development. Under those rules the definition of take includes significant habitat
modification or degradation that actually kills or injures wildlife by significantly impairing
essential behavioral patterns, including breeding, feeding, or shelter (50 CFR Section
17.3).

Section 10(a) of the ESA permits the incidental take of an endangered or threatened
species. Similarly, Section 2081 of the CDFW Code or use of the CESA allows the
Department to enter into management agreements that make lawful activities which may
otherwise result in habitat loss or take of individuals of a state listed species.

The San Francisco garter snake, a state and federal Endangered species and the California
red-legged frog, a federally Threatened species have potential for presence within the study
area.

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 18

B. Species of Special Concern

The California Department of Fish and Wildlife has designated certain animal species as
“Species of Special Concern” due to concerns about declining population levels, limited
ranges, and continuing threats that have made these species vulnerable to extinction. The
goal of this designation is to bring attention to these species in the hope that their
population decline will be halted through mitigation or project redesign to avoid impact.
Species of special concern are protected only through environmental review of projects
under CEQA. The California Department of Fish and Wildlife is a trustee agency and is
solicited for its comments during the CEQA process.

California species of special concern with low potential to occur on site include the salt
marsh common yellowthroat has moderate potential to occur on site (foraging only, nesting
habitat present in adjacent arroyo willow thicket), and San Francisco dusky footed woodrat
(no middens observed during surveys).

C. Nesting Birds

Nesting birds, including raptors, are protected by the California Department of Fish and
Wildlife Code 3503, which reads, “It is unlawful to take, possess, or needlessly destroy the
nest or eggs of any bird, except as otherwise provided by this code or any regulation made
pursuant thereto.” Passerines and non-passerine landbirds are further protected under the
Federal Migratory Bird Treaty Act. As such, the CDFW typically recommends pre-
construction surveys for potentially suitable nesting habitat that will be directly (actual
removal of trees/vegetation) or indirectly (noise disturbance) impacted by construction-
related activities.

Many passerine species were observed on the property and in the adjacent arroyo willow
thicket and several have potential to nest within the study area. Two raptor species were
also observed in or near the property boundaries, sharp-shinned hawk and red-tailed hawk,
No nesting activity was observed, however the biological survey was conducted prior to
the nesting bird season (Feb. 1 to August 31). It is recommended that a preconstruction
nesting bird (including raptors) survey is conducted within the study area prior to the any
ground disturbance or vegetation removal on site.

D. California Native Plant Society and CEQA

The California Native Plant Society (CNPS) has developed a rating system for the state’s
rare, threatened and endangered plants. Plants rated by CNPS are subject to protection
under CEQA and may also be protected by state and federal endangered species laws if
they are listed by the state or federal government. No CNPS-rated plants were identified as
having potential to occur within the study area (Table 1).

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 19

E. Half Moon Bay Municipal Code- Coast Resource Conservation Standards

Chapter 18.38.035 of the City of Half Moon Bay Municipal Code specifies that when
required, a biological report shall be submitted prior to development review for any
projects located within 100 feet of any sensitive habitat area including riparian corridors,
bluffs, sea-cliff areas and any wetland. The property is located within 100 feet of Arroyo
Leon and the requirements specified by the Half Moon Bay Municipal Code apply to the
property. The Municipal code specifies that biological reports will contain mapping of any
coastal resources including wild strawberry habitat, existing sensitive riparian areas and
wetlands located on or within two hundred feet of the property.

Chapter 18.38 of the Half Moon Bay Municipal Code also specifies that any biological
report submitted to the city will contain an analysis of the habitat requirements of Rare and
Endangered Species, as well as Unique Species, which are defined as organisms that “have
scientific or historic value, few indigenous habitats, or some characteristics that draw
attention or are locally uncommon.” Unique species, as defined by the HMB Municipal
Code, include raptors, red-legged frog, marine mammals, California wild strawberry and
Monterey pine. No Monterey pine or California wild strawberry were observed on or
within 200 feet of the project.

The section of Arroyo Leon Creek that borders the property is shown as a perennial creek
on the USGS Half Moon Bay 7.5 minute quadrangle (USGS 2015). Section 18.38.075
(D)(2) specities that the buffer zone along riparian corridors extend from the “limit of
riparian vegetation” fifty feet outward for perennial streams”. The riparian vegetation is
defined by the outer edge of Arroyo willow trees along the corridor and this forms the
boundary between riparian and upland vegetation (Figure 4). The school grounds
(recreation field) are currently partially within this 50-foot buffer zone, and the proposed
project would encroach 25 feet further into the buffer zone to the top of bank of Arroyo
Leon. Based on the Landscape Improvement Plan, no adverse impacts would occur to
riparian vegetation associated with Arroyo Leon.

The project would create a ‘Creative Play and Natural Garden Area”, consisting of native
plantings and informal mulched paths and small clearings for outdoor classroom and play
opportunities and a “Quiet Garden” consisting of native woodland-style plantings and
seating area with pathways and scenic overlook areas for the creek. In addition, an
amphitheater structure with concrete benches would be constructed and would encroach
within approximately 30 feet of the riparian vegetation edge. These facilities and native
garden areas would impact the recreation field and the annual brome grassland. With the
possible exception of the amphitheater structure, the project is consistent with the
permitted uses with riparian buffer zones specified in the Municipal Code.

Permitted uses within riparian corridors include Education and Research (Section
18.38.075 (A)(1), and Trails and Scenic Overlooks (Section 18.38.075 (A) (4). Permitted
uses within riparian buffer zones include uses permitted in riparian corridors (Section

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 20

18.38.075(E)(1). Furthermore, the development of the property is consistent with proper
design and function of the existing activity on the property (i.e. School education) (Section
18.38.075 (H)(2); the project as designed will not significantly reduce or adversely impact
the sensitive habitat' (Section 18.38.075 (H)(4); and the project is in accordance with the
purpose of the objectives of the LCP land use plan (Section (H)(5).

Standards for development within riparian buffer zones (18.38.075 (C)) are the following:

C. Standards. Development shall be designed and constructed so as to ensure that:

1. Removal of vegetation is minimized;

2. Land exposure during construction is minimized and that temporary vegetation
or mulching is used to protect critical areas;

3. Erosion, sedimentation, and runoff is minimized by appropriately grading and
replanting modified areas;

4. Only adapted native or noninvasive exotic plant species are used for
replanting;

5. Sufficient passage is provided for native and anadromous fish as specified by
the state Department of Fish and Game;

6. Any adverse effects of waste water discharges and entrainment are minimized;

7. Any depletion of groundwater supplies and substantial interference with
surface and subsurface water flows are prevented;

8. Waste water reclamation is encouraged;

9. Natural vegetation buffer areas which protect riparian habitats are maintained,

10. Any alteration of natural streams is minimized.

' Recommendations to reduce potential impacts to special status species and sensitive habitats are included at
the end of this report.

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 21

Figure 4: Site Plans with Updated Riparian Buffer Zone

APPROXIMATE LIMITS OF EXIgHING

AMPHITHEATER/BERM ($6000 SQ. FT.):
ASSEMBLY & OUTDOOR CLASSROOM AREA
WTH STEPPED CONCRETE SEATALLS SET
INTO A 16" TALL ARTIFICIAL TURF BERM:

; \ Approximate

Limits of
Riparian
Vegetation

o 7/
A —"QUIET" GARDEN: NATIVE
WOODLAND-STYLE PLANTINGS AND
INFORMAL SEATING PROVIDES A
SPACE FOR QUIET REFLECTION

Top of Bank

Y

[
CREATIVE PLAY & NATURAL GARDEN AREA:
NATIVE PLANTINGS AND INFORMAL MULCHED
PATHS SURROUND CREEK OVERLOOKS AND
SMALL CLEARINGS FOR OUTDOOR
CLASSROOM AND PLAY OPPORTUNITIES

| .
NEA OPEN WNIRE FENCE ALONG TOP OF
CREEK BANK

b e
@0 40 INTREINTD

P
(xOudY)

| New 50 Foot Buffer From Limits of Riparian Vegetation I

Original 30 Foot Buffer From Limits of Riparian Vegetation

Landscape plans provided by Kikuchi + Kankel Design Group (11/14/17)

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097

EMAIL: CRECOLOGY@GMAIL.COM — WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 22

IX. RECOMMENDATIONS

The project would need to comply with Half Moon Bay Municipal Code Coast Resource
Conservation Standards and a determination would need to be made on whether the
amphitheater structure qualifies as a permitted structure within the riparian buffer zone. In
addition, the following recommendations are provided to minimize any potential impacts
from the project on special status species and the Arroyo Leon riparian corridor.

A. San Francisco Garter Snake and California Red-Legged Frog

Although the property does not provide breeding habitat for these species, the San
Francisco garter snake and California red-legged frog have potential to be found within the
property boundaries. A pre-construction survey conducted by a qualified biologist
immediately prior to any ground disturbance and/or vegetation removal is recommended in
order to minimize any impacts to these species.

B. Nesting Birds (including raptors and Salt Marsh Common Yellowthroat) and
Roosting Bats

If the project is conducted within the nesting bird season (Feb. 1 — August 31), it is
recommended that a survey for nesting birds (including raptors and salt marsh common
yellowthroat) and roosting bats is conducted within the study area (i.e. project area and
200-foot buffer around project site). The survey would be conducted within one week prior
to any ground disturbance and/or vegetation removal associated with the project to
minimize impacts to these species. If active bird nests and/or bat roosts are detected,
suitable buffer zones may need to be established based on CDFW requirements to ensure
nesting birds and/or roosting bats are not impacted.

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 23

XI. REFERENCES

Baicich, P.J. and C.J.O. Harrison, 2005. Nests, Eggs, and Nestlings of North American
Birds. Second Edition. Princeton University Press. Princeton, New Jersey. 347

pp-

Baldwin, B. G., D. H. Goldman, D. J. Keil, R. Patterson, T. J. Rosatti, and D. H. Wilken,
editors, 2012. The Jepson manual: vascular plants of California, second edition.
University of California Press, Berkeley.

Beidleman, L.H., Kozloff, E. N., 2003. Plants of the San Francisco Bay Region.
University of California Press, Berkeley, California.

Bulger, J., 1998. Wet season dispersal and habitat use by juvenile California red-legged
frogs (Rana aurora draytonii) in forest and rangeland habitats of the Santa Cruz
Mountains. A research proposal submitted to the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service,
Sacramento, California.

California Native Plant Society, 2018. The Online CNPS Inventory of Rare and
Endangered Plants (8th Edition), December 2010.
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org. Accessed February, 2018.

California Natural Diversity Database (CNDDB), 2018. California Department of Fish and
Wildlife. Six quadrangle query: Montara Mountain, San Mateo, Half Moon Bay,
Woodside, San Gregorio, and La Honda. Accessed February 9, 2018.

California State University Stanislaus, Endangered Species Recovery Program (CSUS
ESRP), 2013. San Francisco Dusky-Footed Woodrat (Neotoma Fuscipes
Annectens). http://esrp.csustan.edu/projects/Ism2/pdf/Ism030.pdf

City of Half Moon Bay, 2017. Half Moon Bay Municipal Code. Accessed online at
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/HalfMoonBay/

CRB, 2017. Biological Resource Assessment for 403 San Benito Street, Half Moon Bay,
CA. Prepared for the City of Half Moon Bay, March 2017. Prepared by Coast
Range Biological, LLC.

Cowardin, L.M., V. Carter, F.C. Golet, and E.T. LaRoe, 1979. Classification of Wetlands
and Deepwater Habitats of the United States. U.S. Department of the Interior,
Fish and Wildlife Service, Washington, D.C. 131 pp. Available online at
http://www.npwrc.usgs.gov/resource/wetlands/classwet/index.htm

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM


http://esrp.csustan.edu/projects/lsm2/pdf/lsm030.pdf

Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 24

Federal Geographic Data Committee, 2013. Classification of wetlands and deepwater
habitats of the United States. FGDC-STD-004-2013. Second Edition. Wetlands
Subcommittee, Federal Geographic Data Committee and U.S. Fish and Wildlife
Service, Washington, DC.

Federal Interagency Committee for Wetland Delineation, 1989. Federal manual for
identifying and delineating jurisdictional wetlands. U. S. Army Corps of
Engineers, U. S. Environmental Protection Agency, U. S. Fish and Wildlife
Service, and U.S.D.A. Soil Conservation Service, Washington, D.C.
Cooperative Technical Publication.

Google Earth Pro V 7.1.5.1557, Image date: September 1, 2017. Half Moon Bay, CA 37°
27,390°N, 122° 25.637W. Accessed March 10, 2018.

Jennings, Mark, and Marc P. Hayes, 1994. Amphibian and reptile species of special
concern in California. Report prepared for Calif. Dept. Fish and Game, Inland
Fisheries Division, Rancho Cordova, CA. Contract #8023.

Kikuchi and Kankel Design Group, 2017. Sea Crest School 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon
Bay, CA Landscape Improvements Plan. Plan date: 11/14/2017.

Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS), United States Department of
Agriculture. Web Soil Survey. Available online at the following link:
https://websoilsurvey.sc.egov.usda.gov/. Accessed 02/19/2018.

Pilarcitos Creek Restoration Workgroup, 2008. Pilarcitos Integrated Watershed
Management Plan, Watershed Assessment Update. Prepared by Philip Williams
& Associates, Ltd., with Sound Watershed Consulting, H.T. Harvey &
Associates, D.W. Alley & Associates, Jerry Smith, PhD, Weber-Hayes &
Associates. September 29, 2008. PWA REF. # 1884 - T3A.

Reed, P.B., Jr, 1988. National List of Plant Species that Occur in Wetlands: National
Summary. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. Biological Report. 88(24). 244 pp.

Sawyer, John; Keeler-Wolf, T.; and Evans, J., 2009. A Manual of California Vegetation,
second edition. California Native Plant Society, Sacramento.

USFWS, 1985. Recovery Plan for the San Francisco Garter Snake (7Thamnophis sirtalis
tetrataenia). U. S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Portland OR.
http://ecos.fws.gov/docs/recovery plan/850911.pdf

, 2002. Recovery plan for the California red-legged frog (Rana aurora
draytonii). U. S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Portland OR.

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM


https://websoilsurvey.sc.egov.usda.gov/

Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 25

, 2004. Federal Register: Endangered and Threatened Wildlife and Plants;
Proposed Designation of Critical Habitat for the California Red-legged Frog
(Rana aurora draytonii); Proposed Rule. 50 CFR. Part 17. Vol. 69. No. 71:
pp. 19620 — 19642.

, 2006a. Endangered and Threatened Wildlife and Plants; Designation of
Critical Habitat for the California Red-Legged Frog, and Special Rule Exemption
Associated With Final Listing for Existing Routine Ranching Activities;
Proposed Rule (50 CFR Part 17). Federal Register: Vol. 71, No. 71: 19244-
19346.

, 2006b. San Francisco Garter Snake (Thamnophis sirtalis tetrataenia) 5-
Year Review: Summary and Evaluation. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service,
Sacramento, CA. http://ecos.fws.gov/docs/five_year review/doc774.pdf

, 2017. National Wetlands Inventory website. U.S. Department of the
Interior, Fish and Wildlife Service, Washington, D.C.

, 2017b. Critical Habitat for Threatened and Endangered Species Online
Mapper. Available online: https://ecos.fws.gov/ecp/report/table/critical-
habitat.html. Accessed March 02, 2018.

USGS 2015. Half Moon Bay 7.5 Minute Quadrangle. Produced by the US Geological
Survey, 2015.

Zeiner, David C., William F. Laudenslayer, Jr., Kenneth E. Mayer, and Marshall White,
1990. California's wildlife, Volume I: amphibians and reptiles; Volume II: birds;
and Volume III: mammals. California Statewide Habitat Relationships Program,
CDFG, The Resources Agency, Sacramento, CA.

Personal Communications

Chang, Annie. California Department of Fish and Wildlife. California Natural Diversity
Database Zoology Lead. Email communication, February 12, 2018.

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018

Page 26

Table 1. Special status plant and animal species that were considered for their potential to

occur within the study area at 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay, CA.

Potential to Occur

Corynorhinus townsendii

habitat edges for feeding.

Species Name Status Habitat? Onlite
MAMMALS
. Most abundant in drier open No potential. Suitable
An;z;'igig :)a?gger SsC stages of shrub, forest, and foraging and burrow sites
herbaceous habitats, with not present.
friable soils.
Found in a wide variety of
. . habitats but prefers dry
MFEES(:S g]a)rl%clises WBWG:H hardwood woodlands. No potential, No
Y Y " | Roosts in rock crevices, roosting habitat present.
bridges, buildings and tree
hollows.
Generally found in dry, open
Pallid bat habitats including deserts,
Antrozous pallidus SSC grasslands, shrublands, No potential, No
P woodlands and forests. roosting habitat present.
Roosts in protected structures
and rocky outcrops.
Roosts in dense foliage of LO.W potent|a_l. Ml_nlmal
. suitable roosting sites
Hoary bat WBWG:M deciduous and evergreen resent. This species
Lasiurus cinereus ) trees, forages over streams goes ndt breedpin the
and ponds. Prefers habitat .
: San Francisco Bay area.
edges for feeding.
Big free-tailed bat . . . . No potential. Suitable
f . Low-lying arid areas; roosts in . .
Nyctinomops macrotis SSC . . roosting habitat not
high cliffs and rocky outcrops. .
present onsite.
Roosts in caves, tunnels No potential. Potential
Townsend’s big-eared bat ssc mines and buildings. Prefers foraging habitat present.

No suitable roosting
habitat present onsite.

2 Habitat requirements summarized from species accounts and descriptions of reported localities (Zeiner, et
al., 1990; Jennings and Hayes, 1994; CNDDB, 2018; CNPS, 2018).

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122

EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM

PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097




Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018

Page 27

Potential to Occur

Falco columbarius

open woodlands, savannahs,
grassland and desert edges,
farms and ranches. Roosts in
trees, nests in northern
Canada and Alaska.

Species Name Status Habitat? :
Onsite
Santa Cruz kangaroo rat Saer?(;l|r§§i§0ftl,:;vuerl]lc-idi:]amed No potential. No
Dipodomys venustus venustus G4T1, S1 Y SOIIS. suitable habitat or soils
manzanita mixed chaparral. .
present onsite.
Salt and brackish water
wetlands in the San Francisco
Salt-marsh harvest mouse Bay only. Requires No potential. No
Reithrodontomys raviventris FE, SE ay only. Req . ) p "
pickleweed (Sarcocornia suitable habitat present.
pacifica) as cover and forage.
No potential. Species is
San Francisco dusky-footed Forests with moderate likely presgnt in Arroyo
woodrat SSC canopies and moderate to Leon riparian corridor,
Neotoma fuscipes annectens densg understor however no middens
Y- were observed on
property.
BIRDS
Double-crested cormorant WL Nesting habitat includes No potential. No
Phalacrocorax auritus coastal cliffs, offshore islands, | suitable nesting or
and along lake margins in foraging habitat present.
inland areas.
Great blue heron Sensitive Nests in colonial rookeries in No potential, foraging
Ardea herodias trees and cliffs near marshes. | only. No nesting habitat
Forages in marshes, lake present.
margins, rivers and streams,
wet meadows.
Burrowing owl SsC Grassland, open areas with No potential. Not
Athene cunicularia rodent activity; nest in observed and no suitable
burrows and is most often habitat present. No large
associated with large fossorial | fossorial mammal
mammal burrows such as burrows observed.
those of the California ground
squirrel.
Merlin WL Seacoast, tidal estuaries, No potential, foraging

only. Merlins do not nest
in California.

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122

EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM

PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097




Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018

Page 28

Potential to Occur

Melospiza melodia pusillula

arm of San Francisco Bay.
Inhabitats Sarcocornia
marshes and nests in
Grindelia bushes.

Species Name Status Habitat? :
Onsite
Western snowy plover FT, SSC Sandy beaches, salt pond No potential. No nesting
Charadrius alexandrinus levees, and alkali lake shores. | or foraging habitat
nivosus Requires sandy, gravelly soils | present on site.
for nesting.
Bank swallow CT Riparian ecosystems, forages | No potential. Foraging
Riparia riparia in a variety of ecosystems, only. No nesting habitat
but primarily over water present.
features. Colonial nester in
vertical banks/cliffs with fine
sandy soils.
American peregrine falcon CFP Hunts on beaches, mudflats No potential. No
Falco peregrinus anatum and near water features suitable nesting habitat.
including wetlands, lakes and
rivers. Nests on ledges in
cliffs or buildings.
Saltmarsh common SSC Marshy, brushy vegetation in | Low potential. Potential
yellowthroat or near water. Requires thick | nesting habitat present in
Geothlypis trichas sinuosa continuous cover down to Arroyo Leon riparian
water surface for foraging. corridor.
Nests in willow, tall grasses,
and tule patches.
Freshwater marsh, wet No potential. No
California black rail CT, FSC meadows, and margins of suitable habitat present.
Laterallus jamaicensis saltwater marshes. Requires
coturniculus water depths of approximately
one inch for nesting habitat.
California Ridgway’s rail FE, CE Salt-water and brackish No potential. No
Rallus obsoletus obsoletus marshes in the San Francisco | suitable habitat present.
Bay. Associated with
pickleweed.
Alameda song sparrow SsC Salt marshes bordering south | No potential. No

suitable habitat present.

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122

EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM

PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097




Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018

Page 29

Species Name

Status

Habitat?

Potential to Occur
Onsite

Marbled murrelet
Branchyramphus marmoratus

FT, SE

Occurs year-round in marine
subtidal and pelagic habits
from Oregon to Point Sal,
Santa Barbara. Uses stands
of mature Douglas fir and
redwoods up to 40 miles
inland for nesting.

No potential. No
suitable habitat present.

AMPHIBIANS AND REPTILES

California red-legged frog

Lowlands and foothills in or
near permanent sources of

Low potential.
Arroyo Leon is potential
non-breeding and

Dicamptodon ensatus

streams, occasionally in lakes
or ponds. Adults found in wet
forests under rocks and logs
near lakes or streams.

Rana draytonii FT, SSC deep water with densg, . breeding h.abltat.. Could
shrubby or emergent riparian | occur on site during
vegetation. upland migratory

movements.
Seasonal wetlands in
grassland and oak-savannah.
California tiger salamander FT CT Requires underground No potential. No
Ambystoma californiense ' refuges for cover and vernal suitable habitat present.
pools or other seasonal water
sources for breeding.
Partly shaded, shallow .
. ; . No potential. No
Foothill yeIIow-Ieg_ged frog ssc streams and rlffl_es with a suitable habitat on site.
Rana boylii rocky substrate in a variety of
habitats.
Inhabits mixed deciduous and
coniferous woodlands and
coastal grasslands in San
Santa Cruz black salamander ssc Mateo, Santa Cruz, and San No potential. No

Aneides niger Mateo counties. Adults found | suitable habitat on site.
under rocks, talus, and damp
woody debris.

Inhabits wet coastal forests

near streams from Mendocino

Co. south to Monterey Co. .

and east to Napa Co. Aquatic g&tgglzeﬂgaltél:l()species
California giant salamander FT. SSC larvae require cold clear is found in the upper

Pilarcitos Creek
watershed.

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122

EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM

PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097




Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018

Page 30

Potential to Occur

Hydrochara rickseckeri

moving stream habitats.

Species Name Status Habitat? :
Onsite
Near freshwater marshes,
ponds, and slow-moving Low potential. Arroyo
streams. Prefers dense cover h
Leon and adjacent
and water depths of at least hillsides could provide
San Francisco garter snake FE CE one foot. Also found in otential habitaﬁ Could
Thamnophis sirtalis tetrataenia ' upland habitats adjacent to P . "
occur on site during
water sources. Prefers south
; : upland movements.
or west facing slopes with
open habitats with occasional
shrubs for cover.
No potential. No
suitable habitat present.
Ponds, creeks in woodland, Arroyo Leon is ur;llkely o
rassland. Species requires support pond turtles due
gee watér onds, streams to the shallow water
Western pond turtle SSC or mparshes evith sfmn ' depths and steep banks
Emys marmorata emergent basking site)g and that preclude turtles from
sunny upland habitat for moving upslope to breed.
nesting.
FISH
Tidewater goby FE, SSC Shallow marine areas, No potential. No
Eucyclogobius newberryi lagoons and adjacent streams | suitable habitat on site.
Steelhead- central California FT Well oxygenated, moderate to NO. potentla_l. No .
; . suitable habitat on site,
coast DPS fast flowing streams with :
L : however species has
Oncorhynchus mykiss irideus woody debris, deep pools, T
. been detected within
riffles, and gravels.
Arroyo Leon.
Euryhaline, nektonic &
Longfin smelt FC, SSC anadromous. Found in open No potential. No
Spirinchus thaleichthys waters of estuaries, mostly in | suitable habitat on site.
middle or bottom of water
column.
INVERTEBRATES
Coastal sand dunes from
Bumfilceht:]tz?];cealrjfsbint;eetle G2. 52 Sonoma county south to San | No potential. No
! Mateo county. Usually stays suitable habitat present.
close to sand surface.
Ricksecker’s water G1G2, Aquatic habitats, weedy No potential. No aquatic
scavenger beetle S1S2 shallow open water, and slow | habitat present.

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122

EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM

PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097




Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018

Page 31

Potential to Occur

Euphydryas editha bayensis

outcrops of serpentine soils.
Host plants include Plantago
erecta, Orthocarpus
densiflorus and O.
purpurscens.

Species Name Status Habitat? !
Onsite
Open grassy areas, urban
Western bumble bee G2G3, parks and gardens, chaparral | Not Expected.
Bombus occidentalis S1S2 and shrub areas, and Potentially suitable
mountain meadows. Host habitat present for
plants include Ceanothus, foraging however
Centaurea, Chrysothamnus, species has not been
Cirsium, Geranium, detected in Half Moon
Grindellia, Lupinus, Melilotus, | Bay since 1953.
Monardella, Rubus,
Solidago, and Trifolium. Once
common & widespread,
species has declined
precipitously from central CA
to southern B.C., perhaps
from disease. Nests
underground.
Coastal areas from Santa
Obscure bumble bee S1S2 Barbara county to north to No potential. Host
Bombus caliginosus Washington state. Grassy plants not present on
coastal prairies and site.
meadows. Nectar and pollen
plants include: Ceanothus,
Cirsium, Clarkia, Keckiella,
Lathyrus, Lotus, Lupinus,
Rhododendron, Rubus,
Trifolium, and Vaccinium
San Bruno elfin butterfly FE Coastal mountains with No potential. Host plant
Callophrys mossii bayensis grassy ground cover, mainly not present, no suitable
near San Bruno mountain. habitat present.
Host plant is Sedum
spathulifolium.
Mission blue butterfly FE Grasslands of the San No potential. No
Icaricia icarioides missionensis Francisco Peninsula. Uses suitable habitat. No host
three perennial lupines as plants observed.
larval host plants, Lupinus
albifrons, L. variicolor, and L.
formosus.
Myrtle’s silverspot FE Coastal habitats with Viola No potential. No
Spyeria zerene myrtleae adunca. Restricted to foggy suitable habitat on site.
dunes and hills of the Point
Reyes peninsula.
Bay checkerspot butterfly FT Native grasslands on No potential. No

suitable habitat on site.

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122

EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM

PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097




Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018

Page 32

Potential to Occur

franciscanum

hillsides. Elevation: 100-300
m. Blooming: period: May-
June.

Species Name Status Habitat? :
Onsite
Monarch Butterfly S2S3 Roosts located in wind Low potential. Although
Danaus plexippus protected tree groves Monterey cypress trees
(eucalyptus, Monterey pine, exist on the property and
Monterey cypress) with nectar | eucalyptus occurs in the
sources and water nearby. riparian corridor, they are
too small and wind
exposed to provide
roosting habitat for this
species.
San Francisco fork-tailed G2, S2 Freshwater marshes and No potential. No
damselfly creeks with emergent and suitable habitat on site.
Ischnura gemina floating aquatic vegetation. Arroyo Leon may be
potential habitat.
Edgewood blind harvestman G1,Ss1 Open grassland in areas of No potential. No
Calicina minor serpentine bedrock, found on | suitable habitat on site.
the underside of serpentine
rocks near permanent
springs.
Edgewood Park micro-blind G1,s1 Open grasslands with No potential. No
harvestman serpentine rocks, adjacentto | suitable habitat on site.
Microcina edgewoodensis scrub oaks.
Mimic tryonia (=California G2, S2 Coastal lagoons, estuaries No potential. No
brackishwater snail) and salt marshes. suitable habitat on site.
Tryonia imitator
PLANTS
Chaparral, serpentinite, valley
San Mateo thorn-mint FE, CE, and foothill grasslands. No Potential. No
Acanthomintha duttonii CNPS 1B.1 | Elevation: 50 - 300 meters. suitable habitat on site.
Blooming period: Apr.-June.
Blasdale’s bent grass Coastal bluff scrub., _coastal _
Aqrostis blasdalei CNPS 1B.2 dunes, coastal prairie No Potential. No
9 ' Elevation: 0 - 150 meters suitable habitat on site.
Blooming period: May-July
Cismontane woodland, valley
Franciscan onion 28iclisf0§fig': g;asseslaz(:l];[iﬁ?ym No Potential. No
Allium peninsulare var. CNPS 1B.2 ’ P -2 | suitable habitat or soils

present on site.

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122

EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM

PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097




Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018

Page 33

Potential to Occur

Species Name Status Habitat? :
Onsite
Coastal bluff scrub, No Potential.
Bent- flowered fiddleneck CNPS 1B.2 | cismontane woodland, valley | No suitable habitat on
Amsinckia lunaris and foothill grassland. site.
Elevation: 3 - 500 meters.
Blooming period: Mar. — June.
Broadleaved upland forest,
chaparral, north coast .
Santa Cruz manzanita coniferous, chaparral, mixed g&tzﬁgeﬁggltét’\lgn site
Arctostaphylos andersonii CNPS 1B.2 | evergreen forest, redwood '
forest. Elevation: 60 - 760
meters.

Montara manzanita CNPS 1B.2 | Chaparral, coastal scrub, No Potential. No
Arctostaphylos montaraensis Elevation: 150 - 500 meters. suitable habitat on site.
Kings Mountain manzanita Broadleaved upland forest, No Potential. No
Arctostaphylos regismontana CNPS 1B.2 | chaparral, north coast suitable habitat on site.

coniferous forest. Elevation:
305 - 730 meters.
Coastal marsh milk-vetch CNPS 1B.2 | Moist dunes, marshes, No Potential. No
Astragalus pycnostachyus var. streamsides, Wetland. suitable habitat on site.
pycnostachyus Elevation: O - 30 meters.
Blooming period: Apr.-Oct.
Chaparral, Coastal prairie,
Marsh and swamp, Meadow
Pappose tarplant CNPS 1B.2 | and seep, Valley and foothill
Centromadia parryi ssp. parryi grassland (vernally mesic), No Potential. No
often alkaline substrates. suitable habitat present.
Elevation: 2 - 420 meters.
Blooming period: May- Nov.
Point Reyes salty bird’s-beak | CNPS 1B.2 | Marsh and swamp, Salt No Potential. No
Chloropyron maritimum ssp. marsh, Elevation: 0 - 10 suitable habitat on site.
palustre meters. Blooming period:
June- Oct.
San Francisco Bay Coastal bluff scrub, coastal No Potential. No
spineflower CNPS 1B.2 | dunes, coastal prairie, coastal | suitable soils present on
Chorizanthe cuspidata var. scrub, open sandy soils. site.
cuspidata Elevation: 3 - 215 meters.

Blooming period: Apr. - July.

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122

PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/glossary.html#elevation
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/glossary.html#elevation

Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018

Page 34

Potential to Occur

valley and foothill grassland,
clay or serpentine. Elevation:
3 - 410 meters. Blooming
period: Feb.-Apr.

Species Name Status Habitat? :
Onsite
Franciscan thistle CNPS 1B.2 | Coastal scrub, Broadleafed No Potential. No
Cirsium andrewsii upland forest, Coastal bluff suitable habitat on site.
scrub, Coastal prairie
Ultramafic. Elevation: 0 - 150
meters. Blooming period:
Mar. - July.
Chaparral, cismontane
Crystal Spr!ngs fountain FE, CE, woodlan.d, meadow & seep, No Potential. No
thistle CNPS 1B.1 | ultramafic valley & foothill suitable habitat on site
Cirsium fontinale var. fontinale grassland, wetland. Blooming
period: (April) May-October
Closed cone coniferous
San Francisco collinsia CNPS 1B.2 | forest, coastal scrub, No Potential. No
Collinsia multicolor Elevation: 30 - 250 meters. suitable habitat present.
Blooming period: Mar.-May
Moist ravines, riparian
Western leatherwood thickets on slopes, broad No Potential. No
Dirca occidentalis CNPS 1B.2 | leafed upland forest, closed- suitable habitat on site.
cone coniferous forest,
chaparral, cismontane
woodland, north coast
coniferous forest. Elevation:
25 - 425 meters.
San Mateo woolly sunflower FE, CE, Cismontane woodland, No Potential. No
Eriophyllum latilobum CNPS 1B.1 | ultramafic, Elevation: 45 - 150 | suitable habitat on site.
meters. Blooming period:
May- June.
No Potential. No
Minute pocket moss CNPS 1B.2 | North coast coniferous forest | suitable habitat on site.
Fissidens pauperculus (damp coastal soil)
Elevation: 10 - 1024 meters
Hillsborough chocolate lily CNPS 1B.1 | Cismontane woodland, No Potential. No
Fritillaria biflora var. ineziana ultramafic, valley foothill suitable habitat on site.
grassland. Blooming period:
Mar. — Apr.
Fragrant fritillary Coastal scrub, cismontane No Potential. No
Fritillaria liliacea CNPS 1B.2 | woodland, coastal prairie, suitable habitat on site.

No suitable soils present.

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122

EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM

PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097



http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/glossary.html#elevation
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/glossary.html#elevation
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/glossary.html#elevation

Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018

Page 35

Potential to Occur

Limnanthes douglasii ssp.
ornduffii

Meadows and seeps
Elevation: 10 - 20 meters
Blooming period: Nov-May

Species Name Status Habitat? :
Onsite
San Francisco gumplant Coastal bluff, coastal scrub, No Potential. No
Grindelia hirsutula var. CNPS 3.2 grasslands. Elevation: 15 - suitable habitat on site.
maritima 400 meters. Blooming period:
June- Sept.
Short-leaved evax Coastal bluff scrub, coastal No Potential. No
Hesperevax sparsiflora var. CNPS 1B.2 | dunes, sandy soils. suitable habitat on site
brevifolia Elevation: 0 - 215 meters.
Blooming period: Mar.-June.
e e ang | No Potential No
Marin western flax FT, CT, chap arral Iglevation' 5 - 370 suitable habitat present.
Hesperolinon congestum CNPS 1B.1 P : - o No serpentine soils
meters. Blooming period:
present.
Apr.-July.
Closed-cone coniferous
. forest, chaparral, coastal .
Kellogg’s horkelia ' ’ No Potential. No
Horkelia cuneata ssp. sericea CNPS 1B.1 | dunes, coastal s_crub /sandy suitable habitat on site.
or gravelly openings.
Blooming period: Apr. — Sept.
Point Reyes horkelia CNPS 1B.2 | Sandy coastal dunes, coastal | No Potential. No
Horkelia marinensis prairie, coastal scrub suitable habitat present.
Elevation: 5 - 755 meters
Blooming period: May-Sept
Perennial goldfields CNPS 1B.2 | Coastal bluff scrub, coastal No Potential. No
Lasthenia californica ssp. dunes, coastal scrub. suitable habitat present.
macrantha Elevation: 5 - 520 meters.
Blooming period: Jan.- Nov.
Coast yellow leptosiphon CNPS 1B.1 | Coastal bluff scrub, coastal No Potential. No
Leptosiphon croceus prairie. Elevation: 10 - 150 suitable habitat on site
meters. Blooming period:
Apr.-May.
Rose leptosiphon Coastal bluff scrub. Elevation: )
Leptosiphon rosaceus CNPS 1B.1 | 0 - 100 meters. Blooming No Potential. No
period: Apr.-July. suitable habitat present.
Crystal Springs lessingia CNPS 1B.2 | Cismontane woodland,
Lessingia arachnoidea Coas_tal scrub, valley and No Potential. No
foothill grassland, Strong . .
- . . suitable habitat present
affinity to serpentine soil. on site
Elevation: 60 - 200 meters. '
Blooming period: July- Oct.
Ornduff’s meadowfoam CNPS 1B.1 | Agricultural fields. No Potential. No

suitable habitat present.

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122

PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/glossary.html#elevation
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/glossary.html#elevation
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/glossary.html#elevation
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/glossary.html#elevation
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/glossary.html#elevation
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/glossary.html#elevation
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/glossary.html#elevation

Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018

Page 36

Species Name

Status

Habitat?

Potential to Occur
Onsite

Arcuate bush-mallow
Malacothamnus arcuatus

CNPS 1B.2

Chaparral, cismontane
woodland. Elevation: 15 - 355
meters.

No Potential. No
suitable habitat on site.

Marsh microseris
Microseris paludosa

FSC,
CNPS 1B.2

Moist open woods or
grassland; Closed-cone
coniferous forest, cismontane
woodland, coastal scrub,
valley and foothill grassland.
Elevation: 5 - 300 meters
Blooming period: April- June.

No Potential. No
suitable habitat present.

Woodland woollythreads
Monolopia gracilens

CNPS 1B.2

Broadleaved upland forest
(openings), chaparral,
cismontane woodland, north
coast coniferous forest
(openings), Ultramafic, Valley
and foothill grassland,
Elevation: 100 - 1200 meters.
Blooming period: Mar.-July

No Potential. No
suitable habitat present
on site.

White-rayed pentachaeta
Pentachaeta bellidiflora

FE, CE,
CNPS 1B.1

Ultramafic grassland. Open
dry rocky slopes and grassy
areas. Often on soils derived
from serpentine bedrock.
Elevation: 35 - 620 meters.
Blooming period: Mar-May

No Potential. No
suitable habitat present
on site.

Choris’ popcornflower
Plagiobothrys chorisianus var.
chorisianus

CNPS 1B.2

Chaparral, coastal prairie,
coastal scrub, mesic.
Elevation: 15 - 160 meters.
Blooming period: Mar. —June

No Potential. No
suitable habitat on site

Oregon polemonium
Polemonium carneum

CNPS 2.2

Coastal prairie, coastal scrub,
Lower montane coniferous
forest. Elevation: 0 - 1830
meters. Blooming period: Apr.
— Sept.

No Potential. No
suitable habitat present.

Hickman’s cinquefoil
Potentilla hickmanii

FE, CE,
CNPS 1B.1

Open habitats within closed-
cone coniferous forest,
coastal bluff scrub, freshwater
marsh, marsh and swamp,
meadow and seep, wetland.
Elevation: 10 - 149 meters.

Blooming period: Apr.-Aug.

No Potential. No
suitable habitat present.

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122

PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/glossary.html#elevation
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/glossary.html#elevation
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/glossary.html#elevation
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/glossary.html#elevation
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/glossary.html#elevation
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/glossary.html#elevation
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/glossary.html#elevation

Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018

Page 37

Potential to Occur

Usnea longissima

growth hardwoods and
conifers
Elevation: 50 - 1460 meters

Species Name Status Habitat? !
Onsite
Chaparral
cismontane woodland
Chaparral ragwort CNPS 2B.2 coastal scrub No Potential. No
Senecio aphanactis ' Elevation: 15 - 800 meters suitable habitat on site.
Blooming period: Jan-
Apr(May)
San Francisco campion Chaparral, coastal bluff scrub,
Silene verecunda ssp. CNPS 1B.2 | coastal prairie, qoastal scrub, No Potential. No
verecunda valley and foothill grassland. . -
suitable soils present on
Often on mudstone or shale, )
. 8 site.
sandy soils, ultramafic.
Elevation: 30 - 645 meters.
Blooming period: Mar. - Aug.
Saline clover CNPS 1B.2 | Marsh and swamp, valley and | No Potential. No
Trifolium hydrophilum foothill grassland (mesic, suitable habitat present
alkaline), vernal pool. on site.
Elevation: 0 - 300 meters.
Blooming period: Apr.-June
Coastal triquetrella moss Coastal bluff scrub, coastal No Potential. No
Triquetrella californica CNPS 1B.2 | scrub, valley and foothill suitable habitat on site.
grassland, rocky slopes.
Elevation: 10- 100 meters.
San Francisco’s owls’-clover Coastal prairie, coastal scrub No Potential. No habitat
Triphysaria floribunda valley and foothill grassland, or soils present on site.
CNPS 1B.2 | often on serpentine.
Elevation: 10 - 160 meters.
Blooming period: Apr.-June
Methuselah’s beard lichen CNPS 4.2 | Tree branches; usually on old | No Potential. No

suitable habitat on site.

TABLE 1: KEY

(FE) Endangered = Federally listed as Endangered.

(FT) Threatened = Federal list, likely to become endangered in the foreseeable future.
(FP) Proposed = Species or Critical Habitat proposed for official Federal listing.
(FC) Candidate = Federal candidate to become a Proposed species.

(FSC) Federal Species of Concern = May be endangered or threatened, but not enough biological information

to list.

(CE, CT, CR) State Listed = Listed as endangered, threatened or rare by California.

(CSC) California Species of Concern = CDFW concern for population trends.
(CFP) California Fully Protected = Fish and Wildlife Code prohibits take of individuals
(CNPS 1B) = California Native Plant Society: rare or endangered in CA or elsewhere.
0.1: Seriously endangered in California
0.2: Fairly endangered in California
(CNPS 2) = California Native Plant Society: rare or endangered in CA but more common elsewhere.
(CNPS 3) = California Native Plant Society: more information is needed to determine degree of sensitivity.
(CNPS 4) = California Native Plant Society: plant of limited distribution.

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122

EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM

PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097



http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/glossary.html#elevation
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/glossary.html#elevation
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/glossary.html#elevation
http://www.rareplants.cnps.org/glossary.html#elevation

Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 38

CNPS Threat Ranks
0.1 = Seriously threatened in California
0.2 = Fairly threatened in California
0.3 = Not very threatened in California

(Sensitive) = CA Dept. of Forestry classification; deserves special consideration during timber harvest

operations.

(WBWG:M) = Western Bat Working Group: Medium Priority

(WBWG:H) = Western Bat Working Group: High Priority

(D) = Delisted from Federal List. Status to be monitored for 5 years.

(WL) = Watch List California Department of Fish and Wildlife

NatureServe Conservation Status Rankings

(G1) = Globally Critically Imperiled. At very high risk of extinction due to extreme rarity (often 5 or fewer
populations), very steep declines, or other factors.

(G2) = Globally Imperiled. At high risk of extinction due to very restricted range, very few populations (often 20
or fewer), steep declines, or other factors.

(G3) = Globally Vulnerable. At moderate risk of extinction due to a restricted range, relatively few populations
(often 80 or fewer), recent and widespread declines, or other factors.

(S1) = State Critically Imperiled. At very high risk of extinction due to extreme rarity (often 5 or fewer
populations), very steep declines, or other factors.

(S2) = State Imperiled. At high risk of extinction due to very restricted range, very few populations (often 20
or fewer), steep declines, or other factors.

(S3) = State Vulnerable. At moderate risk of extinction due to a restricted range, relatively few populations
(often 80 or fewer), recent and widespread declines, or other factors.

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018

Page 39

APPENDIX A: Plant and Animal Species List

The following species were detected by sight or sign (e.g. scat, tracks) on Sea Crest

School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay, CA.

Common Name Species

Plants Scarlet pimpernel* Anagallis arvensis
Slender oat* Avena barbata
Coyote brush Baccharis pilularis

English lawn daisy*

Bellis perennis

Rescue grass*

Bromus catharticus

Ripgut grass*

B. diandrus

Sea fig* Carpobrotus chilensis
Bull thistle* Cirsium vulgare
Poison hemlock* Conium maculatum
Cotoneaster* Cotoneaster franchetii
Jade plant* Crassula ovata

Cape ivy* Delairea odorata

Panic veldtgrass*

Ehrharta erecta

Canada horseweed

Erigeron canadensis

White stemmed filaree*

Erodium moschatum

California poppy

Eschscholzia californica

Blue gum

Eucalyptus globulus

Drug fumatory

Fumaria officinalis

Cutleaf geranium*

Geranium dissectum

English ivy Hedera helix

Bristly ox tongue* Helminthotheca echioides
Monterey cypress Hesperocyparis macrocarpa
Foxtail chess* Hordeum murinum
Hydrangea* Hydrangea sp.

Lantana* Lantana camara

Lavender* Lavandula sp.

Cheeseweed* Malva parviflora

Mint* Mentha sp.

Sweet basil* Ocimum basilicum

Bermuda buttercup, sourgrass*

Oxalis pes-caprae

Pittosporum

Pittosporum sp.

English plantain*

Plantago lanceolata

Common plantain*

Plantago major

Annual bluegrass*

Poa annua

Rosemary™* Rosmarinus officinalis
California blackberry Rubus ursinus
Curly dock* Rumex crispus

Arroyo willow

Salix laseolepis

Pineapple sage*

Salvia elegans

Plants Blue elderberry

Sambucus nigra ssp. caerulea

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122

PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097

EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM




Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018

Page 40

Common Name

Species

(cont’d)

California hedge nettle

Stachys bullata

Common dandelion*

Taraxacum officinale

Spanish moss*

Tillandsia usneoides

White clover Trifolium repens
Garden nasturtium* Tropaeolum majus
Tulips* Tulipa sp.
Stinging nettle Urtica dioica
Spring vetch* Vicia sativa
Periwinkle* Vinca major
Calla lily* Zantedeschia aethiopica
*= non-native species
Mammals Mule deer (scat) Odocoileus hemionus
Birds American robin Turdus migratorius

Anna’s hummingbird

Calypte anna

Bewick’s wren

Thyromanes bewickii

Black phoebe

Sayornis nigricans

Bushtit

Psaltiparus minimus

California towhee

Melozone crissalis

Chestnut-backed chickadee

Poecile rufescens

Dark-eyed junco

Junco hyemalis

Golden-crowned sparrow

Zonotrichia atricaphilla

Mourning dove

Zenaida macroura

Northern flicker

Colaptes auratus

Red-tailed hawk

Buteo jamaicensis

Sharp-shinned hawk

Accipiter striatus

Song sparrow

Melospiza melodia

Steller’s jay

Cyanocitta stelleri

Townsend’s warbler

Setophaga townsendi

Yellow-rumped warbler

Setophaga coronata

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122

PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097

EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM




Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 41

APPENDIX B: Representative Photos of Sea Crest School Property

Ifigure B-1. View of annual brome grassland on Sea Crest School prperty, east of
fence line with mature Monterey cypress in background. Photo date: 02/13/2018.

Sy

Figure B-2. View of annual brome grasland east of the fence line on Sea Crest
property, looking east, with arroyo willow thicket in the backgound.
Photo date: 02/13/2018.

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 42

3 |

,-“ o > 9 4 NS A b
of arroyo willow thicket down the slope to Arroyo Leon; Dense
understory of cape ivy and California blackberry are present. Photo date: 02/13/2018.

b v
channel and vegetated banks. Photo date: 02/13/18.

_

Figure B-4. View of Arroyo Leon

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



Biological Resources Assessment for Sea Crest School, 901 Arnold Way, Half Moon Bay —March 16, 2018
Page 43

gure B-5. ew of recreation turf field an Iandcaped ontery cypresson northeast
boundary of Sea Crest School. Photo date: 02/13/18.

Figure B-6. Photo of Pittosporum trees/shrubs on right, with playground and eastern fence
line in background. Photo date: 02/13/18.

1410 31°" AVENUE — SAN FRANCISCO CA 94122 PH: 415-404-6757 — CELL: 650-269-3894 — FAX: 415-404-6097
EMAIL: CRECOLOGY @GMAIL.COM - WWW.CRECOLOGY.COM



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR
OF THE CITY OF HALF MOON BAY

For meeting of: June 27, 2018

STAFF REPORT

TO:

FROM:

TITLE:

Jill Ekas, Community Development Director
Brittney Cozzolino, Assistant Planner

Coastal Development Permit and Architectural Review File No. PDP-17-085 for

417 Chesterfield Ave

RECOMMENDATION

Approve PDP-17-085, an application for a Coastal Development Permit and Architectural Review
to allow the construction of a new 1,395 square-foot single-family residence on a 2,500 square-
foot severely substandard vacant lot at 417 Chesterfield Avenue, based upon the Findings and
Evidence contained in Exhibit A of the Draft Resolution, and subject to the Conditions of Approval

in Exhibit B.

PROJECT BACKGROUND

Summary of Project

File Number

PDP-17-085

Requested Permits/Approvals

Coastal Development Permit
Architectural Review

Site Location

417 Chesterfield Ave/ APN 056-055-190

Applicant/Property Owner

Greg Ward/Marcos and Esther Hernandez

Project Planner

Brittney Cozzolino; (650) 750-2014; bcozzolino@hmbcity.com

Zoning District

R-1 B-2 Single Family Residential

LCP Land Use Plan Designation

Residential Medium Density

Water Service

One 5/8 inch uninstalled non-priority water connection

Sewer Service (Sewer
Authority Mid-Coast)

Assessment and connection fee required

Street Improvements

Construction of road extension and frontage improvements
required.

Environmental Determination

Categorically Exempt pursuant to California Code of
Regulations, Section 15303(a) — construction of one single-
family residence

Heritage Trees

None on the site or within area of construction.

No tree protection plan required



mailto:bcozzolino@hmbcity.com

Community Development Director Report PDP-17-085 Page 2 of 6
June 27,2018

Story Poles Not No | Located in a Visual Resource Area?
Required | No | Variance or Exception required?

No | Located in a largely undeveloped area?
Right of Appeal Any aggrieved person may appeal the Director’s decision to
the Planning Commission within ten (10) working days of the
decision.

The project is located within the Coastal Commission Appeals
Jurisdiction; therefore, final City action may be appealed to
the Coastal Commission.

Subject Site
(Approximate)

T ——

Figur 2. Site Photo |



Community Development Director Report PDP-17-085 Page 3 of 6
June 27, 2018

Site and Surrounding Properties

The project site is located on the south side of Chesterfield Avenue between St. James Avenue
and Ralston Avenue in an existing residential neighborhood. The site is currently vacant and
severely substandard. The site is zoned R-1 B-2 Single-Family Residential, a zoning designation
that allows single-family residences. Land use and zoning for properties surrounding the subject
site are as follows:

North Open field agriculture U-R Urban Reserve District
South Vacant Lot R-1 B-2 Single Family Residential
District
East Two-story Single-Family R-1 B-2 Single Family Residential
Residence District
West Vacant Lot R-1 B-2 Single Family Residential
District

Chesterfield Avenue does not currently extend to the subject site, thus there are no existing
street or frontage improvements at the property. The project proposal includes
requirements to construct these right-of-way and frontage improvements such that the site
is accessible to City standards, and are included herein as conditions of approval as well.

Project Description

The project consists of a new two-story residence with a floor area of 1,395 square feet. The
proposed residence includes an attached one-car garage that is the prominent feature of the
front facade and is accessed by a 20-foot wide driveway that spans most of the front property
line. The driveway, made of permeable pavers, extends into an uncovered parking space
adjacent to the garage and leads to the front entryway of the house. The second story steps
back from the first story with a hipped roof, two gabled building elements, and windows
similar in style to those at the ground level. Other features include a roof skylight, a second-
story deck off the second bedroom, and dormer features at the second-floor bathroom and
the third bedroom. Proposed materials include straight edge panel shingles on the upper
level, horizontal wood siding on the lower level, and wood trim, rafters, and overhangs;
proposed colors are coastal greys with white trim and an English custard-colored front door.



Community Development Director Report PDP-17-085 Page 4 of 6
June 27, 2018

l
jg;ﬁ![';

E

b,
TTT TTT T1
[ ITIT T]1

7
1
jj IIII II III I”III I“I
AT LTI TIT TID JML TI LI IO 111 \
TI T IIT TO0T TT T IO T IO PO PO (L PO I ITT1 11
4 ‘I{IIIII\I IIIIII III III III I II IIIIII III II IIIIII I\III II I III III II\I IIIIII IIIIII IIII II h
ir / !III IIIII“IIII“IIII“IIII“I\III“IIII”IIIII |||||| TTITT ITT IIT I1 \
] s - e AT AT N
N UL U LT O e e e . UPPERFLOOR g~
TT I LT ILT LT | 9-0"
| T Y e Y e Y T O A e i Y T T TTT 1T T |
< - - o ¥
o.0p- \ | . 160
M~ | - A1
¢+ BOoonaa e E =
. — 1 ] oo
2 B = | EEL B }
| 1 1 [ | | |
PL — T - PL
| — 1 - |
B 0 C|E l
S A I R 1l ] _ | LOWER FLOOR g~
—L L O e B e T B LR (L _ _\| 0-0" %
30" =, NORTH-WEST ELEVATION GROUND LEVEL g
P‘ m(2) /0= 1y 0-8"

Figure 3. Front Elevation of Proposed Residence

ANALYSIS

The key issues for this project are conformance with the General Plan/Local Coastal Land Use
Plan, conformance with the Zoning Code/LCP Implementation Plan,* and design compatibility
with surrounding development.

Conformance with the General Plan/Local Coastal Program Land Use Plan

The proposed single-family residence on a 2,500 square-foot site is consistent with the
Medium Density Residential General Plan/Local Coastal Land Use Plan designation. The
project site is included in the certified Housing Element inventory of suitable sites for
residential development with a realistic yield of one unit.

Conformance with the Zoning Code
The proposed single-family residential use is a principally permitted use in the R-1 B-2 Single-
Family Residential Zoning District. As indicated in Table 1 below, the proposed project

! The Zoning Code is the LCP Implementation Plan.



Community Development Director Report PDP-17-085 Page 5 of 6
June 27, 2018

conforms to all the development standards for severely substandard lots in the R-1 B-2
District.

Table 1. Project Conformance with R-1 B-2 Severely Substandard Lot Zoning Requirements

Development Standards Zoning Requirements Proposed
Min. Site Area 7,500 sq. ft. 2,500 sq. ft. (existing)
Min. Average Site Width 75 ft. 25 ft. (existing)
Min. Front Setback 25 ft. 25 ft.
Min. Interior Side Setback 3 ft. 3 ft.
Minimum Combined Side Setbacks | 8 ft. 8 ft.
Min. Rear Setback 20 ft. 20 ft.
Max. Two-Story Height 28 ft. 22 ft. 5in.
Max. Two-Story Lot Coverage 35% (875 sq. ft.) 31% (781.3 sq. ft.)
0.5:1 + 200 sq. ft. (1,450 | 0.48:1 + 200 sqg. ft. (1,395
Max. Floor Area Ratio sq. ft.) sq. ft.)
1 garage space, 1 1 garage space, 1
Min. Parking Spaces covered or uncovered | uncovered space
Maximum Building Envelope Per Zoning Code Conforms

Table 2 identifies key Zoning Code/LCP Implementation Plan topics and their applicability to
the subject site. As indicated in the table, there are no coastal resource concerns associated
with the proposed development.

Table 2. Key Zoning Code/LCP Implementation Plan Topics

Topic Applicability/Explanation

Not located in an Environmentally Sensitive
Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Area| No | Habitat Area.

Visual Resource Area No [ Not located in a Visual Resource Area.
Public Access No [ House will have no effect on coastal access.
Archaeologically Resource Area No | Not in area of mapped or known resources.

Historic Resources No | No historic resources exist on the site.




Community Development Director Report PDP-17-085 Page 6 of 6
June 27, 2018

Architectural Design Compatibility

The Single Family Residential Design Guidelines (RDG) encourage flexibility in architectural
design to reflect the community’s eclectic character and seek to achieve compatible design
within existing neighborhoods. The project proposes a Craftsman-inspired two-story design
in a neighborhood that is generally characterized by more single-story traditional
architectural styles; nevertheless, the design utilizes techniques identified in the RDG to
achieve compatibility with surrounding development. The project proposes a two-story
house and one-car garage that is located at the front setback line and oriented to the street,
consistent with the neighborhood pattern. The surrounding properties contain a mix of
undeveloped lots, single story residences, and much larger two-story residences relative to
their larger lot sizes. Considering the size of the subject lot and its development constraints,
the proposed residence is appropriately massed and fittingly makes use of the allowed
additional 200 square feet of floor area. The second story of the proposed house steps back
from the first story at the front and rear, consistent with recommendations of the RDG,
thereby reducing the perceived mass and minimizing shading of neighboring properties and
views into rear yards. The proposed building is well-articulated on all sides and building
materials and colors are consistent with the proposed architectural style, compatible with
the surrounding area, and suitable to the coastal setting. Furthermore, the proposed
building follows multiple other design guidelines of the RDG by incorporating downcast
exterior lighting, privacy-conscious windows, and varied landscaping elements with low-
water plants.

Environmental Review
The project is Categorically Exempt pursuant to California Code of Regulations Section
15303(a), in that the project consists of the construction of one single-family residence.

Conclusion

Based on the above analysis, staff concludes that the proposed residence is consistent with
the General Plan/Local Coastal Land Use Plan, the Zoning Code/LCP Implementation Plan,
and the Residential Design Guidelines; is compatible with surrounding development; and
conforms to the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act. Staff
recommends approval of the project based on the findings and conditions of approval
(Exhibits A and B of the attached Draft Resolution).

ATTACHMENTS
1. Draft Resolution with Findings and Evidence, Exhibit A and Conditions of Approval,
Exhibit B.

2. Project Plans



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR RESOLUTION CDR-18-
RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL
PDP-17-085

A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR OF THE CITY OF HALF MOON
BAY APPROVING A COASTAL DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AND ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW TO ALLOW
THE CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW 1,395 SQUARE-FOOT SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE ON A 2,500
SQUARE-FOOT SEVERELY SUBSTANDARD LOT AT 417 CHESTERFIELD AVENUE IN THE R-1 B-2
RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICT AND THE RESIDENTIAL MEDIUM DENSITY GENERAL PLAN
DESIGNATION (APN 056-055-190)

WHEREAS, an application was submitted requesting approval of Coastal Development
Permit and Architectural Review to allow the construction of a new 1,395 square-foot, two-story
single-family residence on a 2,500 square-foot severely substandard vacant lot at 417
Chesterfield Avenue in the R-1 B-2 Residential Zoning District and the Residential Medium
Density General Plan designation (APN 056-055-190); and

WHEREAS, the procedures for processing the application have been followed as required
by law; and

WHEREAS, the Community Development Director conducted a duly noticed public
hearing on June 27, 2018, at which time all those desiring to be heard on the matter were given
an opportunity to be heard; and

WHEREAS, the Community Development Director considered all written and oral
testimony presented for consideration; and

WHEREAS, the Community Development Director has determined that the requested
Coastal Development Permit for the construction of a new 1,395 square-foot, two-story single-
family residence is exempt from CEQA pursuant to California Code of Regulations Section
15303(a), which exempts the construction of one single-family residence; and

WHEREAS, the Community Development Director has made the required findings for
approval of the project, set forth in Exhibit A to this resolution;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that, based upon the Findings in Exhibit A and subject
to the Conditions of Approval contained in Exhibit B, the Community Development Director
approves PDP-17-085.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City of Half Moon Bay Community Development Director
at a duly noticed public hearing held June 27, 2018.

APPROVED:

Jill Ekas, Community Development Director



EXHIBIT A
FINDINGS AND EVIDENCE
Community Development Director Resolution CDR-18-____
PDP-17-085

Coastal Development Permit — Findings for Approval

The required Coastal Development Permit for this project may be approved or conditionally
approved only after the approving authority has made the following findings per Municipal Code
Section 18.20.070:

1. Local Coastal Program — The development as proposed or as modified by conditions, conforms
to the Local Coastal Program.

Evidence: The project consists of construction of a new single-family residence on an infill
site in an existing neighborhood where public services and infrastructure are available or will
be provided through the conditions of approval of this project. The project conforms to all
City requirements, will not impact coastal resources and is consistent with the policies of the
City’s Land Use Plan (LUP).

Coastal Act 30240(b) and Policy 3-3 (b): Development in areas adjacent to environmentally
sensitive habitat areas shall be sited and designed to prevent impacts which would
significantly degrade such areas, and shall be compatible with the continuance of such
habitat areas.

Compliance: The subject site is not adjacent to a mapped environmentally sensitive habitat
area.

Policy 7-1: The City will establish regulations to protect the scenic corridor of Highway 1,
including setbacks for new development, screening of commercial parking and landscaping
associated with new development. The minimum standards shall include all areas within 200
yards of State Highway 1 which are visible from the road.

Compliance: The subject site is located approximately 200 yards from State Highway 1,
but visibility of the site is limited due to the surrounding residential developments.
Furthermore, Highway 1 is not designated a Scenic Highway within the City limits of Half
Moon Bay and the proposed home will be located within an established neighborhood
and therefore will not change the context of visual character.

Policy 7-5: All new development, including additions and remodeling, shall be subject to
design review.

Compliance: The proposed residence has been subject to design review by the Community
Development Director.

Resolution CDR 18-



Policy 7-11: New development along primary access routes from Highway 1 to the beach, as
designated on the Land Use Map, shall be designed and sited so as to maintain and enhance
the scenic quality of such routes, including building setbacks, maintenance of low height of
structures, and landscaping which establishes a scenic gateway and corridor.

Compliance: The proposed single-family residence is not located along a primary access
route from Highway 1 and will not affect coastal access.

Coastal Act 30244: Where development would adversely impact archaeological or
paleontological resources as identified by the State Historic Preservation Officer,
reasonable mitigation measures shall be required.

Compliance: The proposed single-family residence is not located at or near identified
archaeological or paleontological resources. If cultural resources or paleontological resources
are unexpectedly encountered during subsurface excavation, the permit has been
conditioned to require that construction halt until the find can be evaluated and appropriate
mitigation identified.

2. Growth Management System — The development is consistent with the annual population
limitation system established in the Land Use Plan and Zoning Ordinance.

Evidence: The proposed site has been granted a valid Measure D Certificate for
construction of one single-family residence. Therefore, the project conforms to the
requirements of the City’s growth management system.

3. General Plan Housing Element — The site is identified in the City’s certified Housing Element
as suitable for development with a realistic yield of one unit.

Evidence: The subject site is identified in the City’s certified Housing Element as suitable for
development with a realistic yield of one unit.

4. Zoning Provisions — The development is consistent with the use limitations and property
development standards of the base district as well as the other requirements of the Zoning
Ordinance.

Evidence: The proposed residence conforms to the requirements of the R-1 B-2 Residential
Zoning District, which allows single-family residences as a principally permitted use. The
proposed setbacks, lot coverage, height, parking and landscaping meet the requirements of
the R-1 B-2 Zoning District and other relevant provisions of the Zoning Code.

5. Adequate Services — The proposed development will be provided with adequate services and
infrastructure in @ manner that is consistent with the Local Coastal Program.

Resolution CDR 18-



Evidence: The site is located in an existing developed neighborhood where utilities and
services are generally available. The property currently has a 5/8” uninstalled non-priority
water service assigned to the site. A sewer main is located in the Chesterfield right-of-way,
and assessment for sewer units and a connection fee will be required. As there are currently
no sidewalks, curbs or gutters along this stretch of Chesterfield Avenue and Chesterfield
Avenue itself does not extend to the property frontage, the applicant proposes to construct
these right-of-way improvements along the property frontage as well as a berm to retain
the street pavement along the frontage of the two parcels to the west.

6. California Coastal Act — Any development to be located between the sea and the first public
road parallel to the sea conforms to the public access and public recreation policies of Chapter
3 of the California Coastal Act.

Evidence: The proposed development is located between the sea and the first public road
parallel to the sea per the Coastal Commission’s jurisdiction maps but is not located on a
primary beach access route and will not impact coastal access.

7. Design Review Criteria — The community development director, planning commission, or city
council has reviewed and considered each specific case and any and all of the following criteria
in determining that the architectural and site design standards identified in Municipal Code
Sections 14.37.035 and 18.20.070 (F) have been satisfactorily addressed.

Evidence: The Community Development Director has reviewed the design of the proposed
project and has determined that the design review criteria of Municipal Code Subsection
18.20.070(F) have been satisfactorily addressed. The proposed building design (including
building scale, massing, detailing, colors, and materials) and the site design (including
building location and orientation, site access, and landscaping) conform to all requirements
of the Zoning Code and are consistent with the recommendations of the Residential Design
Guidelines.

Architectural Site and Design Review — Findings

The required Architectural and/or Site and Design Review for this project may be approved or
conditionally approved only after the approving authority has made the findings per Municipal
Code Section 14.37.040. In making these findings, the Community Development Director has
considered the design approval criteria set forth in Municipal Code Section 14.37.035.

1. That such buildings, structures, planting, paving and other improvements shall be so
designed and constructed that they will not be of unsightly or obnoxious appearance to the
extent that they will hinder the orderly and harmonious development of the city;

Evidence: The Director has reviewed the design of proposed project and concluded that the
proposal is in compliance with the Single-Family Residential Design Guidelines (RDG) and is
compatible with surrounding development. The RDG encourage flexibility in architectural

Resolution CDR 18-



design to reflect the community’s eclectic character and seek to achieve compatible design
within existing neighborhoods. The project proposes a Craftsman-inspired two-story design
in a neighborhood that is generally characterized by more single-story traditional
architectural styles; nevertheless, the design utilizes techniques identified in the RDG to
achieve compatibility with surrounding development. The proposed residence is well
designed, will not be of unsightly appearance, and will not hinder the harmonious
development of the city.

2. That such buildings, structures, planting, paving and other improvements will not impair the
desirability or opportunity to attain the optimum use and the value of the land and the
improvements, or otherwise impair the desirability of living or working conditions in the
same or adjacent areas; and

Evidence: The project consists of a single-family residence that conforms to the
requirements of the Zoning Code, is consistent with the Single-Family Residential Design
Guidelines, and is compatible with the scale and character of development in the
surrounding area. Chesterfield Avenue does not currently extend to the subject site, thus
there are no existing street or frontage improvements at the property. The project proposal
includes requirements to construct these right-of-way and frontage improvements such
that the site is accessible to City standards, and are included herein as conditions of
approval as well. The proposed development and these street and frontage improvements
will contribute to the economic value of the land and the surrounding area.

3. The project has been designed in conformance and consistency with the Single-Family
Residential Design Guidelines (where applicable).

Evidence: The RDG encourage flexibility in architectural design to reflect the
community’s eclectic character and seek to achieve compatible design within existing
neighborhoods. The project proposes a Craftsman-inspired two-story design in a
neighborhood that is generally characterized by more single-story traditional
architectural styles; nevertheless, the design utilizes techniques identified in the RDG
to achieve compatibility with surrounding development. The proposed project
respects the neighborhood pattern by locating the building behind the front setback
line and orienting the house and garage to the street. The second story steps back at
the front and rear, thereby reducing the perceived mass and minimizing shading of
neighboring properties. The building massing is broken up with a series of gables and
dormers to achieve articulation on all sides of the building, consistent with RDG
recommendations. The proposed building materials and colors are consistent with the
architectural style and suitable to the coastal setting. Furthermore, the proposed
building follows multiple other design guidelines of the RDG by incorporating downcast
exterior lighting, privacy-conscious windows, and varied landscaping elements with
low-water plants.

Resolution CDR 18-



Environmental Review — Finding

CEQA — The project will not have a significant effect on the environment.
Evidence: The project is Categorically Exempt pursuant to California Code of Regulations

Section 15303(a) in that the project consists of the construction of one single-family
residence.

Resolution CDR 18-



EXHIBIT B
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
Community Development Director Resolution CDR-18-____
PDP-17-085

A. The following Conditions shall apply to the subject site to the satisfaction of
the Community Development Director:

1. CONFORMANCE WITH APPROVED PLANS. Development of the site shall conform to the
approved plans entitled “Hernandez Residence” with a City date stamp of May 29, 2018,
except for any revisions required by this permit. The Community Development Director
shall review and may approve any deviation from the approved plans that is determined

minor in nature. Any other change shall require the submittal of a major modification
application and fees and shall be subject to a public hearing as required by Title 18.
(Planning)

2. CONFORMANCE WITH CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL. The Community Development
Director shall review and may approve any deviation from the Conditions of Approval that

is determined minor in nature. Any other change shall require the submittal of a major
modification application and fees and shall be subject to a public hearing as required by
Title 18. (Planning)

3. CONFORMANCE WITH THE MUNICIPAL CODE. No part of this approval shall be construed
to permit a violation of any part of the Half Moon Bay Municipal Code. (Planning)

4. LIGHTING. All exterior lighting shall be fully shielded so that no light source is visible from
outside the property, except as otherwise expressly approved. (Planning)

5. FRONTAGE MAINTANENCE AND LIABILITY. It shall be the duty of the Property Owner(s)
whose property is adjacent to any portion of a public street or place to maintain any
frontage improvements in a safe and non-dangerous condition. Maintenance shall include
removal and replacement of concrete to eliminate tripping hazards; and pruning and

trimming of trees, shrubs, ground cover and other landscaping within the public right-of-
way. The Property Owner has the primary and exclusive duty to fund and perform such
maintenance and repair, whether or not the City has notified the property owner of the
need for such maintenance or repairs or has performed similar maintenance or repairs in
the past, pursuant to §12.18.020 and §12.18.030 of the Half Moon Bay Municipal Code.
(Engineering)

6. LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE. The applicant/owner shall ensure that all landscaped areas

and/or fences are continuously maintained, and all plant material is maintained free of
refuse and weeds and in a healthy growing condition. (Planning)

Resolution CDR 18-



B. The following Conditions shall be fulfilled to the satisfaction of the
Community Development Director prior to the issuance of building permits:

1. SIGNED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL. The applicant/owner shall submit a signed copy of the
conditions of approval to the Planning Division prior to issuance of a building permit.
(Planning)

2. REQUIRED PLAN REVISIONS. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit
revised plans providing the following:

a. Revise Sheet A.2 (Elevations) to include the proposed building materials and colors.

b. Revise Sheet A.O (Title Sheet) and Sheet A.01 (Landscape Plan) to reduce the
proposed driveway apron to a 12-foot wide single curb cut and provide additional
front yard landscaping in the space provided by this change.

3. DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES. The following impact fees shall be paid to the City prior to
issuance of building permits in conformance with the City’s adopted Master Fee Schedule:

a. Sewer Connection Fee

b. Storm Drainage Fee

c. Capital Outlay Facilities Fee
d. Traffic Mitigation Fee

e. Park Facilities Fee

4. SCHOOL IMPACT FEES. The permittee shall provide proof of payment of required school
Impact fees to Cabrillo Unified School District prior to issuance of building permits.

5. VALID MEASURE D CERTIFICATE. No building permit shall be issued unless the Measure D
Certificate issued for the property has not expired and remains valid to the satisfaction of

the Community Development Director. (Planning)

6. CONSTRUCTION PLANS. File Number PDP-17-085 and the Conditions of Approval for this
project shall be provided on the cover page of the building permit application plan

submittal. All plans, specifications, engineering calculations, diagrams, reports, and other
data for construction of the building and required improvements shall be submitted with
the appropriate permit application to the City’s Building and Engineering Divisions for
review and approval. Computations and back-up data will be considered a part of the
required plans. Structural calculations and engineering calculations shall be prepared, wet-
stamped and signed by an engineer or architect licensed by the State of California. The plans
must show the location of the sewer connection and property line sewer cleanout.
(Planning)

7. WATER CONSERVATION IN LANDSCAPING. If the project includes 500 square feet or more
of irrigated landscaping (new or rehabilitated) the permittee shall submit landscape and

Resolution CDR 18-



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

irrigation plans and an Outdoor Water Efficiency Checklist that demonstrate compliance
with the City’s Water Conservation in Landscaping Ordinance (Chapter 13.04 of the
Municipal Code) prior to issuance of building permits to the satisfaction of the Community
Development Director. (Planning)

SURVEY REQUIRED. A detailed topographic/site boundary survey prepared by a certified
licensed surveyor shall be submitted with building application plans. The survey shall

include a baseline elevation datum point on, or close to the construction site, indicating
existing grade of the datum. This datum point shall be permanent, marked, shall remain
fixed in the field, and shall not be disturbed throughout the building process. Examples of
datum points include: fire hydrants, manhole covers, survey markers, and street curbs. This
datum point shall be shown on all site plans including revised/resubmitted plans. The survey
must show the footprint and roof plan of the proposed residence and identify the existing
grade elevations at the corners and roof ridgeline of the residence. (Building)

EVIDENCE OF WATER CONNECTION CAPACITY. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the
permittee shall submit a letter from Coastside County Water District certifying that the

subject site has an adequately-sized water connection for this approved project. (Building)

EVIDENCE OF SEWER CONNECTION CAPACITY. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the
permittee shall demonstrate issuance of a sewer permit from the Sewer Authority Mid-
Coast. (Building)

SEWER CONNECTION FEE. The proposed development is subject to a sewer connection fee
pursuant to Section 13.36.070 of the Half Moon Bay Municipal Code. The fee shall be paid
to the City prior to issuance of building permits. (Engineering)

CONSTRUCTION PLANS. Construction plans submitted for building permit(s) shall include a
plan sheet showing utility connections, trench restoration details, driveway apron (driveway
apron width, spacing between driveways, slopes, etc.), and other improvements in the
public right-of-way meeting City standards. (Engineering)

STREET FRONTAGE IMPROVEMENTS. The permittee shall construct the Chesterfield Avenue
right-of-way and property frontage improvements as shown on the approved plans with a
City date stamp of May 29, 2018. Chesterfield Avenue shall extend to the east edge of the
subject property, and frontage improvements shall include curb, gutter, and sidewalk. The
sidewalk shall extend across the Chesterfield frontage of 306 Ralston Avenue in accordance
with the property owner’s deferred street agreement with the City.

ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS. The proposed project, including street improvements, shall
comply with State of California and federal (ADA) accessibility standards and with the line of
sight requirements of Half Moon Bay Zoning Code Section 18.06.040(B).

Resolution CDR 18-



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

LOT GRADING, MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLE STORAGE. No lot site grading,
preparation, storage, or placement of construction materials, equipment, or vehicles shall
take place prior to issuance of a building permit. Lot Grading includes, but is not limited to,
any leveling, scraping, clearing, or removal of lot surface area. Based on the listed volume of
grading of 110 cubic yards, a grading permit will be required in advance of issuance of a
building permit. Materials, Equipment, and Vehicles include, but are not limited to:

a. All masonry, wood, and steel construction materials;
b. All construction-related equipment and storage containers; and
c. All construction-related vehicles, including temporary trailers. (Engineering)

COPPER BUILDING ELEMENTS. The building plans shall specify that all copper building
elements will be pre-patinated at the factory, or if patination will occur on the site, the

plans shall identify best management practices in conformance with the San Mateo
Countywide Water Pollution Prevention Program Requirements for Architectural Copper, to
the satisfaction of the City Engineer. (Engineering)

EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL. An erosion and sediment control plan shall be
submitted that shows effective Best Management Practices (BMP) and erosion and
sediment control measures for the site. Construction plans shall also include the

“construction best management practices” plan sheet. (Engineering)

LOT DRAINAGE PLAN AND ON-SITE DETENTION Construction plans submitted for building
permits shall include a Lot Drainage Plan showing how the surface runoff is retained on the

site and the remainder is drained to the public right-of-way. Plans shall include design
details and supporting calculations for storm water detention on-site for the additional run-
off from a ten-year frequency storm of two-hour duration. Plans shall show how the rear
and side yards will properly drain to an approved BMP facility, and how the finished grades
on the property relate to the existing grades on adjacent property. The Plan shall include
pad elevation, finished floor elevation, site high and low points, drainage swales, area
drains, and existing grade at adjacent property. The permittee shall provide appropriate
measures to discharge the flood waters from any unfinished floor areas. (Engineering)

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT-TREATMENT (FOR NON-REGULATED PROJECTS). Non-
regulated projects consist of single-family residences and other small projects that create
and/or replace less than 5,000 square feet of impervious surface. Construction plans

submitted for building permits shall include a storm water management-treatment plan
showing implementation of at least one of the six Low Impact Development (LID) measures
listed below:

a. Direct runoff into cisterns or rain barrels and use rainwater for irrigation or other
non-potable use;

Resolution CDR 18-



20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

b. Direct roof runoff into vegetated areas;

c. Direct runoff from sidewalks, walkways, and/or patios into vegetated areas;

d. Direct runoff from driveways and /or uncovered parking lots into vegetated areas;
e. Construct sidewalks, walkways, and/or patios with permeable surfaces; or

f.  Construct bike lanes, driveways, and/or uncovered parking lots with permeable
surfaces. (Engineering)

Permittee shall also submit the ‘stormwater checklist for small projects’ with the building
plan submittal.

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES/SERVICES. Electric, telecommunication, and cable and utility
service to the property shall be through underground service connections only. No

overhead utilities are allowed. Show locations of all utility service connections: sanitary
sewer, storm drain (if applicable), water (domestic and fire), cable television, telephone,
electrical, and gas. (Engineering)

STREET/PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY CUTS FOR UTILITY CONNECTIONS. Street cuts for utility

connections that are less than twenty (20) feet apart shall be repaired with a single patch.
Asphalt repair and overlay shall be in accordance with the City Standard Details. Two or
more street cuts in the frontage road for utility connections will require a single 2-inch thick
asphalt concrete overlay patch on existing pavement across the property frontage.
(Engineering)

FIRE CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS. The permittee shall comply with all applicable fire and

building codes and standards relating to fire and panic safety as identified by the Coastside
Fire Protection District during the building permit process. (Fire)

HARD-WIRED SMOKE DETECTORS/ALARMS. Pursuant to the 2016 California Building and

Residential Code, State Fire Marshal regulations and current Coastside Fire District
Ordinance, the permittee shall install smoke detectors which are hard-wired,
interconnected and have battery backup in each new or reconditioned sleeping room and
at a point centrally located in the corridor or area giving access to each separate sleeping
area. A minimum of one detector per floor is required. Building plan submittals shall
demonstrate conformance with these requirements to the satisfaction of the Building
Official prior to issuance of building permits. (Fire)

FIRE SPRINKLERS AND FIRE DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS. Pursuant to Fire District ordinance,
the permittee shall install an automatic fire sprinkler system throughout the proposed

dwelling. All areas that are accessible for storage purposes shall be equipped with fire
sprinklers. The plans for this system must be submitted to the City of Half Moon Bay
Building Division to the satisfaction of the Building Official prior to issuance of building

Resolution CDR 18-



25.

26.

permits. Upon submission of plans, the City will forward a complete set to the Coastside
County Fire Protection District for review. Fees for automatic fire sprinkler systems shall be
paid to the City prior to plan review. (Fire)

COASTSIDE COUNTY WATER DISTRICT - REGULATIONS. The project shall comply with all
applicable regulations and requirements of the Coastside County Water District. Water

service shall not be in the same trench as other utilities. (Water District)

ENCROACHMENT PERMIT. No construction activity shall occur and no pedestrian and
vehicular traffic control shall be installed within the City right-of-way or affecting the City’s
improvements prior to obtaining an encroachment permit from the City. All improvements
constructed within the City right-of-way shall conform to City standards to the satisfaction
of the City Engineer. Traffic control shall conform to Caltrans/MUTCD Standard Plans for

Traffic Control in Construction and Maintenance Zones. (Engineering)

C. The following conditions shall be implemented to the satisfaction of the

Community Development Director prior to and during construction:

ARCHAEOLOGY-DISCOVERY OF HUMAN REMAINS. Pursuant to Section 7050.5 of the
Health and Safety Code, and Section 5097.94 of the Public Resources Code of the State of
California, in the event of the discovery of human remains during construction, there shall
be no further excavation or disturbance of the site or any nearby area reasonably suspected

to overlie adjacent remains. The County Coroner shall be notified and shall make a
determination as to whether the remains are Native American. If the Coroner determines
that the remains are not subject to his authority, he shall notify the California Native
American Heritage Commission who shall attempt to identify descendants of the deceased
Native American(s). If no satisfactory agreement can be reached as to the disposition of the
remains pursuant to this State law, then the permittee shall re-inter the human remains and
items associated with Native American burials on the property in a location not subject to
further subsurface disturbance. (Planning)

ARCHAEOQOLOGY-DISCOVERY OF RESOURCES. If subsurface historic or archaeological
resources are uncovered during construction, all work shall stop, the applicant shall

notify the Community Development Director and retain a qualified archaeologist to
perform an archaeological reconnaissance and identify any mitigation measures
required to protect archaeological resources. Subsurface excavation shall not resume
until expressly authorized by the Director. (Building)

CONSTRUCTION TRAILERS. Temporary construction trailers are permitted as accessory uses
in conjunction with the development of this site, subject to the following conditions:

a. The construction trailer shall be used as a temporary construction office only.

Resolution CDR 18-



® oo T

Neither sanitation facilities nor plumbed water is permitted within the trailer.
No overnight inhabitance of the construction trailer is permitted.

No construction trailers are permitted on site prior to building permit issuance.
The construction trailer shall be removed prior to issuance of a certificate of
occupancy. (Planning)

4. AIR QUALITY BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES. The project shall implement the following

standard BAAQMD dust control measures during all phases of construction on the project

site:

a.

All active construction areas shall be watered twice daily or more often if necessary.
Increased watering frequency shall be required whenever wind speeds exceed 15
miles-per-hour.

Pave, apply water three times daily, or apply non-toxic soil stabilizers on all unpaved
access roads and parking and staging areas at construction sites.

Cover stockpiles of debris, soil, sand, and any other materials that can be
windblown. Trucks transporting these materials shall be covered.

All visible mud or dirt track-out onto adjacent public roads shall be removed using
wet power vacuum street sweepers at least once per day or as often as necessary to
keep them free of dust and debris associated with site construction. The use of dry
power sweeping is prohibited.

Subsequent to clearing, grading, or excavating, exposed portions of the site shall be
watered, landscaped, treated with soil stabilizers, or covered as soon as possible.
Hydroseed or apply (non-toxic) soil stabilizers to inactive construction areas and
previously graded areas inactive for 10 days or more.

Installation of sandbags or other erosion control measures to prevent silt runoff to
public roadways.

Replanting of vegetation in disturbed areas as soon as possible after completion of
construction.

Idling times shall be minimized either by shutting equipment off when not in use or
reducing the maximum idling time to five minutes. Clear signage shall be provided
for construction workers at all access points.

All construction equipment shall be maintained and properly tuned in accordance
with manufacturer’s specifications. All equipment shall be checked by a certified
mechanic and determined to be running in proper condition prior to operation.

Post a publicly visible sign with the telephone number and person to contact at the
City of Half Moon Bay regarding dust complaints. This person shall respond and take
corrective action within 48 hours. The BAAQMD’s phone number shall also be visible
to ensure compliance with applicable regulations.

5. HAZARDQOUS MATERIALS. Any materials deemed hazardous by the San Mateo County

Department of Health that are uncovered or discovered during the course of work under

this permit shall be disposed in accordance with regulations of the San Mateo County of
Health. (Building)

Resolution CDR 18-



6.

8.

0.

COMPLIANCE WITH CBC. All structures shall be constructed in compliance with the
standards of the 2016 California Codes of Regulations Title 24, including Building Code,
Residential Code, Administrative Code, Mechanical Code, Plumbing Code, Electrical Code,
Energy Code, Fire Code and Green Building Code to the satisfaction of the Building Official.
(Building)

FIRST FLOOR HEIGHT VERIFICATION. Prior to below floor framing or concrete slab steel
reinforcement inspection, a stamped and signed building height verification letter shall be

submitted to the City from a licensed land survey certifying that the first-floor height as
constructed is equal to (or less than) the elevation specified for the first-floor height in the
approved plans.

OVERALL PROJECT HEIGHT. Maximum overall height of the project, including any grading,
foundation, pad, and building elevations shall be calculated using the elevation points

indicated on the topographic survey map submitted at the time of application. The
approved height of all projects developed in the City will be measured from existing grade
as indicated on the submitted topographical survey. (Building)

COMPLETION OF UTILITIES. Any public utilities requiring relocation as a result of the
construction of the building(s) or improvements under this permit shall be relocated at the

owner’s expense. (Building)

10. CONSTRUCTION HOURS. Construction work shall be limited to the hours of 7:00 a.m. to

6:00 p.m. Monday through Friday; 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Saturdays; and 10:00 a.m. to 6:00
p.m. Sundays and holidays, except as expressly authorized by the City Engineer in
conformance with Section 14.40.020 of the Half Moon Bay Municipal Code. (Engineering)

11. NOTICE OF DISRUPTION. The permittee shall provide written notice to affected property

12.

and business owners and a copy of such notice to the City Engineer a minimum of two
business days prior to any planned disruption of pedestrian or vehicular traffic, parking, or
public service facilities. (Engineering)

CONSTRUCTION MATERIAL STORAGE. Construction material shall not be stored in the
street right-of-way without issuance of a Temporary Encroachment Permit. (Engineering)

D. The following conditions shall be implemented to the satisfaction of the

Community Development Director prior to issuance of an occupancy permit:

1.

EXTERIOR COLORS AND MATERIALS. Exterior building colors and materials shall be in

substantial conformance with those shown on the approved color and materials sample
date-stamped 05/29/18 to the satisfaction of the Director of Community Development.
(Planning)

Resolution CDR 18-



2. DISPLAY OF SINGLE-FAMILY STREET ADDRESS. Prior to issuance of an Certificate of
Occupancy, the residential dwelling shall display an internally-illuminated street address

number in a prominent location on the dwelling, visible from the street (a minimum of 6
feet above the surface of the driveway), and with contrasting background and
letters/numbers that are 4 inches in height with a minimum 3/4—inch stroke. Where a
building is set back from the street or otherwise obscured, a street address with 3-inch
reflective numbers/letters shall also be provided near the driveway entrance leading to the
dwelling. (Fire/Building)

E. Validity and Expiration of Permits

1. EFFECTIVE DATE. The site is not located within the Coastal Commission Appeal Zone. This
approval shall take effect after expiration of all City appeal periods. (Planning)

2. ACCURACY OF APPLICATION MATERIALS. The permittee shall be responsible for the
completeness and accuracy of all forms and material submitted for this application. Any

errors or discrepancies found therein may be grounds for the revocation or modification of
this permit and/or any other City approvals. (Planning)

3. PERMIT EXPIRATION. The Coastal Development Permit (CDP) and Architectural Review shall
expire one year from its date of final approval if the use/development has not commenced

in conformance with this permit or the applicant has not obtained an extension of the
permit.

4. PERMIT EXTENSION. The Community Development Director may, at the Director’s
discretion, approve a Minor Amendment for a single one-year extension of this permit

based on a written request and fee submitted to the Director prior to expiration of the
permit. Submittal of a Building Permit application with development plans prior to
expiration of the permit shall constitute an extension of this permit until the building permit
is issued or until the Building Official determines the applicant is no longer diligently
pursuing the required building permit. Any other extension shall require approval of a
Major Permit Amendment prior to expiration of the permit. Any Major Permit Amendment
Application to extend the permit shall be filed a minimum of ninety (90) days prior to permit
expiration to ensure adequate processing time. (Planning)

5. PERMIT RUNS WITH THE LAND. The approval runs with the land and the rights and
obligations thereunder, including the responsibility to comply with conditions of approval,

shall be binding upon successors in interest in the real property unless or until such permits
are expressly abandoned or revoked. (Planning)

Resolution CDR 18-



6. HOLD HARMLESS. The permittee agrees as a condition of approval of this application to
indemnify, protect, defend with counsel selected by the City, and hold harmless, the City,
and any agency or instrumentality thereof, and its elected and appointed officials, officers,
employees and agents, from and against an and all liabilities, claims, actions, causes of
action, proceedings, suits, damages, judgments, liens, levies, costs and expenses of

whatever nature, including reasonable attorney’s fees and disbursements (collectively,
“Claims”) arising out of or in any way relating to the approval of this application, any actions
taken by the City related to this entitlement, any review by the California Coastal
Commission conducted under the California Coastal Act Public Resources Code Section
30000 et seq., or any environmental review conducted under the California Environmental
Quality Act, Public Resources Code Section 210000 et seq., for this entitlement and related
actions. The indemnification shall include any Claims that may be asserted by any person
or entity, including the permittee, arising out of or in connection with the approval of this
application, whether or not there is concurrent, passive or active negligence on the part of
the City, and any agency or instrumentality thereof, and its elected and appointed officials,
officers, employees and agents. The permittee’s duty to defend the City shall not apply in
those instances when the permittee has asserted the Claims, although the permittee shall
still have a duty to indemnify, protect and hold harmless the City. (City Attorney).

OWNER’S/PERMITTEE’S CERTIFICATION:

| have read and understand and hereby accept and agree to implement the foregoing conditions
of approval of the Coastal Development Permit.

APPLICANT:

(Signature) (Date)

Resolution CDR 18-



HERNANDEZ RESIDENCE

0' 4' 8' 16' 32
AN
EDGE OF NEW PAVEMENT ADD (N> 24" WIDE “V*
EXTEND PAVING TO PROP. LINE
CENTERLINE OF PROP. STREET EXT. O_I_mmn_um_N_lle_lU D/\m
EXISTING WATER LINE " ' "
7 | 7777 — S - < 1/8" = 1'-0
EXISTING SANITARY SEWER
[ 2
ECOm—— e e e S - e e e EE S e e e e e e e eSS EE e e e e e Es S S . . -
EXISTING PG&E/PHONE SERVICES
lll_umlm.ml\_uﬂ_uﬂlllll = GXE /) = = O O O BN B BN B B B B - e e e e =R PGRE/PHONE S e e e e e e o o O B B B B B B B B B
(N> D/WAY CUT/SIDEWALK
WATER METER
vmpm%_._n_zm|/ — w_ﬂNHZ_A_lmm‘N METER| ,
: I _ a
AC BERM TO RETAIN JPAVING
|
1 ! | ADD NEW SIDEWALK ‘\\
END OF EXISTING PAVING TO CORNER (B> SIDEWALK
I | | I
|
: I _ !
: I _ !
«0-.9¢
| I _ !
| I _ !
>
m : I _ !
5 S
Mm : | _
Z
I_
T | I _ !
o >
= _ .- |
|
5
: ADJACENT 1 ADJACENT 3 _ m !
UNDEVELOPED UNDEVELOPED < Z
LOT LOT — :
| I T N
|
@) <
= |
I | 7 [ m
| |
I | 7 |
|
| i
I 1 | |
|
| 1
I | | I
ﬁ 1\ f
! : | _
I EXTERIOR DECK 7
3 |
| E N\
1 1 |
|
|
|
I | | o I
o
S)
) |
I | | [
1
I 1 | I
I W A R

Ilo_loz

ADJACENT HOME

%

%

INDEX 0OF DRAWINGS

AlO THIS PAGE

A0l LANDSCAPE PLAN

Al PROPUSED FLUOOR PLANS
Ac PROPOSED ELEVATIONS
A3 SECTION AND NOTES

* OCCUPANCY GROUP, R-1-B-2

* LOT SIZE = 2500 SQ. FT.
* PROPOSED LOT COVERAGE =781.3 SQ. FT. (31%)

* ALLOWED, TOTAL SQ. FOOTAGE = 1250 SF + 200.

» FIRST FLOOR SQ. FT. = 781.3 SF. INCLUDES GARAGE @ 213.7 SF

+ SECOND FLR. SQ. FT. =614.0 SF.
+ PROPOSED TOTAL SQ. FT. =1395.3 SF.

SITE LUOCATILN

VICINITY MAP

i

41/ CHESTERFIELD AVE,

HALF MUUON BAY, CA
APN#H 006-000-190

GENERAL NOTES:

1. ALL MATERIALS, METHODS & WORKMANSHIP SHALL CONFORM TO THE
2016 CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE
2016 CALIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE
2016 CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE
2016 CALIFORNIA ELECTRIC CODE
2016 CALIFORNIA ENERGY CODE
2016 CALIFORNIA GBSC
2016 CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL CODE
INCLUDING LOCAL AND STATE ORDINANCES AS APPLICABLE.

2. ALL CONCRETE WORK SHALL CONFORM TO CHAPTER 19 UBC.

3. ALL LUMBER IN CONTACT WITH CONCRETE AND WITHIN 8" OF GRADE
SHALL BE PRESSURE TREATED DOUGLAS FIR OR GRADE MARKED
FOUNDATION GRADE REDWOOD.

4. CONVENTIONAL LIGHT FRAME CONSTRUCTION PER SECTION 2308 OF
CBC IS INTENDED. (CRC R602.10.3.2)

5.LUMBER GRADE MARKED AND TO CONFORM TO STANDARD GRADING
AND DRESSING RULES OF THE WEST COAST LUMBER INSPECTION.

6. 2X4 DF STUDS @ 16" O.C. WALL FRAMING.
7. TOP PLATES TO BE LAPPED MINIMUM OF 24".

8. ELECTRICAL SUBCONTRACTOR TO CHECK ALL CONDITIONS IN FIELD
BEFORE SUBMITTING BID.

10. GROUND FAULT INTERRUPTERS TO BE INSTALLED WHERE REQUIRED.
11. THERE IS NO REQUIREMENT FOR A STATEMENT OF SPECIAL

INSPECTION AS REQUIRED BY CBC SECTION 1705. THERE ARE NO
OPERATIONS IN THIS PROJECT REQUIRING ANY SPECIAL INSPECTIONS.

12. AUTOMATIC FIRE SPRINKLERS REQUIRED. NO DEFERRED SUBMITTALS.

E

http://www.onestopdesign.biz
3566 BEARD ROAD, FREMONT, CA 94555
PHONE: 510-794-7993 O, 650-766-1480 C

C\Users\AlekseyBD\Desktop\Hernandez\Hernandez\CAD\Hernandez-08-31-16-0OnestopDesignLogo-1080301.png

417 CHESTERFIELD, HALF MOON BAY, CA 94019
TEL: 650-745-6828 APN# 056-055-190

HERNANDEZ RESIDENCE
FOR
MARCOS AND ESTHER HERNANDEZ

No. Description Date

3 Planning, etc. revs 3/12/18

SITE PLAN AND

INFORMATION
Project number R304
Date 08-28-16
Drawn by A.S.
Checked by G.W.
Scale 1/8" = 1'-0"

8/31/2016 2:45:33 PM




SHRUBS

ARBUTIFOLIA

‘5 GALLON
2

ARBUTIFOLIA

SHRUBS

‘5 GALLON

12

NEW FENCE ————

1
d

JON4d4 dOOM HOIH 9

1
\

£

D A

/N
e

1
A

1
—J

1
I

h
|
{
1

VALL LINE BELOW

- — — —

EXTERI|

«0-001
SNe

|
1
—J

PADS

F)

STONE STE

_-_’/_
1 1
I I —J

00 00000

Bl EEEE =
1 1
—J —

1

e~

MHU ol
| .

3

12" 712"

7\
\J
]

EXTERIOR DECK

Wl /uC

N \M
Q /9
L DWARF FESCUE BAWN— l

-

4ON44 dOOM HOIH .9

CHESTERFIELD AVE.

* OCCUPANCY GROUP, R-1-B-2
* LOT SIZE = 2500 SQ. FT.
* PROPOSED LOT COVERAGE = 781.3 SQ. FT. (31%)

* ALLOWED, TOTAL SQ. FOOTAGE = 1250 SF + 200.

0) 4' 8' 16'

(i

1
LT

NEW FENCE

(i

1
LT

"SF—RIMA” BY BASALITE OR
EQUAL PAVERS.

FILTER COURSE
1/2” CRUSHED STONE 27 THICK

RESERVOIR COURSE
1"to 27 CRUSHED STONE VOIDS

O O O O VOLUME IS DESIGNED FOR RUNOFF
EXISTING FENCE DETENTION
THICKNESS IS BASED ON STORAGE
REQUIRED.
=== EENEHENEENS viival coMpacTion To RETAN
—|| =l === === porosiTy aNd PERMEABILITY
PAVER DETAIL
FILTRATION FENCE DETAIL
SEDIMENT ROLL DETAIL
i m.moz.oﬂmzﬂ,wxﬂm SEDIMENT ROLL
LASTIC FILTRATION ﬁ
\|W>WEO
N x /m /_/7/!
ARBUTIFOLIA Tw GALLON - /A

=

36" MIN

SHRUBS

4 | N

WOOD STAKE
77 x 1T
MAX. 487
SPACING

24" MAX

P—— ——

Y Y Y

NSTALL FENCE BELOW GRADE
ENTRENCHMENT DETAIL IN SLOPE AREA

ON FLAT LOTS, ROLL MAY BE SURFACE SET

EROSION PROTECTION

IX8 RESAWN RWD PLANK
2X4 RwD TOP RAIL

4X4 P.T. POSTS @ &8 0.C

2%
I\Il

2X4 RwD BOTTOM RAIL

2Xl2 RwD BOTTOM CA

LANDSCAPE PLAN
3/16" = 1'-0"

+ FIRST FLOOR SQ. FT. =781.3 SF. INCLUDES GARAGE @ 213.7 SF

+ SECOND FLR. SQ. FT. =614.0 SF.
+ PROPOSED TOTAL SQ. FT. =1395.3 SF.

32'

LANDSCAPE SPECIFICATIONS:
GENERAL CONDITIONS: ALL WORK SHALL BE DONE IN A PROFESSIONAL MANNER AND BE
OF THE HIGHEST QUALITY STANDARDS. | .

PLANT MATERIAL:

A. ALL PLANTS SHALL BE TOP QUALITY NURSERY STOCK, FREE OF DISEASE AND PESTS.
B. ALL PLANTS SHALL BE NORMAL SIZE FOR CONTAINER, VIGOROUS, AND TRUE TO
NAME AND VARIETY.

C. PLANTS SPECIFIED ON THIS PLAN SHALL BE OBTAINED FROM LOCAL NURSERIES THAT
GROW SPECIFIC NATIVE SPECIES WHEN POSSIBLE.

SOIL PREPARATION:

A. NO ADDITIONAL TOP SOIL NEEDS TO BE IMPORTED INTO THE SITE.

B. PLANT HOLES SHALL BE TWICE THE DIAMETER AND DEPTH OF THE ROOT BALL., SEE
ATTACHED DETAIL FOR PLANTING INSTRUCTIONS.

C. EACH PLANT SHALL HAVE 7.5 GALLONS OR | CU. FT. OF HUMUS BUILDER OR EQUAL
AND 2 TABLESPOONS (2 TBSP.) WATER CRYSTALS ADDED AND MIXED WELL INTO THE
BACKFILL MIX TO GIVE THE PLANTS A BOOST OF NUTRIENTS AND THE SOIL WATER
RETENTION. BACKFILL MIX IS 1/3 HUMUS BUILDER, 2/3 NATIVE TOP SOIL.

D. AGRIFORM (20-10-5) SLOW RELEASE 2| GRAM FERTILIZER TABLETS OR EQUAL SHALL
BE PLACED EVENLY AROUND THE PLANT CIRCUMFERENCE, HALF WAY DOWN ROOT BALL
AND 4™ AWAY. USE 3 TABLETS PER 5 GALLON SHRUB.

PLANTING:

A. WHEN PLANTED, CROWN OF PLANT SHALL BE | V2” ABOVE GRADE. PREPARE A WATER
BASIN BY FORMING A SOIL RING AT LEAST 3" HIGH AND WIDE AROUND THE OUTER EDGE
OF THE NEW PLANT HOLE. WATER PLANTS IN CONTAINER THOROUGHLY PRIOR TO
PLANTING AND DIRECTLY AFTER TO ELIMINATE AIR POCKETS AND REDUCE PLANT STRESS.
B. ALL PLANTS SHALL RECEIVE 3” MINIMUM OF 34” WALK ON FIR BARK MULCH OR
EQUAL. EXISTING VEGETATION IN A 3° RADIUS FROM PLANT CROWN SHALL BE REMOVED
AND MULCH APFLIED.

C. PLANTS SHALL BE KEPT MOIST FOR TWO WEEKS FOLLOWING PLANTING AND THEN
WATERED WELL, ONCE PER WEEK UNTIL RAINY SEASON BEGINS.

STAKING AND WIND PROTECTION: :

A. SET THREE (3) 2" DIAMETER X &’ TALL PRESSURE TREATED DOUGLAS FIR (P.T.D.F.),
REDWOOD OR LODGE POLE TREE STAKES FORMING A 90 DEGREE ANGLE ON THE
WINDWARD SIDE OF THE PLANT, OPENING AWAY FROM THE DIRECTION OF PREVAILING
WINDS. SET ALL STAKES 20" FROM THE ROOT CROWN, PLUMB AND |2~ MIN. SECURELY
INTO UNDISTURBED GRADE BELOW THE PLANT ROOT BALL..

B. HIGH QUALITY WOVEN LANDSCAPE FABRIC, 4* TALL, SHALL BE STAPLED SECURELY TO
THE POLES IN ANTICIPATION OF HEAVY WINDS.

C. SECURE FOUR (4) RUBBER OR POLY. TREE TIES FASTENED IN A FIGURE “&” AROUND
PLANT. TIES SHALL BE PLACED ON THE TWO STAKES THAT ARE PERPENDICULAR TO THE
DIRECTION OF THE PREVAILING WINDS. SECURE TIES TO PLANT STAKES WITH | /2”
GALV. ROOFING NAILS. :

D. STAKING AND WIND PROTECTION SHALL REMAIN FOR A MINIMUM OF TWO YEARS OR
UNTIL PLANT 1S WELL ESTABLISHED.

MAINTENANCE AND REPLACEMENT: _

A. PROVIDE A MONTHLY MAINTENANCE CHECK ON IRRIGATION AND PLANT CONDITIONS
TO ENSURE SUCCESS OF THE PLANTING AND IRRIGATION SYSTEM. :

B. PLANTS SHALL BE REPLACED IN-KIND PER THE LANDSCAPE PLAN AND WRITTEN
INSTRUCTIONS AS THEY DIE OR ARE SUBSTANTIALLY DECLINING. THESE CONDITIONS
APPLY TO THE LIFE OF THE STRUCTURE.

PROTECTION OF EXISTING VEGETATION:

A. PRIOR TO ANY SITE DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES, TEMPORARY 3 FEET TALL NYLON

17 5Q. MESH FENCING SHALL BE PLACED | FT. OUTSIDE OF THE DRIP LINE OF ALL
VEGETATION WHICH IS IDENTIFIED FOR RETENTION.

B. NO CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES, VEGETATION REMOVAL, EXCAVATION, MATERIALS OR
EQUIPMENT STORAGE SHALL BE PERMITTED WITHIN THE DRIP LINE OF THIS VEGETATION.

3/4” GRAVEL (TY

4" PERFORATED f

9
2| - NEwW FENCE DETAIL
" m 4" PERFORATED PVC PIPE
3/4” GRAVEL (TYP.)
Yo FINISHED GRADE
FILTER LINING (TYP.)
4” PVC SOLID PIPE
TO HOLDING TANK
w | H_ iTF | i __r_n_.l_ﬂ._,
m = |—] ”” |—]
.,va W 4 i ,%»“AIL‘JMWW_ %ﬂ_l N
=
5| =z . it v s Tive i
W AMn T T __|__$M ST o
— ) I = T 7 24" appro
- 4 g = = [ |
<C
O 2S = AN e, i
- < ><
Te) _ . O
—— < e, Pges iz
> 18”7 DIA PIER HOLE ~_ RO XA ADLAD o SUBDRAIN DETAIL (typ.)
) ST O
INCOINCO IO IO <C
A A AT KA
n 2 T n
<C m O uﬁ_vl/ uﬁ_l/u‘_lzu‘_ 00
= > - RO AT AT <
— > eSS
O o T NN N i I B
L | T o _
_l S A 2
> — | 36
m ) ‘
¥ O
< —
@)
o
<

HERNANDEZ RESIDENCE

C\Users\AlekseyBD\Desktop\Hernandez\Hernandez\CAD\Hernandez-08-31-16-0OnestopDesignLogo-1080301.png

http://www.onestopdesign.biz
3566 BEARD ROAD, FREMONT, CA 94555
PHONE: 510-794-7993 O, 650-766-1480 C

N
LL
=
O < :
p < 3
LLJ r 52
N LLJ > %
= T 33
z 3
L] TR
r mRu T & &
N Ll Es
a) w3
Z TN
< O =2
= Z v ©
Y < _m__”L m
L w 2"
T O =
O
nd
<
=
No. Description Date
3 Planning, etc. revs 3/12/18
LANDSCAPE
PLAN
Project number R304
Date 08-28-16
Drawn by G.WwW
Checked by G.W.
Scale 3/16" = 1'-0"

8/31/2016 2:45:33 PM




2-0"
170" 150" —
e O
— 8 8t&
@ — @ s 33
N\ A / 3 <9
1 — N | Lf N ﬂ s 93
(10) & LOWER FLAOR N = | m W o
- A | g g%
EXTERIOR DECK EXTERIOR DECK | S x -
OO g 52 sq.ft. NIC | s g
N , 12'-0" | f ADn N~
N : = T %
I & SITTING ROOM 3] | , < &R
- = IR | N\ | g go
| 16'- 0"X10' - 5" s 5 3 i £ g5
| 192.5 sq.ft. 21 7 | 8 CEILING f | o 4
10-7" 3.6" g ’ 2 ) | | QS 9
S ——— SLOPE —— N | | ST
REF 25" = =
A v © \ A WV_ % 7
7
- BEDROOM 2 N |
7 12'-0"X11'- 6" H = | |
172.5 sq.ft. 7
e 9 & CHLING | |
A o I | 12"/ 12" |
2 7 Ge) | -~ |
2| @ BEDROOM 1 «B " 5 B . N
- 9'-7"X10'- 6" @ ) = \ | | | LL]
. ™ (o))
132.1 sq.ft. % o _ ) | | - QO 3
~ g8 S | | " Z 3
401/ x o 2 @ i .\ 149.4 sq.ft. 0 | | O ANn o
& | | >
— : <
] (2468) 1 - . o 12" 112" 7 N 28]
AR N 3 R ] [ 2
L 0
i AST.BATH | ||~ 1BATH 248 o (15 SLOPE $q.Tt. (14) > > | | QO T 3
0 75.7 sqlft. tot. 3 (13) L8 & . | T =
N -} i N 7 S L
& @Y m 5 1 A\M\v i | Y ol =
M , , , , , , , < < | ( ) | 7 S H L
R | 5 | N = =z
w._.>_xwﬁ STORAGE UNDER STR ENTRY STAIRS f DN o o S 7 E S m
68sq.ft | | | | 36 sq.ft. 68 sq.ft. - B | % 0O Wl @
N I N e B = f SKYLIGHT | LL
: E ) — S I K — | — Z al:
© ! © = ] | L
| 2 2 T | < Z b
T uP I P 2 | | | = »
I 7 5 | | A T
N = SLOPE = | | e O
CORRIDOR | | Ll N ~
ENTRY 75.8 sq.ft | <
T 8' CEILING / sq.ft. | | T @)
GO N 5 | * O
- u 7
781 SQ.FT. SLOPE | | T i Y
| TOTAL I _Ln, | ) <
2 | I =
. W
m BEDROOM 3 N No. Description Date
6 \_ A. _ O: X‘_Nf@: O‘—h mo.—ﬂn_u W 7 3 _U_N—._::._Q. etc. revs 3/12/18
] GARAGE " 6 137 MMM__"_.._ZO | 7
|01.u \_O_lo_.X»_w.lm_ “Ol.l.. \ / n AM._\AN.. 7
AN
213.7 sq.ft. & | 5 P
—s—= < 8 |
/81 SQ. FT. TOTAL & FOOTPRINT @ 7 |
1395 TOT. SQ FT. TOTAL HOUSE ! 4
< o
= % 5 '
_ =l oy W AL e e
(2)
11-0" 110" 117
0 A
N (s
e ROOF PLAN
\_\h.: = \_ _IO- \—\h.: = A -IO_-
Door Schedule Door Schedule Window Schedule Window Schedule _H _IOO m _U _I>Z m
Mark Family Width Height Mark Family Width Height Mark Family 7 Width 7 Height Mark Family 7 Width 7 Height >Z _U |_|>w _Imm
1 Single-Panel 3-0" 7'-0" 1 Slider with Trim 4'-0" 4'-0"
2 Garage Door 8 -0" 6'-6" 11 Cased-Opening 2'-8" 7' -0" 2 Slider with Trim 4'-0" |4'-0" 11 Slider with Trim 3-0" 3'-0"
3 Single-Flush 2'- 6" 6 - 8" 12 Cased-Opening 2'- 8" 7'-0" 3 Slider with Trim 4-0" 4'-0" 12 |Fixed 1-4" 30" Project number R304
4 Single-Flush 2'-6" 6'-8" 13 Bifold-4 Panel 5-0" 6'-8" 4 Fixed 2'-0" 6'-0" 13 Date 08-28-16
5 Bifold-4 Panel 4'- 0" 5-0" 14 Single-Flush 2'-6" 7' -0" 5 Fixed 2'-0" 6'-0" 14 Slider with Trim 4'-0" |3'-0" Drawn by AS
6 Single-Flush 2'-4" 6'-8" 15 Cased-Opening 2'-8" 7' -0" 6 Slider with Trim 3'-0" |3'-0" 15 Slider with Trim 3'-0" 2'-0" Checked by G <<
7 Single-Flush 2'-6" 6'-8" 16 Bifold-2 Panel 2'-8" 5-0" 7 Slider with Trim 4'-0" 4'-0" —
8 Single-Flush 2'-6" 7'-0" 17 Single-Flush 2'-6" 7'-0" 8 Slider with Trim 3'-0" |2'-0" 16 Skylight 2'-4" |5'-0" > \_
9 18 Bifold-4 Panel 4'- 0" 5-0" 9 Fixed 3'-0" |2'-0" .
10 Sliding-2 panel 6'-0" 6'-8" 19 Bifold-4 Panel 4'- 0" 5-0" 10 Slider with Trim 4'-0" 4'-0"
20  |Sliding-2 Panel 5'- 0" 6' - 8" Scale 1/4"=1-0

8/31/2016 2:45:37 PM




NN

TIITT ITT TT1 1111

LNAN(NANN)
\_I_|_I_|_r\_l_|_l_|_|_|_l_|_l_|_r\_v__ _:___ __ 4___ __ 4___ __ 4___ __ 4___ __ 4____ _:___ __J___

UPPER FLOOR

LI _T1T TI1T TI1 J11 ________ IA_|_1_|_|_|A_!_1_|_|_|1_|_1_|_|_| 1
]

L]

L

g

@

x

@

LOWER FLO

9-0"

22|_5"

1/4" = 1'-0"

L
L LT LT

I

# UPPER FLOOR

@— _ o:

SOUTH-WEST ELEVATION

OR
0' oé

GROUND LEVEL

|o- - m:

22|_4|l

_0"

10’

|
L |

<

1

\_____ _________________________________________ ____________________________ N
\ (HIENIENIENIENIENIENIEEENIpgE NN IEEEEEEEEE /
P 11 | | T11 T1T1 111 111 111 111 1 ___ ____ ___ ___ _
— ___________________________
N IR NN R = " UPPER FLOOR
\;___ [TITILL LI IT 7 9 -0"
11 TT 11 11 TT 11 Ll 11 11 TT 11 LI 1L LT 11
| o
'5.00- | I L 1 po P ¥
~__ — Al
c B =l=(l==y] 1= =
] Il ) 50"
| — 2 o D &
PL — —— T . PL
| ] | == ] |
| - - = |
B B | LOWER FLOOR
B B 7 O_IO:
3-0" NORTH-WEST ELEVATION GROUND LEVEL

1/4" = 1'-0"

IO_ - m:

N == e I

C 221_5!!

PPER FLOOR

16!_0"

1 6l_0ll

@- _ o:

LOWER FLOOR ﬂv

O— _ o:

A2 4
= =
4 (10) =
LOWER FLOOR
| 0'-0"
[S)0)
GROUND LEVEL
|| -0'-8"
SOUTH-EAST ELEVATION
1/4" = 1'-0"
SHEET NOTES

1. PROVIDE SAFETY GLAZING AT THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS
PER SECTION 2406.4

A. GLAZING WITHIN A 24" ARC OF A DOOR'S VERTICAL EDGE
AND LESS THAN 60" ABOVE THE WALKING SURFACE.

B. GLAZING IN WALLS ENCLOSING A SHOWER OR BATHTUB
WHERE THE BOTTOM EXPOSED EDGE OF THE GLAZING IS LESS
THAN 60" ABOVE A STANDING SURFACE AND DRAIN INLET.

2. WHERE MECHANICAL VENTILATION SYSTEM IN BATHROOMS IS
USED, PROVIDED FIVE AIR CHANGES PER HOUR DIRECTLY TO
THE OUTSIDE. UBC SEC. 1203

3. THE HANDGRIP PORTION OF THE HANDRAIL SHALL BE 1 1/4" TO
2" IN CROSS SECTIONAL DIMENSION OR THE SHAPE SHALL
PROVIDE AN EQUIVALENT GRIPPING SURFACE. HANDRAIL SHALL
BE RETURNED OR HAVE ROUNDED TERMINATION OR BEND.

4. GUARDRAILS SHALL BE A MINIMUM 36" IN HEIGHT AND SHALL
HAVE INTERMEDIATE RAILS SUCH THAT A SPHERE 4 INCHES IN
DIAMETER CANNOT PASS THROUGH. SECTION 509.3.

5. PROVIDE A LANDING AT ALL EXTERIOR DOORS. THE WIDTH OF THE LANDING SHALL
BE AT LEAST THE WIDTH OF THE DOOR AND THE LENGTH SHALL BE AT LEAST 3 FEET.

SECTION 1003.3.1.7

FIRE NOTES:
1. APPLICANT IS REQUIRED TO PROVIDE STATE FIRE MARSHALL APPROVE AND LISTED SMOKE

NORTH-EAST ELEVATION

1/4'

|l - A-IO-

DETECTORS, WHICH ARE HARD-WIRED, INTERCONNECTED, AND HAVE BATTERY BACK-UP.

THE LANDING SHALL NOT BE MORE THAN 7-1/2" LOWER THAN THE FLOOR LEVEL AT

DOORS SWINGING AWAY FROM THE LANDING.

6. ALL COVERING OF SHOWERS OR TUBS WITHIN SHOWERS SHALL BE OF CEMENT

FULL FIRE REQUIREMENTS WILL BE SUBMITTED WHEN APPLYING FOR BUILDING PERMIT.

PLASTER, TILE, OR APPROVED EQUAL, TO A HEIGHT OF NOT LESS THAN 70 INCHES

ABOVE DRAIN INLET.

7. GARAGE INTERIOR DOOR SHALL BE SELF-CLOSING,TIGHT-FITTING SOLID WOOD
1-3/8" THICK OR 20' RATED THE OCCUPANCY SEPARATION BETWEEN THE GARAGE AND
THE DWELING AREA SHALL EXTEND FROM THE FOUNDATION UPWARDS.

8. PROVIDE 5/8" TYPE "X" SHEETROCK 1-HOUR FIRE RATED CEILING, WALLS, POSTS AND
BEAMS AT GARAGE (typ.) (CBC 302.4 AND TABLE 3-B)

9. PROVIDE 5/8 TYPE "X" DRYWALL ON WALLS AND CEILING OF ENCLOSED USABLE

SPACE UNDER STAIRWAYS. SECTION 1003.3.3 (Typ.)

GROUND LEVEL

IO- _ m:

http://www.onestopdesignbuild.com

3566 BEARD ROAD, FREMONT, CA 94555
PHONE: 510-794-7993, FAX: 510-794-4178

for
417 CHESTERFIELD, HALF MOON BAY, CA 94019

HERNANDEZ RESIDENCE

MARCOS AND ESTHER HERNANDEZ

No. Description Date

3 Planning, etc. revs 3/12/18

ELEVATIONS

Project number R304
Date 08-28-16
Drawn by A.S.
Checked by G.W.
Scale 1/4" = 1'-0"

8/31/2016 2:45:42 PM




Lo/

Section 1
1/4" = 1'-0"

ENTRY

ROOF PLAN “ v
\_‘w. _ @:

UPPER FLOOR

._

©- _ O:

~ LOWER FLOOR

SHEET NOTES

1. PROVIDE SAFETY GLAZING AT THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS
PER SECTION 2406.4

A. GLAZING WITHIN A 24" ARC OF A DOOR'S VERTICAL EDGE
AND LESS THAN 60" ABOVE THE WALKING SURFACE.

B. GLAZING IN WALLS ENCLOSING A SHOWER OR BATHTUB
WHERE THE BOTTOM EXPOSED EDGE OF THE GLAZING IS LESS
THAN 60" ABOVE A STANDING SURFACE AND DRAIN INLET.

2. WHERE MECHANICAL VENTILATION SYSTEM IN BATHROOMS IS
USED, PROVIDED FIVE AIR CHANGES PER HOUR DIRECTLY TO
THE OUTSIDE. UBC SEC. 1203

3. THE HANDGRIP PORTION OF THE HANDRAIL SHALL BE 1 1/4" TO
2" IN CROSS SECTIONAL DIMENSION OR THE SHAPE SHALL
PROVIDE AN EQUIVALENT GRIPPING SURFACE. HANDRAIL SHALL
BE RETURNED OR HAVE ROUNDED TERMINATION OR BEND.

4. GUARDRAILS SHALL BE A MINIMUM 36" IN HEIGHT AND SHALL
HAVE INTERMEDIATE RAILS SUCH THAT A SPHERE 4 INCHES IN
DIAMETER CANNOT PASS THROUGH. SECTION 509.3.

5. PROVIDE A LANDING AT ALL EXTERIOR DOORS. THE WIDTH OF THE LANDING SHALL
BE AT LEAST THE WIDTH OF THE DOOR AND THE LENGTH SHALL BE AT LEAST 3 FEET.
SECTION 1003.3.1.7

THE LANDING SHALL NOT BE MORE THAN 7-1/2" LOWER THAN THE FLOOR LEVEL AT
DOORS SWINGING AWAY FROM THE LANDING.

6. ALL COVERING OF SHOWERS OR TUBS WITHIN SHOWERS SHALL BE OF CEMENT
PLASTER, TILE, OR APPROVED EQUAL, TO A HEIGHT OF NOT LESS THAN 70 INCHES
ABOVE DRAIN INLET.

7. GARAGE INTERIOR DOOR SHALL BE SELF-CLOSING,TIGHT-FITTING SOLID WOOD
1-3/8" THICK OR 20' RATED THE OCCUPANCY SEPARATION BETWEEN THE GARAGE AND
THE DWELING AREA SHALL EXTEND FROM THE FOUNDATION UPWARDS.

8. PROVIDE 5/8" TYPE "X" SHEETROCK 1-HOUR FIRE RATED CEILING, WALLS, POSTS AND
BEAMS AT GARAGE (typ.) (CBC 302.4 AND TABLE 3-B)

9. PROVIDE 5/8 TYPE "X" DRYWALL ON WALLS AND CEILING OF ENCLOSED USABLE
SPACE UNDER STAIRWAYS. SECTION 1003.3.3 (Typ.)

http://www.onestopdesignbuild.com

3566 BEARD ROAD, FREMONT, CA 94555
PHONE: 510-794-7993, FAX: 510-794-4178

O- - o:
GROUND LEVEL

IO— _ m:

ROOF PLAN

Aw— - m:

UPPER FLOOR

@. _ O:‘

LOWER FLOOR

O. _ O:‘

GROUND LEVEL

Io- _ m:

BEDROOM 3

GARAGE

Section 2
1/4" = 1'-0"

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 1 | sITTING ROOM

HERNANDEZ RESIDENCE
FOR
MARCOS AND ESTHER HERNANDEZ

417 CHESTERFIELD, HALF MOON BAY, CA 94019
TEL: 650-745-6828 APN# 056-055-190

No. Description Date

3 Planning, etc. revs 3/12/18
Project number R304
Date 08-28-16
Drawn by A.S.
Checked by G.W.
Scale 1/4" = 1'-0"

8/31/2016 2:45:44 PM




City of Half Moon Bay

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR HEARING

STAFF REPORT
June 27, 2018

RECOMMENDATION

Approve PDP-18-007, an application for a Coastal Development Permit and Architectural Review
to allow the construction of a new approximately 3,660 square-foot single-family residence, to
be used as a residential care facility, with an attached accessory dwelling unit. The project is
located at 636 Metzgar Street, based upon the Findings and Evidence contained in Exhibit A of
the Draft Resolution, and subject to the Conditions of Approval in Exhibit B.

PROJECT BACKGROUND

Project Summary

File Number

PDP-18-007

Requested Permits/Approvals

Coastal Development Permit
Architectural Review

Site Location

636 Metzgar Street/ APN: 064-281-430

Applicant/Property Owner

Theodore Gladstone

Project Planner

Douglas Garrison; (650) 712-5836; dgarrison@hmbcity.com

Zoning District

R-2 Two-Family Residential

LCP Land Use Plan Designation

Medium Density Residential

Water Service

One 3/4 inch, non-priority water connection

Sewer Service (Sewer
Authority Mid-Coast)

Service available

Street Improvements

Construction of curb, gutter, and sidewalk required

Environmental Determination

Categorically Exempt pursuant to California Administrative
Code Section 15303(a) — construction of one single-family
residence

Heritage Trees

None on the site or within area of construction

Tree protection plan not required

Story Poles Required | No | Located in a Visual Resource Area

No | Variance or Exception required

No | Located in a largely undeveloped area
Right of Appeal Any aggrieved person may appeal the Director’s decision to

the Planning Commission within ten (10) working days of the
decision.

The project is not located within the Coastal Commission
Appeals Jurisdiction; therefore, City action is final.




Community Development Director Report PDP-18-007 Page 2 of 8
June 27, 2018

Figure 1. Site Location

=
=
==
o)
=)
Un
—

Site and Surrounding Properties

The project site is located in a partially developed residential neighborhood. The vacant site

is zoned R-2 Two-Family Residential. Land use and zoning for properties surrounding the
subject site are as follows:

North Undeveloped Residential
Subdivision, pending Final Map
approval. Anticipated development
includes two-story duplexes

South Single and two-story single-family
residences and a vacant lot

R-2 Two-family Residential

R-2 Two-Family Residential

East Single-story single-family residence | R-2 Two-Family Residential
West Single-story single-family residence | R-2 Two-Family Residential




Community Development Director Report PDP-18-007 Page 3 of 8
June 27, 2018

Figure 2. Birdseye View

Project Description

The project consists of a new single family residence, to be used as a Residential Care Facility
for six or fewer residents, with an attached owner-occupied accessory dwelling unit and two-
car garage facing the street. The floor area of the proposed structure is 3,660 square feet.
Proposed exterior materials include Hardie shingle siding, with wood trim and asphalt shingle
roofing. Exterior colors include muted earth tones, with white wood trim. The project
includes a number of environmentally friendly elements including rooftop solar panels, LED
lighting, drought tolerant native landscaping and on-site stormwater retention.

Residential Care Facilities are non-medical facilities that provide room, meals, and
housekeeping. Depending on the target population they may also provide supervision,
distribution of medications and personal care assistance with basic activities like dressing,
eating, bathing and transportation. This level of care and supervision is for people who do
not require 24-hour nursing care.

Metzgar Street is a narrow, substandard street that does not have sidewalks or curb and
gutter. However, an approved residential subdivision on the north side of the street will be
required to construct street, stormwater and sidewalk improvements. Additionally, two



Community Development Director Report PDP-18-007 Page 4 of 8
June 27, 2018

other new homes have been proposed for vacant lots on the south side of Metzgar Street.
The applicant and the other Metzgar Street projects will be required to contribute towards
improvements on the south side of the street.

Figure 2. Photo-simulation of Proposed Residence

636 Metzgar St
Half Moon Bay, CA 94019

ANALYSIS
State Law

California Health and Safety code, Division 2, Article 7, Local Regulations, pre-empts many
local zoning requirements. Local jurisdictions must treat Residential Care Facilities for six or
fewer residents as a single-family residence for zoning purposes. No use permit or additional
requirements such as increased parking may be imposed. Facility operators must obtain a
license from the State. The State imposes different requirements, depending on the target
population. A common element of these licenses is that these facilities may only include six
or fewer residents. State law also specifically prohibits local jurisdictions from classifying



Community Development Director Report PDP-18-007 Page 5 of 8
June 27, 2018

these facilities as boarding houses. For zoning purposes, the residents and operators are to
be treated as a single household.

Conformance with the General Plan / Local Coastal Program Land Use Plan

The proposed single-family residence, to be used as a Residential Care Facility with an owner
occupied accessory dwelling unit is consistent with the Medium Density Residential General
Plan / Local Coastal Land Use Plan. The project will not impede coastal access or obstruct
views of scenic resources. There are no Environmentally Sensitive Resources near the
project.

The Half Moon Bay General Plan Housing Element establishes goals, objectives and policies to
ensure that a broad range of housing is available to accommodate the community’s
population. Specific policies are intended to assure that housing is available for those in all
income levels and for the elderly, disabled and persons with special housing needs. These
policies include promoting infill development and accessory dwelling units. Housing Element,
Table A-1: Inventory of Sites Suitable for Residential Development, identifies this property as
having a realistic development potential of two dwelling units. Single-family dwellings are
counted as one dwelling unit. Additionally, accessory dwelling units are counted as one unit.
are couonted towards fulfilling our moderate income housing goals. Although the income of
the future residents is unknown at this time, it is reasonable to assume that the Residential
Care Facility will serve at least some low to moderate income clients. Consequently, the
project is consistent with Housing Element objectives, policies and goals.

Conformance with the Zoning Code

The Half Moon Bay Zoning Code (Title 18) allows “limited residential care” facilities in all
residential zoning districts. The Code defines this use as limited to non-medical care of six or
fewer residents. Pursuant to State law, this project is subject to the same review standards
as any other single-family residence in the R-2 Zoning District. No additional limitations on
use can be imposed by the City. Accessory dwelling units (currently classified as second units
in the Code) are also an allowed use in all R-2 Zoning Districts, as an ancillary use to single-
family residences. Title 18 establishes specific standards concerning single-family residences
and accessory dwelling units. As indicated in Table 1 below, the proposed project conforms
to all of the development standards of the R-2 District, with the exception of the minimum
combined side setback requirement by approximately 0.09 ft ( % of an inch). Condition No.
B.2 of the attached Resolution requires that plans be revised to conform to the required
14.09 foot combined setback.



Community Development Director Report PDP-18-007

June 27, 2018

Page 6 of 8

Table 1. Project Conformance with R-2 Zoning District Standards

Development Standards
Two-Family Residential

Zoning Requirements

Proposed

Min. Site Area 5,000 sq. ft. 7,385 sq. ft. (existing)
Min. Average Site Width 50.0 ft. 70.43 ft. (existing)
Min. Front Setback 20 ft. 20 ft.
Min. Interior Side Setback 5 ft. 5 and 9 ft.
Minimum Combined Side Setbacks | 20% lot width (14.09 ft.) | 14 ft.

Min. Rear Setback 20 ft. 20 ft.

Max. Single-Story Height 20 ft. 20 ft.

Max. Floor Area Ratio

0.5:1 (3,693 sq. ft.)

0.496:1 (3,660 sq. ft.)

Min. Parking Spaces

2 garage spaces and 1
uncovered space for the
ADU

2 garage spaces and 1
space in the driveway

Maximum Building Envelope Per Zoning Code Conforms
Development Standards Zoning Requirement Proposed
Accessory Dwelling Unit

Max. floor area 700 sq. ft. 300

Required Parking

1 uncovered

1 uncovered

Lot coverage / setbacks

Same as single-family

Within primary structure

dwelling footprint
Height Same as single-family Same as primary structure
dwelling

There are no streams, heritage trees, significant vegetation, or other natural features on the
site. One large Eucalyptus tree is located in the public right-of-way, very close to what would
be an extension of the easterly property boundary. This tree will be removed when street
and sidewalk improvements are constructed. Eucalyptus is not a protected species in Half
Moon Bay. However, removal of large trees should be avoided during the bird nesting
season. Condition No. C.3, of the attached Resolution, requires the applicant to retain a
biologist prior to tree removal, to inspect the tree, for nests, butterflys and bats, all of which
are to some extent considered protected species.




Community Development Director Report PDP-18-007 Page 7 of 8
June 27, 2018

Table 2. Key Zoning Code/LCP Implementation Plan Issues

Issue Applicability/Explanation

Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Area| No | None within 100 feet of the site.

This segment of Metzgar St. is not classified
Visual Resource Area No | as a Visual Resource Area.

This road segment is east of Highway 1. It does
not provide public access to important coastal

Obstruct Public Access No |resources.
Archaeologically Resource Area No [ Not in area of mapped or known resources.
Historic Resources No | No historic resources exist on the site.

Design Compatibility

The Single-Family Residential Design Guidelines (RDG) encourage compatible design within
the neighborhood. The projectis in a partially undeveloped block. Existing buildings on this
block are generally characterized as post-war single and two-story residential dwellings. The
approved but undeveloped subdivision across the street from the project will consist
primarily of two-story duplexes, of a somewhat more current design than the older homes in
the neighborhood. Multi-family housing exists within one block of the project site.

The project design utilizes techniques identified in the RDG to achieve compatibility with
surrounding development. The proposed project respects the existing neighborhood pattern
by locating the building at the front setback line and orienting the house and garage to the
street, consistent with the existing development pattern on Metzgar. The roof pitch, siding,
windows and roofing materials are consistent with neighboring buildings. Building materials
include Hardie shingle siding with wood trim and asphaltic shingle roofing. The dominant
color palette will be muted earth tones, with white trim and window frames. All exterior
lighting is energy efficient, fully shielded and downward directed. The design and materials
are consistent with the existing architectural fabric of the block and suitable for the coastal
setting.

Landscaping includes a broad palette of native, drought tolerant plants that grow to an
appropriate height and bulk to soften the appearance of the building and provide privacy
and a pleasant environment for residents and neighbors.

The project meets all development standards. That said, lot coverage and the amount of
permeable and impermeable paving may be more than would be found on typical single-
family residence properties and is inconsistent with some design guidelines. However, in this
case form follows function. The project includes a wide driveway and garage and extensive
use of permeable pavers surrounding the building. These design elements are appropriate



Community Development Director Report PDP-18-007 Page 8 of 8
June 27, 2018

for the intended use of the building. The wider driveway and paved access to the rear of the
building will accommodate the needs of residents with limited mobility, who may require
wheelchair access and will facilitate the safe evacuation of the building in an emergency. In
addition to the main entrances to the house, all of the bedrooms have direct access to the
rear or side yards. The permeable pavers and landscaping provide a pleasant private outdoor
space for the residents to use. The maximum allowed lot coverage is 50 percent. In this case
the proposed coverage is 49.6 percent. However, given the anticipated mobility needs of
residents, the single-story design, wide hallways and large bedrooms are appropriate. The
single-story design minimizes the massing of the building when viewed from the street and
neighboring properties.

Conclusion

Based on the above analysis, staff concludes that the proposed residence is consistent with
the General Plan/Local Coastal Land Use Plan, the Zoning Code/LCP Implementation Plan,
and the Single-Family Residential Design Guidelines; is compatible with surrounding
development; and conforms to the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act.
Staff recommends approval of the project based on the findings and conditions of approval
(Exhibits A and B of the attached Draft Resolution).

ATTACHMENTS
1. Draft Resolution with Findings and Evidence, Exhibit A and Conditions of Approval,
Exhibit B.

2. Letter from Applicant
3. Project Plans



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR RESOLUTION CDR-18-
RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL
PDP-18-007

COASTAL DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AND ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW TO ALLOW THE
CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW SINGLE STORY 3,660 SQUARE-FOOT STRUCTURE. THE
PROPOSED STRUCTURE IS A SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE, TO BE USED AS A RESIDENTIAL
CARE FACILITY FOR SIX OR FEWER RESIDENTS, WITH AN ATTACHED OWNER OCCUPIED
ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT ON A 7,385 SQUARE-FOOT LOT, IN THE R-2 RESIDENTIAL
ZONING DISTRICT AND THE MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL GENERAL PLAN
DESIGNATION (APN 064-281-430)

WHEREAS, an application was submitted requesting approval of a Coastal Development
Permit and Architectural Review to allow the construction of a new 3, 660 square-foot single
family residence with an accessory dwelling unit incorporated into the structure; and

WHEREAS, the procedures for processing the application have been followed as required
by law; and

WHEREAS, the Community Development Director conducted a duly noticed public
hearing on June 27, 2018, at which time all those desiring to be heard on the matter were given
an opportunity to be heard; and

WHEREAS, the Community Development Director considered all written and oral
testimony presented for consideration; and

WHEREAS, the Community Development Director has determined that the requested
Coastal Development Permit and Architectural Review for the construction of a new 3,660
square-foot single-story structure that will include a single family residence, to be used as a
residential care facility and an attached accessory dwelling unit is categorically exempt pursuant
to CEQA Guidelines Section 15303(a) which exempts the construction of one single-family
residence; and

WHEREAS, the Community Development Director has made the required findings for
approval of the project, set forth in Exhibit A to this resolution;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that, based upon the Findings in Exhibit A and subject
to the Conditions of Approval contained in Exhibit B, the Community Development Director
approves the application (PDP-18-007).

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City of Half Moon Bay Community Development Director
at a duly noticed public hearing held June 27, 2017.

APPROVED:

Jill Ekas, Community Development Director



Attachment 1

EXHIBIT A
FINDINGS AND EVIDENCE
Community Development Director Resolution CDR-18-__
PDP-18-007

General Plan Housing Element — Finding

1. The development as proposed or as modified by conditions, conforms to the General Plan
Housing Element.

Goal 2: Facilitate and encourage development of high quality housing to meet the City’s
housing needs for a range of incomes and special needs.

Evidence: The project will provide high quality housing for up to six residents with special
needs. The facility will provide housing and other services to seniors. The site is included in
the Half Moon Bay General Plan, Housing Element, Inventory of Sites Suitable for Residential
Development, with a realistic development potential of two units. The residential care facility
counts as one unit and the accessory dwelling unit also counts as one unit.

Compliance: The project conforms to General Plan residential development goals.

Coastal Development Permit — Findings for Approval

The required Coastal Development Permit for this project may be approved or conditionally
approved only after the approving authority has made the following findings per Municipal Code
Section 18.20.070:

1. Local Coastal Program — The development as proposed or as modified by conditions, conforms
to the Local Coastal Program.

Evidence: The proposed project is consistent with the Medium Density Residential General
Plan/Local Coastal Land Use Plan designation and conforms to the requirements of the Local
Coastal Program and its Implementation Plan (the Zoning Code). It is located on an infill site
in an existing partially developed neighborhood where public services and infrastructure are
available. The site is not located in or within 100 feet of an Environmentally Sensitive Habitat
Area and will not obstruct coastal access. There are no streams, mature trees, significant
vegetation, or other natural features on the site.

Coastal Act 30240(b) and Policy 3-3 (b): Development in areas adjacent to environmentally
sensitive habitat areas shall be sited and designed to prevent impacts which would
significantly degrade such areas and shall be compatible with the continuance of such
habitat areas.

Resolution CDR-18-007



Attachment 1

Compliance: The project is not adjacent to a mapped environmentally sensitive habitat area.

Policy 7-1: The City will establish regulations to protect the scenic corridor of Highway 1,
including setbacks for new development, screening of commercial parking and landscaping
associated with new development. The minimum standards shall include all areas within 200
yards of State Highway 1 which are visible from the road.

Compliance: The project is not located within 200 yards of State Highway 1 and Highway 1 is
not designated a Scenic Highway within the City limits of Half Moon Bay.

Policy 7-5: All new development, including additions and remodeling, shall be subject to
design review.

Compliance: The proposed residence has been subject to design review by the Community
Development Director. The building includes design elements and materials that are
consistent with neighboring properties.

Policy 7-11: New development along primary access routes from Highway 1 to the beach, as
designated on the Land Use Map, shall be designed and sited so as to maintain and enhance
the scenic quality of such routes, including building setbacks, maintenance of low height of
structures, and landscaping which establishes a scenic gateway and corridor.

Compliance: This segment of Metzgar Street is located east of Highway 1 and terminates
prior to reaching Highway 1. It is not an access route to any beaches.

Coastal Act 30244: Where development would adversely impact archaeological or
paleontological resources as identified by the State Historic Preservation Officer,
reasonable mitigation measures shall be required.

Compliance: The proposed single-family residence is not located on or near identified
archaeological or paleontological resources and the project site is not identified as a
potentially archaeological sensitive area within the Local Coastal Program. If cultural
resources or paleontological resources are unexpectedly encountered during subsurface
excavation, the permit has been conditioned to require that construction halt until the find
can be evaluated and appropriate mitigation identified.

2. Growth Management System — The development is consistent with the annual population
limitation system established in the Land Use Plan and Zoning Ordinance.

Evidence: The proposed site was granted a valid Measure D Certificate for construction of

one single-family residence; therefore the project conforms to the requirements of the
City’s growth management system.

Resolution CDR-18-007



Attachment 1

4. Zoning Provisions — The development is consistent with the use limitations and property
development standards of the base district as well as the other requirements of the Zoning
Ordinance.

Evidence: The proposed project conforms to the requirements of the R-2 Residential
Zoning District, which allows single-family residences as a principally permitted use,
including as a residential care facility for up to six residents, and accessory dwelling units as
an ancillary use to single-family homes. The proposed setbacks, lot coverage, height,
parking, and open space meet the requirements of the R-2 Zoning District and other
relevant provisions of the Zoning Code.

5. Adequate Services — The proposed development will be provided with adequate services and
infrastructure in a manner that is consistent with the Local Coastal Program.

Evidence: The site is located in an existing partially developed neighborhood where
utilities and services are generally available. The property currently has a 3/4” uninstalled
non-priority water service assigned to the site. Sanitary sewer services are available from
the Sewer Authority Mid-coast (SAM) Sewer Assessment District. The project includes
construction of curb, gutter and sidewalk along the Metzgar Street frontage.

6. California Coastal Act — Any development to be located between the sea and the first public
road parallel to the sea conforms to the public access and public recreation policies of Chapter

3 of the California Coastal Act.

Evidence: The proposed development is not located between the sea and the first public
road parallel to the sea.

Architectural Site and Design Review — Finding

The required Architectural and/or Site and Design Review for this project may be approved or
conditionally approved only after the approving authority has made the following findings per
Municipal Code Section 14.37.040:

1. That such buildings, structures, planting, paving and other improvements shall be so
designed and constructed that they will not be of unsightly or obnoxious appearance to the
extent that they will hinder the orderly and harmonious development of the city;

Evidence: The Director has reviewed the design of proposed project and concluded that the
proposal is in compliance with the Single-Family Residential Design Guidelines and
compatible with surrounding development. The project design utilizes techniques identified
in the RDG to achieve compatibility with surrounding development. The proposed project

Resolution CDR-18-007



Attachment 1

respects the neighborhood pattern by locating the building at the front setback line and
orienting the house and garage to the street. The roof pitch, siding, windows and roofing
materials are consistent with neighboring buildings. All exterior lighting is fully shielded and
downward directed. Landscaping includes a broad palette of native, drought tolerant plants
that grow to an appropriate height and bulk to soften the appearance of the building and
provide privacy and a pleasant environment for residents and neighbors. The single-story
design minimizes the massing of the building when viewed from the street and neighboring
properties.

2. That such buildings, structures, planting, paving and other improvements will not impair the
desirability or opportunity to attain the optimum use and the value of the land and the
improvements, or otherwise impair the desirability of living or working conditions in the
same or adjacent areas; and

Evidence: The project consists of a single-family residence, with an accessory dwelling unit
incorporated into the building footprint. As conditioned, it conforms to the requirements of
the Zoning Code, is consistent with the Single-Family Residential Design Guidelines, is
compatible with the scale and character of development in the surrounding area and
includes sidewalks and other street frontage improvements that will enhance neighborhood
connectivity.

3. The project has been designed in conformance and consistency with the Single-Family
Residential Design Guidelines (where applicable).

Evidence: The Single-Family Residential Design Guidelines (RDG) encourage flexibility in
architectural design to reflect the community’s eclectic character and to achieve compatible
design within existing neighborhoods. Building size, design elements and materials are
consistent with the neighborhood architectural style and suitable for the coastal setting.

EXHIBIT B

Resolution CDR-18-007



Attachment 1

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
Community Development Director Resolution CDR-18-

PDP-18-007

Authorization: Approval of this permit authorizes a request for a Coastal Development Permit
and Architectural Review to allow the construction of a new 3,660 square-foot, single-family
residence with attached additional dwelling unit at 636 Metzgar Street in the R-2 Residential
Zoning District and the Medium Density Residential General Plan designation.

A. The following Conditions shall apply to the subject site:

1.

CONFORMANCE WITH APPROVED PLANS. Development of the site shall conform to the
approved plans, submitted to the City on February 6, 2018, except for any revisions

required by this permit. The Community Development Director shall review and may
approve any deviation from the approved plans that is determined minor in nature. Any
other change shall require the submittal of a major modification application and fees and
shall be subject to a public hearing as required by Title 18. (Planning)

CONFORMANCE WITH CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL. The permittee shall construct and
operate this Project in full conformance with these Conditions of Approval. The

Community Development Director shall review and may approve any deviation from the
Conditions of Approval that is determined minor in nature. Any other change shall
require the submittal of a major modification application and fees and shall be subject to
a public hearing as required by Title 18. (Planning)

CONFORMANCE WITH THE MUNICIPAL CODE. No part of this approval shall be construed
to permit a violation of any part of the Half Moon Bay Municipal Code. (Planning)

LIGHTING. Exterior lighting fixtures shall be those shown on approved plans and

manufacturer’s cut-sheets submitted with the CDP application. Changes are subject to
approval by the Community Development Director. All exterior lighting shall be fully
shielded so that no light source is visible from outside the property, except as otherwise
expressly approved. (Planning)

SIDEWALK MAINTANENCE AND LIABILITY. It shall be the duty of the Property Owner(s)
whose property is adjacent to any portion of a public street or place to maintain any

sidewalks along the project frontage in a safe and non-dangerous condition. Sidewalk
maintenance shall include removal and replacement of concrete to eliminate tripping
hazards; and pruning and trimming of trees, shrubs, ground cover and other landscaping
within the public right-of-way. The Property Owner has the primary and exclusive duty to
fund and perform such maintenance and repair, whether or not the City has notified the

Resolution CDR-18-007



Attachment 1

property owner of the need for such maintenance or repairs or has performed similar
maintenance or repairs in the past, pursuant to §12.18.020 and §12.18.030 of the Half
Moon Bay Municipal Code. (Engineering)

6. LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE. The applicant/owner shall ensure that all landscaped areas
and/or fences are continuously maintained, and all plant material is maintained free of

refuse and weeds and in a healthy growing condition. (Planning)

B. The following Conditions shall be fulfilled prior to the issuance of building

permits:

1. SIGNED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL. The applicant/owner shall submit a signed copy of
the conditions of approval to the Planning Division prior to issuance of a building permit.
(Planning)

2. REQUIRED PLAN REVISIONS. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall
submit revised plans providing the following:

a) Plans shall be revised to reduce the building width, to comply with the minimum
combined side setback requirement of no less than 14.09 feet.

3. DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES. The following impact fees shall be paid to the City prior to
issuance of building permits in conformance with the City’s adopted Master Fee Schedule:

a) Sewer Connection Fee

b) Storm Drainage Fee

c) Capital Outlay Facilities Fee
d) Traffic Mitigation Fee

e) Park Facilities Fee

4, SCHOOL IMPACT FEES. The permittee shall provide proof of payment of required school
Impact fees to Cabrillo Unified School District prior to issuance of building permits.

5.  VALID MEASURE D CERTIFICATE. No building permit shall be issued unless the Measure D
Certificate issued for the property has not expired and remains valid to the satisfaction of

the Community Development Director. (Planning)

6. CONSTRUCTION PLANS. Building Permit plans shall include the following:

a. File Number PDP-18-007 and the Conditions of Approval for this project shall be
provided on the cover page of the building permit application plan submittal.
(Planning)

b. All plans, specifications, engineering calculations, diagrams, reports, and other
data for construction of the building and required improvements shall be
submitted with the appropriate permit application to the City’s Building and

Resolution CDR-18-007



7.

10.

11.

Attachment 1

Engineering Divisions for review and approval. Computations and back-up data will
be considered a part of the required plans. Structural calculations and engineering
calculations shall be prepared, wet-stamped and signed by an engineer or
architect licensed by the State of California. (Engineering)

c. The plans must show the location of the sewer connection, and a property line
sewer cleanout must be installed prior to Building Permit approval. Plans shall
include a sheet showing utility connections, trench restoration details, driveway
apron (driveway apron width, spacing between driveways, slopes, etc.), and other
improvements in the public right-of-way meeting City standards. (Engineering)

WATER CONSERVATION IN LANDSCAPING. If the project includes 1,000 square feet or more

of irrigated landscaping (new or rehabilitated) the permittee shall submit landscape and
irrigation plans and an Outdoor Water Efficiency Checklist that demonstrate compliance
with the City’s Water Conservation in Landscaping Ordinance (Chapter 13.04 of the
Municipal Code) prior to issuance of building permits to the satisfaction of the Community
Development Director. (Planning)

SURVEY REQUIRED. A detailed topographic/site boundary survey prepared by a certified

licensed surveyor shall be submitted with building application plans. The survey shall
include a baseline elevation datum point on, or close to the construction site, indicating
existing grade of the datum. This datum point shall be permanent, marked, shall remain
fixed in the field, and shall not be disturbed throughout the building process. Examples of
datum points include: fire hydrants, manhole covers, survey markers, and street curbs. This
datum point shall be shown on all site plans including revised/resubmitted plans. The survey
must show the footprint and roof plan of the proposed residence and identify the existing
grade elevations at the corners and roof ridgeline of the residence. (Building)

EVIDENCE OF WATER CONNECTION CAPACITY. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the
permittee shall submit a letter from Coastside County Water District certifying that the
subject site has an adequately-sized water connection for this approved project and that the
project meets all other Water District requirements. (Building)

EVIDENCE OF SEWER CONNECTION CAPACITY. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the
permittee shall demonstrate issuance of a sewer permit from the Sewer Authority Mid-
Coast. (Building)

STREET FRONTAGE REQUIREMENTS. The applicant will be required to enter into a deferred
street agreement with the City to require the property owner to construct curb, gutter,
sidewalk, street trees, driveway frontage improvements at a later date when called upon to
do so by the City. Any improvements constructed along the street frontage with the
proposed project may be subject to removal at property owners expense. (Engineering)

Resolution CDR-18-007



Attachment 1

12. ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS. The proposed project, including street improvements, shall
comply with State of California and federal (ADA) accessibility standard and with the line of
sight requirements of Half Moon Bay Zoning Code Section 18.06.040.(B)

13. LOT GRADING, MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLE STORAGE. No lot site grading,
preparation, storage, or placement of construction materials, equipment, or vehicles shall
take place prior to issuance of a building permit. Any earth movement on or off the site in
excess of 50 cubic yards shall require the submittal of a grading plan for review by the City
Engineer and issuance of a grading permit. Lot Grading includes, but is not limited to, any
leveling, scraping, clearing, or removal of lot surface area. Materials, Equipment, and
Vehicles include, but are not limited to:

a) All masonry, wood, and steel construction materials;
b) All construction-related equipment and storage containers; and
c) All construction-related vehicles, including temporary trailers. (Engineering)

14. LOT DRAINAGE PLAN AND ON-SITE DETENTION Construction plans submitted for building
permits shall include a Lot Drainage Plan showing how the surface runoff is retained on the
site and the remainder is drained to the public right-of-way. Plans shall include design
details and supporting calculations for storm water detention on-site for the additional run-
off from a ten year frequency storm of two hour duration. Plans shall show how the rear
and side yards will properly drain to an approved BMP facility, and how the finished grades
on the property relate to the existing grades on adjacent property. The Plan shall include
pad elevation, finished floor elevation, site high and low points, drainage swales, area
drains, and existing grade at adjacent property. The permittee shall provide appropriate
measures to discharge the flood waters from any unfinished floor areas. (Engineering)

15. STORMWATER MANAGEMENT-TREATMENT (FOR NON-REGULATED PROJECTS). Non-
regulated projects consist of single-family residences and other small projects that create
and/or replace less than 5,000 square feet of impervious surface. Construction plans
submitted for building permits shall include a storm water management-treatment plan
showing implementation of at least one of the six Low Impact Development (LID) measures
listed below:

a. Direct runoff into cisterns or rain barrels and use rainwater for irrigation or other
non-potable use;

b. Direct roof runoff into vegetated areas;

c. Direct runoff from sidewalks, walkways, and/or patios into vegetated areas;

d. Direct runoff from driveways and /or uncovered parking lots into vegetated areas;
e. Construct sidewalks, walkways, and/or patios with permeable surfaces; or

Resolution CDR-18-007



16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Attachment 1

f.  Construct bike lanes, driveways, and/or uncovered parking lots with permeable
surfaces. (Engineering)

Permittee shall also submit the ‘stormwater checklist for small projects’ with the building
plan submittal. (Engineering)

COPPER BUILDING ELEMENTS. The building plans shall specify that all copper building
elements will be pre-patinated at the factory, or if patination will occur on the site, the
plans shall identify best management practices in conformance with the San Mateo

Countywide Water Pollution Prevention Program Requirements for Architectural Copper, to
the satisfaction of the City Engineer. (Engineering)

EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL. An erosion and sediment control plan shall be
submitted that shows effective Best Management Practices (BMP) and erosion and

sediment control measures for the site. Construction plans shall also include the
“construction best management practices” plan sheet. (Engineering)

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES/SERVICES. Electric, telecommunication, and cable and utility
service to the property shall be through underground service connections only. No

overhead utilities are allowed. Show locations of all utility service connections: sanitary
sewer, storm drain (if applicable), water (domestic and fire), cable television, telephone,
electrical, and gas. (Engineering)

STREET/PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY CUTS FOR UTILITY CONNECTIONS. Street cuts for utility
connections that are less than twenty (20) feet apart shall be repaired with a single patch.
Asphalt repair and overlay shall be in accordance with the City Standard Details. Two or
more street cuts for utility connections will require a single 2-inch asphalt concrete overlay

patch on existing pavement across the property frontage. (Engineering)

FIRE CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS. The permittee shall comply with all applicable fire and
building codes and standards relating to fire and panic safety as identified by the Coastside
Fire Protection District during the building permit process. (Fire)

AUTOMATIC FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM. As per San Mateo County Building Standards and
Coastside Fire District Ordinance Number 2016-01, the applicant is required to install an
automatic fire sprinkler system throughout the proposed or improved dwelling and garage.
All attic access locations will be provided with a pilot head on a metal upright. All areas that
are accessible for storage purposes shall be equipped with fire sprinklers including closets
and bathrooms. The only exception is small linen closets less than 24 square feet with full
depth shelving. The plans for this system must be submitted to the San Mateo County
Planning and Building Division or The City of HMB. A building permit will not be issued until
plans are received, reviewed and approved. Upon submission of plans, the County or City
will forward a complete set to the Coastside Fire District for review. The fee schedule for

Resolution CDR-18-007



22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

Attachment 1

automatic fire sprinkler systems shall be in accordance with Half Moon Bay Ordinance No.
2006-01. Fees shall be paid prior to plan review. (Fire)

FIRE HYDRANT. As per 2016 CFC, Appendix B and C, a fire district approved fire hydrant (Clow
960) must be located within 500 feet of the proposed single-family dwelling unit measured
by way of drivable access. As per 2016 CFC, Appendix B the hydrant must produce a
minimum fire flow of 1,000 gallons per minute at 20 pounds per square inch residual
pressure for 2 hours. Contact the local water purveyor for water flow details. (Fire)

WINDOWS. Plans shall include a note stating: Escape or rescue windows shall have a
minimum net clear openable area of 5.7 square feet, 5.0 sq. ft. allowed at grade. The
minimum net clear openable height dimension shall be 24 inches. The net clear openable
width dimension shall be 20 inches. Finished sill height shall be not more than 44 inches
above the finished floor. (Fire)

SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEMS. These systems shall meet the requirements of the
Coastside Fire Protection District as outlined in Standard Detail DI-007 Solar Photovoltaic
Systems. (Fire)

HARD-WIRED SMOKE DETECTORS/ALARMS. Pursuant to the 2013 California Building and
Residential Code, State Fire Marshal regulations and Coastside Fire District Ordinance 2013-
03, the permittee shall install smoke detectors which are hard-wired, interconnected and
have battery backup in each new or reconditioned sleeping room and at a point centrally
located in the corridor or area giving access to each separate sleeping area. A minimum of
one detector per floor is required. For alterations: If there is an attic, basement, crawl
space or removal of a wall or ceiling that provides access, then all smoke alarms shall be
hardwired and interconnected. Building plan submittals shall demonstrate conformance
with these requirements to the satisfaction of the Building Official prior to issuance of
building permits. (Fire)

COASTSIDE COUNTY WATER DISTRICT - REGULATIONS. The project shall comply with all
applicable regulations and requirements of the Coastside County Water District. Water

service shall not be in the same trench as other utilities. (Water District)

C. The following conditions shall be implemented prior to and during

construction:

1.

ARCHAEOLOGY-DISCOVERY OF HUMAN REMAINS. Pursuant to Section 7050.5 of the
Health and Safety Code, and Section 5097.94 of the Public Resources Code of the State of
California, in the event of the discovery of human remains during construction, there shall

be no further excavation or disturbance of the site or any nearby area reasonably suspected
to overlie adjacent remains. The County Coroner shall be notified and shall make a
determination as to whether the remains are Native American. If the Coroner determines

Resolution CDR-18-007



Attachment 1

that the remains are not subject to his authority, he shall notify the California Native
American Heritage Commission who shall attempt to identify descendants of the deceased
Native American(s). If no satisfactory agreement can be reached as to the disposition of the
remains pursuant to this State law, then the permittee shall re-inter the human remains and
items associated with Native American burials on the property in a location not subject to
further subsurface disturbance. (Planning)

2. ARCHAEOLOGY-DISCOVERY OF RESOURCES. If subsurface historic or archaeological
resources are uncovered during construction, all work shall stop, the applicant shall
notify the Community Development Director and retain a qualified archaeologist to
perform an archaeological reconnaissance and identify any mitigation measures
required to protect archaeological resources. Subsurface excavation shall not resume
until expressly authorized by the Director. (Building)

3. TREE REMOVAL. Tree removal shall occur outside of the bird nesting season (September
1 —January 31) to the extent feasible. Tree removal shall be preceded by a survey
conducted by a qualified biologist to determine whether any native nesting birds are
present; or, if protected butterflies or bats are present. If present, tree removal may only
proceed, under the supervision of the biologist and approval by the Community
Development Director.

4, CONSTRUCTION TRAILERS. Temporary construction trailers are permitted as accessory uses

in conjunction with the development of this site, subject to the following conditions:

The construction trailer shall be used as a temporary construction office only.
Neither sanitation facilities nor plumbed water is permitted within the trailer.
No overnight inhabitance of the construction trailer is permitted.

No construction trailers are permitted on site prior to building permit issuance.

vk whh e

The construction trailer shall be removed prior to issuance of a certificate of
occupancy. (Planning)

5. AIR QUALITY BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES. The project shall implement the following
standard BAAQMD dust control measures during all phases of construction on the project
site:

. All active construction areas shall be watered twice daily or more often if necessary.
Increased watering frequency shall be required whenever wind speeds exceed 15

miles-per-hour.

. Pave, apply water three times daily, or apply non-toxic soil stabilizers on all unpaved

access roads and parking and staging areas at construction sites.

° Cover stockpiles of debris, soil, sand, and any other materials that can be

windblown. Trucks transporting these materials shall be covered.
Resolution CDR-18-007



Attachment 1

All visible mud or dirt track-out onto adjacent public roads shall be removed using
wet power vacuum street sweepers at least once per day or as often as necessary to
keep them free of dust and debris associated with site construction. The use of dry

power sweeping is prohibited.

Subsequent to clearing, grading, or excavating, exposed portions of the site shall be
watered, landscaped, treated with soil stabilizers, or covered as soon as possible.
Hydroseed or apply (non-toxic) soil stabilizers to inactive construction areas and

previously graded areas inactive for 10 days or more.

Installation of sandbags or other erosion control measures to prevent silt runoff to

public roadways.

Replanting of vegetation in disturbed areas as soon as possible after completion of

construction.

Idling times shall be minimized either by shutting equipment off when not in use or
reducing the maximum idling time to five minutes. Clear signage shall be provided

for construction workers at all access points.

All construction equipment shall be maintained and properly tuned in accordance
with manufacturer’s specifications. All equipment shall be checked by a certified

mechanic and determined to be running in proper condition prior to operation.

Post a publicly visible sign with the telephone number and person to contact at the
City of Half Moon Bay regarding dust complaints. This person shall respond and take
corrective action within 48 hours. The BAAQMD’s phone number shall also be

visible to ensure compliance with applicable regulations.

6. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. Any materials deemed hazardous by the San Mateo County

7.

Department of Health that are uncovered or discovered during the course of work under
this permit shall be disposed in accordance with regulations of the San Mateo County of
Health. (Building)

COMPLIANCE WITH CBC. All structures shall be constructed in compliance with the

standards of the 2013 California Codes of Regulations Title 24, including Building Code,
Residential Code, Administrative Code, Mechanical Code, Plumbing Code, Electrical Code,
Energy Code, Fire Code and Green Building Code to the satisfaction of the Building Official.
(Building)

Resolution CDR-18-007



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

D.

Attachment 1

FIRST FLOOR HEIGHT VERIFICATION. Prior to below floor framing or concrete slab steel

reinforcement inspection, a stamped and signed building height verification letter shall be
submitted to the City from a licensed land survey certifying that the first floor height as
constructed is equal to (or less than) the elevation specified for the first floor height in the
approved plans. The building pad shall be at least one-foot above the centerline crown of
the roadway or the top of the curb. (Building)

OVERALL PROJECT HEIGHT. Maximum overall height of the project, including any grading,

foundation, pad, and building elevations shall be calculated using the elevation points
indicated on the topographic survey map submitted at the time of application. The
approved height of all projects developed in the City will be measured from existing grade
as indicated on the submitted topographical survey. (Building)

COMPLETION OF UTILITIES. Any public utilities requiring relocation as a result of the

construction of the building(s) or improvements under this permit shall be relocated at the
owner’s expense. (Building)

CONSTRUCTION HOURS. Construction work shall be limited to the hours of 7:00 a.m. to

6:00 p.m. Monday through Friday; 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Saturdays; and 10:00 a.m. to 6:00
p.m. Sundays and holidays, except as expressly authorized by the City Engineer in
conformance with Section 14.40.020 of the Half Moon Bay Municipal Code. (Engineering)

NOTICE OF DISRUPTION. The permittee shall provide written notice to affected property

and business owners and a copy of such notice to the City Engineer a minimum of two
business days prior to any planned disruption of pedestrian or vehicular traffic, parking, or
public service facilities. (Engineering)

CONSTRUCTION MATERIAL STORAGE. Construction material shall not be stored in the

street right-of-way without prior approval from the City Engineer. (Engineering)

ENCROACHMENT PERMIT. No construction activity shall occur and no pedestrian and

vehicular traffic control shall be installed within the City right-of way or affecting the City’s
improvements prior to obtaining an encroachment permit from the City. All improvements
constructed within the City right-of way shall conform to City standards to the satisfaction
of the City Engineer. Traffic control shall conform to Caltrans/MUTCD Standard Plans for
Traffic Control in Construction and Maintenance Zones. (Engineering)

The following conditions shall be implemented prior to issuance of an

occupancy permit:

1.

EXTERIOR COLORS AND MATERIALS. Exterior building colors and materials shall be in

substantial conformance with those shown on the approved plans, submitted to the City on

Resolution CDR-18-007



Attachment 1

February 6, 2018, and other application materials including manufacturer’s cutsheets to the
satisfaction of the Director of Community Development. (Planning)

DISPLAY OF SINGLE-FAMILY STREET ADDRESS. Prior to issuance of an occupancy permit,
the residential dwelling shall display an internally-illuminated street address number in a

prominent location on the dwelling, visible from the street (a minimum of 6 feet above the
surface of the driveway), and with contrasting background and letters/numbers that are 4
inches in height with a minimum 3/4—inch stroke. Where a building is set back from the
street or otherwise obscured, a street address with 3-inch reflective numbers/letters shall
also be provided near the driveway entrance leading to the dwelling. (Fire/Building)

RECORDATION OF DEED RESTRICTION. Prior to the issuance of final occupancy, the applicant
shall record a deed restriction, on a form acceptable to the Community Development
Director, stating that the Second Dwelling Unit (SDU) will not be sold separately, that the SDU
is restricted to the approved size, that the SDU is a permitted use so long as either the main

residence or the SDU is occupied by the owner of record as the principal residence, and that
the deed restrictions shall lapse upon removal of the SDU. This condition may be modified by
the Community Development Director, in the event that future ordinances adopted by the
City negate the need for; or, modify these requirements.

Validity and Expiration of Permits

EFFECTIVE DATE. The site is not located within the Coastal Commission Appeals
Jurisdiction. This approval shall take effect after expiration of all City appeal periods.

(Planning)

ACCURACY OF APPLICATION MATERIALS. The permittee shall be responsible for the
completeness and accuracy of all forms and material submitted for this application. Any

errors or discrepancies found therein may be grounds for the revocation or modification of
this permit and/or any other City approvals. (Planning)

PERMIT EXPIRATION. The Coastal Development Permit (CDP) and Architectural Review shall
expire one year from its date of final approval if the use/development has not commenced

in conformance with this permit or the applicant has not obtained an extension of the
permit.

PERMIT EXTENSION. The Community Development Director may, at the Director’s
discretion, approve a Minor Amendment for a single one-year extension of this permit

based on a written request and fee submitted to the Director prior to expiration of the
permit. Submittal of a Building Permit application with development plans prior to
expiration of the permit shall constitute an extension of this permit until the building permit
is issued or until the Building Official determines the applicant is no longer diligently

Resolution CDR-18-007



Attachment 1

pursuing the required building permit. Any other extension shall require approval of a
Major Permit Amendment prior to expiration of the permit. Any Major Permit Amendment
Application to extend the permit shall be filed a minimum of ninety (90) days prior to permit
expiration to ensure adequate processing time. (Planning)

5. PERMIT RUNS WITH THE LAND. The approval runs with the land and the rights and
obligations thereunder, including the responsibility to comply with conditions of approval,

shall be binding upon successors in interest in the real property unless or until such permits
are expressly abandoned or revoked. (Planning)

6. HOLD HARMLESS. The permittee agrees as a condition of approval of this application to
indemnify, protect, defend with counsel selected by the City, and hold harmless, the City, and

any agency or instrumentality thereof, and its elected and appointed officials, officers,
employees and agents, from and against an and all liabilities, claims, actions, causes of action,
proceedings, suits, damages, judgments, liens, levies, costs and expenses of whatever nature,
including reasonable attorney’s fees and disbursements (collectively, “Claims”) arising out of
or in any way relating to the approval of this application, any actions taken by the City related
to this entitlement, any review by the California Coastal Commission conducted under the
California Coastal Act Public Resources Code Section 30000 et seq., or any environmental
review conducted under the California Environmental Quality Act, Public Resources Code
Section 210000 et seq., for this entitlement and related actions. The indemnification shall
include any Claims that may be asserted by any person or entity, including the permittee,
arising out of or in connection with the approval of this application, whether or not there is
concurrent, passive or active negligence on the part of the City, and any agency or
instrumentality thereof, and its elected and appointed officials, officers, employees and
agents. The permittee’s duty to defend the City shall not apply in those instances when the
permittee has asserted the Claims, although the permittee shall still have a duty to indemnify,
protect and hold harmless the City. (City Attorney).

OWNER’S/PERMITTEE’S CERTIFICATION:

I have read and understand and hereby accept and agree to implement the foregoing conditions
of approval of the Coastal Development Permit.

APPLICANT:

(Signature) (Date)
Resolution CDR-18-007



Attachment 1

Resolution CDR-18-007



ATTACHMENT No. 2 Letter from Applicant

To: HMB Project Planner, Doug Garrison, Planning Staff & Committee,
Neighbors of 636 Metzgar Street

From: Ted & Josephine Gladstone
We are happy to discuss this project with you at any time, please call our coordinator at 650-740-2826.

My husband Ted and | have lived in El Granada since 1958, We want to make our intentions clear for
this project, and hopefully alleviate any concerns.

This will be a “In-Home Care Facility” that will serve seniors only. The seniors will not have automobiles,
and will be under the care of two people that will live in the accessory dwelling unit on the

property. There will be a maximum of six residents in the main house and two people in the accessory
dwelling unit. We have designed the home to have one offstreet parking for picking up and dropping off
near the front door. We have provided an exterior door to each of the five rooms for fire egress for our
elderly, and for them to maintain some plants and have exterior space on the sunny side of the house.

We will be very careful about who we care for. We will be doing background checks on every potential
resident. | have been taking care of the elderly for 23 years, the last 18 years locally at Seton Coastside.

We have owned this Metzgar property for 22 years and have taken some five years to develop our final
plan. | have worked with the state to obtain licensing. My son and daughter will assist me in caring for

our residents. Also, we are blessed with the location of the Senior Center close by.

This property will never be operated as a boarding house, and we have agreed to stipulate this with the
planning department. We have worked closely with the planning department, fire department, and the
state to come up with this plan.

We look forward to continue being exceptional neighbors with you on our beautiful Coastside.

Thanks for your time and concern,

Most Respectfully,

Josephine Gladstone



Project Data

Project Description: New Single Family Residence/In-Home Care With One
Attached Additional Dwelling Unit

Proposed Use: Limited home care facility housing six or fewer residents such as
seniors that does not provide medical or convalescent care managed by licensed
operator living on-site and separate studio apartment used as residence for
permanent occupants (ADU). Half Moon Bay Municipal Code, Section
18.33.040.D, requires that the property owner occupy either the primary or
secondary unit. If this project is approved, the owner will be required to file a
deed restriction to ensure compliance with this regulation. Coastal Development
Permit, Architectural Review and Site Design approval required.

Lot coverage: 49.6%

Project Status: Schematic Design
Zoning: R-2

Building Slab Area: 3640 sq ft
Site Gross Area: 7385.3 sq ft

Lot Coverage: 49.3%

Sheet Index

Layout ID Layout Name Revision Issued Published Remark
A1 Site Plan O X

A2 Site Plan 2 O (]

A.3 Floor Plan O X

A4 Section Elevation O X

A5 Schedule O X

A6 Landscape Plan a X

LS. Survey O O

RESIDENTIAL DWELLING UNIT NOTE:

01. Use 70% FSC certified recycled or plastic composite lumber
at new fence (typical).

02. Non-plant landscape element at least 50% salvaged or
recycled material (typical).

03. Verify outdoor lighting system low-lighting element, shielded
fixture, down-direct to avoid night sky light pollution and glare.
04. At least 50% of partially pervious paving to be light color
high albedo material solar reflectance index <=0.3

05. Provide copy project Measure D Residential Development
Application Package with drawing for construction for clarity.

STORMWATER NOTE:

01. Mark on-site storm drain inlet "No Dumping, Flows to Bay"
or equivalent (typical).

02. Verify interior floor drain connects to sanitary sewer (typical).
03. If provide future interior floor drain at garage (not
anticipated), connect to sanitary sewer only as approved by Half
Moon Bay authority.

04. If provide future water feature (pool, spa, fountain, none
anticipated), connect to sanitary sewer to facilitate drainage only
as approved by Half Moon Bay authority (typical).

05. If provide future food service equipment intercept grease at
trap and connect to sanitary sewer as approved by Half Moon
Bay suthority (typical).

06. If provide future drain at refuse area, connect as approved by
Half Moon Bay authority.

07. No future outdoor process area anticipated or allowed
without specific application and approval by Half Moon Bay
authority.

08. Store outdoor equipment in garage or future shed as
approved by Half Moon Bay authority constructed on paved area
only (typical).

09. If provide future designated (signed) covered vehicle washing
area (not anticipated), berm wash area to direct water to sanitary
sewer connection using design to prevent stormwater run-on or
run-off as approved by Half Moon Bay authority.

10. If provide future vehicle repair/maintence area, fueling area,
loading dock, or architectural copper (not anticipated), obtain
approval from Half Moon Bay authority noting specific
requirement fo Stormwater Chrcklist for Small Project (typical).
11. Drain fire sprinkler test water to landscape.

12. Direct water from downspot to landscape for conveyance to
on-side retention system as shown.

13. Maintain copy of Stormwater Checklist for Small Project with
drawing for construction noting restriction on grading to dry
month, providing straw wattle and temporary fence to protect
existing vegetation according to best management practice.

Half Moon Bay
State Beach

Poplar Beach Q

PRESERVE EXISTING
ESCALLONIA RUBRA
15" HEIGHT

PRESERVE EXISTING

PITTOSPORUM CRASSIFOLIUM
TYPICAL (6) 15' HEIGHT

EXISTING GATE

APN 064-281-430

Hi Hl'? g::;([; I(‘PBG?\ Q Q-g 74X CODE AREA :
2 é:&S? H METZGAR @ o ST, 3 \MJ
& I —
i i ® 65 ® | é I éla
g 38 e i !
f ' I l 26 25 i 24 23 :
@ Ls_x'_ ~___-__\_'_,¥;,,;;H;LL,28I_" E};_L;_,;_L~
LT T T 1 1 1 [ =1]=1=
@ EE : ’ 2 3 4 5 6 7 E 8 9
Mor.‘-'.h:.lBu;.-' j@ L °1° %5 . i ssss f)w
,636 Metzgar Street § gagi 7 gi 2 0 z: " ;i /zg
E L.,?Eji ﬂ,_,,ii_,g_,,_‘_ ;_l___i[_u_a/_l_f
(] &‘
< ®
* Psmiers e v
Google ¢ ) = o
<
3 %
4 AN
70'-5 1/4", (70.43")
9 M 56'-5 1/4", (56.43') M 5
S ASPHALTIC CONCRETE >
1
G s SOLIDTH e e e 00
Senatina , EUCALYPTUS GLOBULUS
i | IN RIGHT-OF-WAY
N | o |1 UNDERGROUND |
> ~ i~ I ELECTRICAL, >
| —-— | CABLE,
| —~~ _ DIRECTION NATURAL | TELEPHONE LINE
) i T DRAINAGE FLOW -0.00' I)! (TYPICAL) TO { =
D : 4 T % — 85 | [ :SERVICE >
! — a7 7 ENTRANCE AND
= 1t CPANEL A2fete3—
P | _CONNECT
4 N . DRIVEWAY TO $
7] : NEW.C co
| | | A:2/04-03
i | i I e e
ANAAA AAAAAAALAA e 7
WATER ! | PROPERTY LINE (TYPICAL) |
SERVICETO | | | j
METER AS | | |
REQUIRED \ ~ PERMEABLE INTERLOCKING I GAS LINETO
A.2/06 L CONCRETE PAVER (PICP) | METER g
|| DRIVEWAY AND ENTRY I | | SECURITY
SECURITY £%7] ; ! GATE AND 6'
GATE AND /v i
> EENCE | FENCE AS
........................ ) | EXISTlNG
END —— END EXISTING AAAAA T
: w & 6' UNFINISHED :
EXISTING g ¢~ !
6 FENCE 5o BOARDE FENCE
s WX ' V s-oi
X
o
<
v | — —AARA L e
X i3 > o 3
: z
< G
S-02 : W s-02 90
K
X . s SANITARY
SEWER
CONNECT AS
© X APPROVED :
A.2/01-03
4 SECURITY] X
GATE
: ke CONNECT
......................... K : PROPOSED BUILDING OUTLINE X DOWNSPOUT TO :
e P D A e
SETBACK LINE FROM PROPERTY X RETENTION
LINE (TYPICAL) SYSTEM (TYPICAL)
UNDERGROUND J, |\ A.2/01-03 T
STORMWATER PERMEABLE TN EREOCKING ';
RETENTION/GROUND 84' CONCRETE PAVER (PICP)
WATER RECHARGE | T SANITARY SEWER
SYSTEM WITH WALKWAY AND RECREATION AREA | | EASEMENT LINE
OVERFLOW INVERT X | R 5
PUMP oo o SR S R S Y S TR T A | | EXISTING FENCE
CONNECT TO CURB P &y , 6 HEIGHT NEAR
_ : SSOUTH, EAST
; W %\5 AND WEST
_“4%_ kN Al s NN A e L PROPERTY LINE e —
b A ~ N N 5 0 5 10 15' 20

Date

Change Name

ChID

RevID

\\ADMIN-PC\Gee RL Pix\2017\00\metzgar st\Metzgar2017-12-05.pIn

© Christopher Church 2015

)
O
)

=

e
O
| W

<<

N
O
—
>3

e

O
| .
)

<
Q
O

)
2]

=

e

O

330 7th St PO Box 18

N~

(98]

S

o g
< i
O
S
£
S R
= O

New Single Family Residence/In-Home Care With One Attached Additional Dwelling Unit

Owner: Theodore R Gladstone, PO Box 41, El Granada CA 94018

Project Address: 636 Metzgar St, Half Moon Bay, CA 94019
Assessor's Parcel Number: APN 064-281-430, Zoning: R-2

636 Metzgar St

Site Plan
Schematic Design

f

r

r

s




21

11

3-10 1/2"

11
1-3", 2-41/2" ,

1

36"

36"

A-31/2"

, 2-412"
2' CLEAR,

3-10"

11

1-11/2",

316"

1
36" |

A-1172

11
, 2-41/2"

\2' CLEAR,

, 2-41/2"
2' CLEAR,

1

7

7

7

2" CLEAR)

—p

] e | |

-

Sill 2'-2"

207 1/2" g , 20
D-00
. 101
- { } \ i
—! Sill 2-2" I 1 | " ]
I — I ] e
Sill 3-4" T~ ‘ — R E,l&E(é-IL-RICAL
\ — T \
| Living 3 oset Ent Kitch Garag 1
: (g Fom—gom || Lo e ||| ] g T vosess
D-00 ff‘s‘g i“go,sq ft 0 06 CA: 67.50 sq ft CA:23658sqft | @ | - CA: 47455 sq ft |
N i 6Asq ft ~4.5'X 13' ~7.5'X 29.5' | - ~ _ - ~19.5' X 24.5' |
\ — ‘
B B | - |
5 P 1] -
L
| | VY s-ot
f \
20 \Z
7’ 3 |
Dining . ntry —
04 @ & | 31 \2% S
CA: 90.25 sq ft o a" | CA 685sqft | g8\ |\ O
| ~12' X 10’ 2 /6 ° ~2'X 3 | 8
) ) WASHER/DRYER
(TYPICAL 2)
| WATER HEATER
s (TYPICAL 2)
6'-8" | 3
w w o L 7
6 g — Closet “ Additional : FORCED AIR UNIT
r \,8‘) Bedroom 3 Co') 2 . % CA: 13.33 sq ft 7 = der 1 \ Dwelling Unit y
- 13 o T 07 _— o
CA:239.75 sq ft \‘:ﬂ/ B.6sq ft > \g<§ 34.70 sq ft CA:241.18 sq ft
~19"X 10.5" o ~7.5'X4.5 ~14'X 18' 0
Powder 3 \‘ S
25 : s 0] T
CA: 35.185q ft 00 - <
~7'X 4.5'
i} ME = ¥ HOSE BIB
2'-8" owder 4 °
6'-8" 26 N BY %m + ®
= CA: 34.16 sq ft t&lo
~7' X 4.5' (G %m%
Bedroom 4 PR 5 Closet |
14 - ' Closet 4B Hall Office = & S-02
! CA:239.67 sq ft g/ 68 18 zgse 32 09 A= v
- g - ~19' X 10.5' T B.ZAsqft CA: |13_59 sq ft CA:423.00 sq ft CA: 64.53 sq ft @ ®
[ ~6.5' X 14' ~6.5'X 9.5'
rig/ Vi . 1
re} o 3 |
6-8"
00 - 034 3
/‘NJ | e N
D@./o.,s/ ; L @[ — ~ SHEET NOTE
olf) —.6._; 3 o ‘ } 1. PROVIDE ONE-HOUR SEPARATION AT
< Eér Q A: 34.70 sq ft % GARAGE
6 fgw |~ _ ~7.5'X 4.5' (G
7 \_ 0O H
o %4 1 Q 2. PROVIDE ONE-HOUR SEPARATION AT
0 o Closet 1B EN )
Bedroom 1 & 19 @ 2 UM 2 0 . ADDITIONAL DWELLING UNIT
1 (’) ~
i o CA: 1084sqf Bath 1 ~— 3. PROVIDE SPRINKLER SYSTEM DESIGN
CA:230.60 s ft g 3 27
~19' X 10.5' CA: 88.325qft N 4. NO DEFERRED SUBMITTAL
owder 1 ( o a @o ~7.5' X 11"
. 23 N
S CA: 31.78 sq ft ol o
~5.5' X 4.5' G Closet Eig x
3 ) 29 o
= | | CA1470sqft | | Gl Al
2 o Powder 2
e m v
Q 6-8 CA: 34.33sq ft 3!
~55X45 L o
Bedroom 2 N Closet (\ F:(:nily B;droom 5
. g (1:2 24100 oat /g'\ 3 E‘:‘S CA:423.00 sq ft CA:160.86 sq ft
) A:241. t _qn = 1 g - ' 1 = -
= Lg > o x 10_5.Sq 8 6 8\q 6 31 sq ft Czlgset 2B 13' X 20.5 15.5' X 10.5 % =
— u 1| | CA 1336sqft | I &
% A S
) /2/ 3 u |
|~ © 6-8" ©|F o~
[(\ 0 N
00 -oz%—ﬂ
| - . Tt . all - T — - {E — | L
| HOSEBIB ¥ | |
A E03
|2'CLEAR,
L 24112
g 7 44" 1-8" 9

27

£

Date

Change Name

ChID

RevID

\\ADMIN-PC\Gee RL Pix\2017\00\metzgar st\Metzgar2017-12-05.pIn

© Christopher Church 2015

el
O
D
=
c
o

[e's)
_<é,_.

> N
¥ om
288
OO0 o %
b oS
_CU)UOP
Q ~ ©©
OJ_J(‘EN
=N
Eo go

) N
Om= 0

New Single Family Residence/In-Home Care With One Attached Additional Dwelling Unit

Owner: Theodore R Gladstone, PO Box 41, El Granada CA 94018

Project Address: 636 Metzgar St, Half Moon Bay, CA 94019
Assessor's Parcel Number: APN 064-281-430, Zoning: R-2

636 Metzgar St

Floor Plan
Schematic Design

f

r

r

W




Date

MILGARD STYLE LINE SERIES WHITE VINYL BENJAMIN MOORE 38- STANHOPE

CEMENTITIOUS BOARD (TYPICAL)

WINDOW TYPICAL YELLOW AS REQUIRED 5

POSSINI EURO XANE BRONZE DARK SKY 11' CERTAINTEED LANDMARK PRO 3
WIDE LED WALL SCONCE TYPICAL (2) ASPHALT SHINGLE MAX DEF %
HINKLEY LUNA 8" WIDE BRONZE LED GEORGETOWN GRAY TYPICAL g
OUTDOOR CEILING LIGHT TYPICAL (11) 20' HEIGHT LIMIT 3
il icaok b\ N4 L ____ 7% e

=

: 2

LTINS T T TR T T T T ] T FIBER CEMENT SHINGLE £ £

(TYPICAL) HARDIE SHINGLE © .

00 T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T TT T T T T T 0T [ TTTTTTITT TTT TTTT T MOUNTAIN SAGE % §T

© Christopher Church 2015

: [T T HARDIETRIM 4/4 RUSTIC SAILCLOTH
MINKA SKYLINE LED 7/34"  |LLLLLIITTITTTIITITTTTTITTIIIT] [ ]
~ [11] [TIT1]
.‘ T T ] CLOSED SOFFIT [T T T ITTTTTTT T e
HEIGHT BRONZE WALL LIGHT | e I B — [ — ] (TYPICAL) HESNENNRNARNNNNNNENENERRRRNRNANNARS
@24" HEIGHT MINIMUM ) === ( L] D i T LI LI LTI LI LT LI LT L T e H
TYPICAL (4) Iy === [ 1| [TTTTTIIT] 111 (1111 FINISHED GRADE . 2
. “ o T [ITTTTIT] [ITTTTTT T TR I
) ||||||||| ||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||| .IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII — >>'— E
|||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||| ||||||||||||||||||I==L==L=I||| [T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T 1T 8
W3GRADE [TITTITITITTITT] [TTTTTT1] [TITTITTT] [TIITITT1 [11 HEEERE RN RN RN R RN EEEEEEEEEEEEENENEEEEEEEEEERNRREEEREENY << ©
RAISED PANEL FIBERGLASS DOOR || T I IRNNARNNRR il — | RRRE JRARRRRRR AR RRRRRR R AR T RRR A RRRRR e
TRADITIONAL RED OR MOUNTAIN SAGE RAISED PANEL FIBERGLASS |Il|lI|I|I|I|I|I|I|I|I|I|I|I|I|I — |||I|I|||I|I|I|I|I — ||I|I|||I|I|I|I|I|I| - - I||||I|I|||I|I|I|I |||||| I|I|I|I|I| _ ||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||| _ I|I|I|I|I|I| _ |||||||||||||||||||||||||| S35
BENJAMIN MOORE 2080-10 RASPBERRY TRUFFLE EXTERIOR DOOR TRADITONAL RED I8 (RN RRRRRRRRAN TLITITTT] TITTITITT I T} Y|FEITT T T ITT I B [uansne | L TTIIELL L] 2922
i ' o
OR 1497 ROLLING HILLS AS REQUIRED BELGARD AQUA-ROC FOSSIL BEIGE = [111] [ LTI ICTILITIILITII] [LT[1] [LL[TIILITI1] OCQoaZ
PERMEABLE CONCRETE D3
INTERLOCKING PAVER TYPICAL cnhOD
— A~ ©®
ISECEN
o~ e h
E-01 North 1/8" = 1'-0" E-04 West 1/8" = 1'-0" E-03 South 1/8" = 1'-0" = 8 o 8
Om=0©
20' ABOVE
—————————————————— _/_ _ _ _ _ORGINALGRADE _ _ _ _ _ _ __
e e |

""";"'j‘"j:j:j:j:jj::j:j:j";";'"::j:j:j:j::jj:j"';"";":jj:j:j:j:jj::j:"ﬁ'@'"""@""::jj:j:j::jj:j:j:j:jj::j:j:jj::j:j:jj::j:j:j:j::jj:j
R T

S-02 Transverse Ridge 1/8" = 1'-0" E-02 East 1/8" = 1'-0"

20' ABOVE
__________________________________ Vs ORIGINAL GRADE

+9.00'

S-03 Longitudinal Ridge 1/8" = 1'-0"

/ 20' ABOVE ORIGINAL GRADE

v E-04

+18.95' +18.95'

PHOTOVOLTAIC
© || W BANELARRAY BY

s ||

OTHER CONNECT

New Single Family Residence/In-Home Care With One Attached Additional Dwelling Unit

Owner: Theodore R Gladstone, PO Box 41, El Granada CA 94018

Project Address: 636 Metzgar St, Half Moon Bay, CA 94019
Assessor's Parcel Number: APN 064-281-430, Zoning: R-2

636 Metzgar St

TO GARAGE
PANEL ARRAY AS

A\ | ' = | )
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|

REQUIRED

NON-COPPER
GUTTER PER
STORMWATER +9.00'
NOTE SHEET 01

+9.00'

r

DOWNSPOUT AS

|
|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

3 REQUIRED
N CONNECT TO
N ROOF

N ,  COLLECTION

r

f

Section Elevation
Schematic Design
n

I

ab
a4

SITE RETENTION

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
i A i SYSTEM TO ON-
|
|
|
|

Roof Plan 1/8" = 1'-Q" 5 6 5 10 |

S-01 Building Section 1/4" = 1'-0"




Date

Change Name

ChID

RevID

\\ADMIN-PC\Gee RL Pix\2017\00\metzgar st\Metzgar2017-12-05.pIn

© Christopher Church 2015

F\ ________ — 7’
‘ \\ //
- /\ /\ [\ [\ /\ N A A A AN AN AN
L -~ N
)] ()} ()} q
View from Side D (W) (W) (|
Opposite to Opening
Side ) (W) 1 D il
)] ()} ()} (|

Door Schedule 2

Scale (Indication 1/8" = 1'-0" Typical) 1"

1!_0"

Window List
lindow Name 2-Sash Sliding Window 18 | 2-Sash Sliding Window 18 | 2-Sash Sliding Window 18 | 2-Sash Sliding Window 18 | 2-Sash Sliding Window 18 | 2-Sash Sliding Window 18 | 2-Sash Sliding Window 18
Marker Text WD - 001 WD - 002 WD - 003 WD - 004 WD - 005 WD - 005 WD - 006
Lantity 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
om Room Number
x H Size 7'x5' 6'x5' 6'x5' 4'x4' 3'-10"x5' 4'x4' 3'x4'
rientation
lindow sill height 2'-6" 2'-6" 2'-6" 3'-6" 2'-6" 3-8" 3'-6"
lindow head height 7'-6" 7'-6" 7'-6" 7'-6" 7'-6" 7'-8" 7'-6"
D Symbol ——ar—o1 —ar—— o—ar—o1 —r—= —r—= o—=—= =
{ew from Side
pposite to Opening —> < —> < —> < —> <
de
Window Schedule Scale (Indication 1/8" = 1'-0" Typical) 1' = 1'-0"

Perspective

==
S =
e e
S S e e e
<= S S

=

R e,

=———
e

X

SRR X
R e S P RS St S e Rt e

S S S S S S RS
‘0.0‘0"’.0"0.&.

S
<X

=

R R S R EREN
R R R R RS R R
XX

X X
RS IR XS

D-1

Entryway West Bl@Vaten 1'-0"

Door List
Door Name Door 18 Sliding Door 18
Quantity 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Marker Text DOO - 001 DOO - 008 DOO - 009 DOO - 010 DOO - 011 DOO - 012 DOO - 013 DOO - 014 DOO - 015 DOO - 016 DOO - 017 DOO - 018 DOO - 018 DOO - 019 DOO - 019 DOO - 020 DOO - 021 DOO - 022 DOO - 023 DOO - 032 DOO - 003 DOO - 003 DOO - 004 DOO - 004 DOO - 005 DOO - 006 DOO - 007
Zone Number 03 01 07 27 09 27 28 12 11 14 13 01 01 02 24 23 26 25 08 10 13 05
W x H Size 3x7' 3x7' X7 3x6'-8" 3%6-8" 3%6-8" 3%6'-8" 3%6'-8" 3%6-8" 3%6'-8" 3%6-8" 2-6"x6'-8" 3%6-8" 2-6"x6'-8" 2'-8"x6'-8" 2-8"x6'-8" 2-8"x6'-8" 2'-8"x6'-8" 2-8"x6'-8" 3%6-8" 6'x7' 67" 6'%7' 67" 6'%7' 6'x7' 6'%7'
Orientation L R L R L R R R R R L L L R R L R L R L R R L R L L L
Door sill height 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0
Door head height 7 7 7 6'-8" 6'-8" 6-8" 6'-8" 6'-8" 6'-8" 6'-8" 6'-8" 6-8" 6'-8" 6'-8" 6'-8" 6'-8" 6'-8" 6'-8" 6-8" 6'-8" 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
— AN AN DN DN DN AlAal AN DN AN AN A== e e
Bl% N[ 7 0% N[ % N[ %

View from Side N ¥ D D N
Opposite to Opening || L L L)L L)L L L)L L “«— <« — — — —
g | [Of i [C L I I b X i X

Door Schedule Scale (Indication 1/8" = 1'-0" Typical) 1' = 1'-0"

Door List copy 1
Door Name Overhead Garage Door 18 Sliding Folding Multipanel Bifold Door 18 26" glélbc\)JvEVéE:bEN
Quantity 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 N
Marker Text DOO - 024 DOO - 025 DOO - 026 DOO - 027 DOO - 028 DOO - 029 DOO - 030 DOO - 031 DOO - 033 DOO - 034 DOO - 035 s51n  INTO YARD

Zone Number 05 13 14 11 12 28 12 11 22 13 . _ SETBACKAT
W x H Size 17'x7" 3%6'-8" 3'%6'-8" 3%6'-8" 3'%6'-8" 3%6'-8" 5'6'-8" 5'6'-8" 5'x6'-8" 5'%6'-8" 5'x6'-8" r— 1 += EAVE
Orientation
Door sill height o 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 o 0 0
Door head height 7 6-8" 6'-8" 6-8" 6-8" 6-8" 6'-8" 6'-8" 6'-8" 6'-8" 6-8"

)
O
Q

=

e
O
| .

<

=
O
|
=]

e

O
| .
Q

<
aQ
O

)
)

=

e

O

330 7th St PO Box 18

N
™M
g
(o))
S:‘,-.
i
O m
S
S
SR
= O

636 Metzgar St

New Single Family Residence/In-Home Care With One Attached Additional Dwelling Unit

Theodore R Gladstone, PO Box 41, El Granada CA 94018

R-2

636 Metzgar St, Half Moon Bay, CA 94019
APN 064-281-430, Zoning

Schedule

| -
O
Fa'
e
=
=
..T)
Qo
U ©
UQ
'<ct_m
| -
o3
038‘”
C-.—,q)
=989
O a <
c
[ 1|
-
2
7
S A
(o]
O ==
wld
©
g
_5 | -
0V Y=

Ul




Date

Plant List

Change Name

ChID

RevID

\\ADMIN-PC\Gee RL Pix\2017\00\metzgar st\Metzgar2017-12-05.pIn

© Christopher Church 2015

Object Name Evergreens 18 Evergreens 18 Shrubs 18 Shrubs 18 Shrubs 18 Shrubs 18 Shrubs 18 Shrubs 18 Shrubs 18 Shrubs 18 Shrubs 18 Shrubs 18 Shrubs 18
Quantity 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 3 3 3 4 6 11
Length (A) 8' 8' 2' 10' 15' 1'-6" 3 1 1'-6" 2' 2' 20 3
Width (B) 8' 8' 2' 10' 15' 5' 3 1 1'-6" 2' 2' 1 3
Height (Z Size) 8' 8' 2' 15' 15' 4 1 1 0'-10" 2' 2' 6' 3
User Defined 1 'Austin Griffith" Manzanita Coffeeberry Rosy Buckwheat Toyon Wood Mint California Fuchsia Blue-Eyed Grass California Poppy Common Coyote Mint Seacliff Buckwheat Western Virgin's Bower California Fescue
User Defined 2 15 gal 5 gal 1 gal 5 gal 1 gal 1 gal 1 pckt 1 pckt 1 gal 1 gal 1 gal 1 gal
Cost 180.00 45.00 15.00 50.00 0.00 15.00 15.00 5.00 4.00 15.00 15.00 18.00 15.00

2D Symbol Arctostaphyls Austin Griffith' | Rhamnus califapnioa’Eve Case' | Eriogonum gr@hde rubescens Stachx@bullata Epilob%anum Sisyrinchim bellum| Eschscholzia californica maritima | Monardéfia villos&riogonur§iparvifols Festuc*ifornica
User Defined 3 Partial sun Sun/shade Sun Sun/partial shade Partial shade Sun Sun/partial shade Sun Sun/partial shade Sun-partial shade Sun/shade Sun/partial shade
User Defined 4 Occasional water/dry Occasional water/moist Occasional water/dry Occasional water/dry Occasional water/dry Occasional water/dry Occasional water/dry Occasional water/dry Occasional water/dry |  Occasional water/dry Occasional water/moist Occasional water/dry

ASPHALTIC CONCRETE
12.5' WIDTH M ETZGAR ST
1
e OO WIDTH e REMOVE EXISTING 18"
CENTER LINE EUCALYPTUS GLOBULUS
IN RIGHT-OF-WAY
N -
~~
~~
~~ _ DIRECTION NATURAL
\DR-AINAE FLOW
| 4 T — s
— \\\ _
******** PN N N N N N N N S N N s G S vy 7 y , ,
lic.r, PROPERTY LINE (TYPICAL) fornica
e
> '
Arctost :(PERMEABLE INTERLOCKING iga’Eve Case
CONCRETE PAVER (PICP) fz,
S A DRIVEWAY AND ENTRY ornica maritima
Sisyring AU ifornica
s-01 VW s-o
LANDSCAPE NOTE:
( 01. Retain existing
vegetation at south.
- 02. Native plant
Q@ landscape design for
& disease and drought
: > rsistance, attract
beneficial insect
species.
03. Provide smart
(respond to weather
S-02 t S-02 condition), timed low-
' flow irrigation system.
04. Avoid quick-release
fertilizer or pesticide
(typical).
LANDSCAPE AREA
SECUGR AIPIE LOT: 7385.3 sq ft
HARDSCAPE: 2382.9 sq ft
COVERED: 3640 sq ft
PROPOSED BUILDING OUTLINE LANDSCAPE: 1362.4 sq ft
TO COINCIDE WITH ALLOWABLE
( SETBACK LINE FROM PROPERTY PROVIDE ANNUAL
( LINE (TYPICAL) MULCH AND SEED
UNTIL ESTABLISHED
Stac PERMEABLE IIMEEREOCKING (TYPICAL)
I 84 CONCRETE PAVER (PICP)
Sisyringhit WALKWAY AND RECREATION AREA
StaC%@ \ | olia
; nard Vi CNhSCI 1Ia ornic a\}’l lfga il arenard EXISTING FENCE
rinc} ' , 6' HEIGHT NEAR
( SOUTH, EAST
X AND WEST
¢ V2 V2 V2 XX V2 PROPERTY LINE

PRESERVE EXISTING
ESCALLONIA RUBRA

15" HEIGHT

PRESERVE EXISTING
PITTOSPORUM CRASSIFOLIUM

TYPICAL (6) 15' HEIGHT

e —

5' 0 5' 10

)
O
)

=

e
O
| W

<<

N
O
—
>3

e

O
| .
)

<
Q
O

)
2]

=

e

O

330 7th St PO Box 18

N~

(98]

S

o g
< i
O
S
S
S R
= O

New Single Family Residence/In-Home Care With One Attached Additional Dwelling Unit

Owner: Theodore R Gladstone, PO Box 41, El Granada CA 94018

Project Address: 636 Metzgar St, Half Moon Bay, CA 94019
Assessor's Parcel Number: APN 064-281-430, Zoning: R-2

d
(7))
e
©
)]
N
)
()
=
O
(]
(o)
c
: -
2:
n.-%,_
VD o
n-uc
C %
S5
£
X
-
prd
l6




	6.27.18 Director Hearing Agenda
	Director Hearing Staff Report PDP-17-074
	Staff Report - Chesterfield
	Staff Report - Metzgar
	staff rpt final 6-21-18
	Reso final 6-21-18
	Attachment 2 App ltr
	Metzgar St 2018-06-18 A.1-A.6
	Metzgar St - Metzgar
	Metzgar
	A.1 Site Plan
	A.3 Floor Plan
	A.4 Section Elevation
	A.5 Schedule
	A.6 Landscape Plan







